
1'-.--------
Little Thompson Water District 

Directors: 
Emily McMurtrey, President 
Steven Brandenburg 
Larry Brandt 
Ryan Heiland 
Ed Martens 
Bill Szmyd 
James Walker 

District Manager: 
Amber Kauffman, PE 

835 E Highway 56 
Berthoud, CO 80513 

Phone: 970-532-2096 
Fax: 970-532-3734 

www.L TWD.orq 

Regular Board Meeting Agenda 
January 18, 2024 - 5:00 P.M.

1. Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance

2. Roll Call:

3. Agenda Review:

4. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items:

5. Consent Items:
5.1. Minutes of the December 14, 2024, Regular .................... Page 4 

Board Meeting 
5.2. Tap List 696 ...................................................................... Page 18 
5.3. December 2023 Disbursements Report ............................. Page 20 
5.4. December 2023 Financial Report ...................................... Page 27 

6. Discussion Items:
6.1. Board Officer Elections ...................................................... Page 33 
6.2. Potential Non-Potable Use of Native Ditch Shares ............ Page 34 
6.3. Non-Potable Operating Agreement .................................. Page 35 
6.4. District Goals and Objectives for 2024 ............................... Page 80 
6.5. Carter Lake Filter Plant ..................................................... Page 82 
6.6. St. Vrain Water Authority ................................................... Page 83 
6.7. Action Item: Motion to Approve: ........................................ Page 84 

Resolution 2024-01 Public Posting Places 
6.8. Public Hearing: Action Item: Motion to Approve: ................ Page 86 

Resolution 2024-02 Larimer County Inclusions 
Resolution 2024-03 Weld County Inclusions 

6.9. Johnstown Amendment to Settlement Agreement: ............ Page 91 

7. Staff Reports:
7 .1. District Manager's Report .................................................. Page 94 
7.2. Business Manager's Report .............................................. Page 95 
7.3. District Engineer's Report .................................................. Page 96 
7.4. Water Resources Manager's Report .................................. Page 99 
7 .5. Operations Manager's Report and Water Quality Update .. Page 102 

8. Director Reports:

9. Adjournment.

1 1 



“Serving our customers with safe, reliable 
and good tasting water at a fair price”

2022 Strategic Goals for next 3 to 5 Years:
1. In three years have a plan for growth of staff and the necessary office space for those staff.

Also consider whether the District will have its own water treatment plant at the same
location and determine what that location will be.

2. Have native waters used in the system. This includes the easement acquisition, infrastructure
construction, and substitute water supply plan approved for Consolidated Home Supply
shares.

3. Plan, document, and begin implementation for use of our wholly consumable waters at SVWA.

4. Evaluate, discuss, and recommend other waters suitable for dedication or purchase,
treatment, and delivery. (Other waters do not include ones currently accepted such as
Consolidated Home Supply, Handy Ditch, or C-BT.)

2022 Max Day Demand

2020 Projected Demands with Influence of Annual Weather 

1 

2



3



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 18, 2024 

Item: 5.1 

Staff: Amber Kauffman, District Manager 

Subject: Minutes of the December 14, 2023, Regular Board Meeting. 

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval. 

Discussion: 

4 



This document is a draft copy of the: 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF LITTLE THOMPSON WATER DISTRICT 

The Board of Directors of Little Thompson Water District (L TWO) met in regular session on 
Thursday, December 14, 2023. Attendance was as follows: 

Board of Directors: 
Emily McMurtrey, President, Present 
Steven Brandenburg, Present 
Larry Brandt, Present 
Ryan Heiland, Absent- Excused 
Ed Martens, Present 
Bill Szmyd, Present 
James J. Walker, Present 

Staff in Attendance: 
Amber Kauffman, District Manager 
Angela Diekhoff, Business Manager 
Brad E. Eaton, District Engineer 
Nancy Koch, Water Resources Manager 
Ken Lambrecht, Operations Manager 
Kam my K. Tinney, Business Project Manager 
Judy O'Malley, Recording Secretary 

Other Attendees: 
Clayton Orback, Little Thompson Water District Engineering Technician I 
Kristin Galliher, WildRock PR and Marketing, CEO and Founder - Attended via Video Conference 
Call 
Annika Deming, WildRock PR and Marketing, Associate Account Director Attended via Video 
Conference Call 
Anastasia Urban, Barefoot LLC 
Cameron Grant, Attorney of Lyons Gaddis P.C. 

CALL TO ORDER 
President Emily McMurtrey called the meeting to order at 5:04 p.m. followed by the recitation of 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 

ROLL CALL 
It was moved by President McMurtrey, seconded by Director Ed Martens, to excuse the 
absence of Director Ryan Heiland. Motion carried unanimously. 

Roll call was taken. All other Directors were present. 

AGENDA REVIEW 
It was moved by Director Bill Szmyd, seconded by Director Martens, to table Agenda Item 
6.4 Potential Non-Potable Use of Native Ditch Shares until the January 18, 2024, Regular 
Board Meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

It was move by Director Szmyd, seconded by Director Steve Brandenburg, to enter into 
Executive Session citing Colorado Revised Statutes (CRS) §24-6-404(4) subpart (e) to 
determine positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, or to develop 
strategy for negotiations, and instructing negotiators in the matter of the Barefoot Second 
Amended and Restated Agreement for Water Extensions, and CRS §24-6-404(4) subpart (f) 
to discuss personnel matters District Manager's annual review. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

5 



PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
President McMurtrey opened the Public Comments period. Ms. Anastasia Urban, of Barefoot 
LLC, and Mr. Cameron Grant, of Lyons Gaddis P.C., introduced themselves. There being no 
further public comments, the Public Comments period was closed. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
It was moved by Director Martens, seconded by Director Szmyd, to approve the Consent 
Agenda, including: 
• Minutes of the November 16, 2023, Regular Board Meeting,
• Tap List 695,
• November 2023 Disbursements in the amount $3,226,418.21:

❖ Operating Account: $2,812,210.70:
• ACH Manual Check Numbers 4993 to 5091 - $1,854,493.24,
• Check Numbers 11581  to 11646- $957,717.46,

❖ Payroll Account: (Two Bi-weekly payroll periods in November) for $414,207.51:
• Live Checks 2126 to 2161 - $64,845.23
• ACH Transmittal Vouchers 0-2401 to 0-2412 - $179,326.71,
• ACH Direct Deposit Numbers N-13101 to N-13177 - $170,035.57,

• November 2023 Financial Report,
Motion carried unanimously.

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

WildRock Biannual Check-In: 
Kristin Galliher, WildRock PR and Marketing, CEO and Founder and Annika Deming, WildRock 
PR and Marketing, Associate Account Director presented the following information to the Board: 

• In January, WildRock and District Staff met for a strategy session to discuss
communications for 2023.
❖ A 2023 marketing and communication strategy to outline goals, communication

channels, audiences and key messages was developed.
❖ The plan for 2023 was a two-pronged approach:

• Build a solid foundation.
• Engage in enhanced communication efforts.
◊ Produce communication materials that successfully reach a diverse and widespread

customer base to educate them on key issues and programs.
◊ Increase customer participation in conservation efforts, specifically the EyeOnWater

(EOW) app, to ultimately decrease water usage and demands on infrastructure.
◊ Reduce District Staff time dedicated to communication efforts so focus can be

redirected to more pressing district initiatives.
• Communication Channels:

◊ Many of the channels Wild Rock utilized in 2023 were already in place for the
District.

◊ Instead of adding new channels and creating overwhelm, WildRock focused on
optimizing and building these key channels allowing WildRock to focus on aligning
channels with customer preferences and alleviated staff time.

• Communication Efforts This Year:
❖ As part of the monthly retainer, WildRock supported with the following efforts:

• Monthly social media content plus daily community management.
■ Quarterly Facebook ad campaigns, digital and print newsletters, and postcards.

6 



❖ WildRock also supported with additional one-time projects including:
• Light brand refresh.
■ Email marketing setup.
■ Template development.
■ Asset library build.
• Light website refresh plus ongoing jumbotron creation.
• Taste and Odor crisis communication plan.
• Holding statements for key issues (Fluoride, Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC), Town of

Milliken).
❖ Topics Covered This Year:

■ Key topics were communicated across a variety of marketing channels:
◊ Rates.
◊ Allocation education.
◊ EyeOnWater.
◊ Online bill pay signup.
◊ Conservation programs.
◊ Water saving tips.
◊ Winter preparation.
◊ Irrigation tips.
◊ Employee spotlights.
◊ Water Shortage.
◊ Contingency Action Plan.
◊ Giveaways.
◊ Water Quality.
◊ Water treatment education.
◊ Board of Directors election.
◊ Taste and odor.

❖ Metrics and Performance:
• WildRock developed the following metrics to evaluate the effectiveness of their efforts:

◊ Facebook Impressions - up 3.359 percent.
◊ Facebook Engagement Rate - up 4.32 percent.
◊ Facebook Fan Growth - up 728 users.
◊ Digital Ads Click-through Rate - up 5.86 percent.
◊ Email Open Rate - up 40 percent.
◊ Email Click Rate - up 4 percent.
◊ Website Users - down 5 percent.
◊ EyeOnWater New Users - up 642 users.

❖ 2024 COMMUNICATIONS:
• WildRock will continue to work with the District for another year as they continue to

grow and refine the communication efforts.
• The 2024 proposal maintains the current level of services which includes:

◊ Social media management.
◊ Digital advertising.
◊ Quarterly digital and print newsletters, and postcards.
◊ Ongoing of-the-moment support, they will be available for whatever the District

needs.
• WildRock is currently working to refresh the 2023 strategy to map out efforts for 2024.

7 



Brookfield Term Sheet: 
Brookfield Properties Project Manager Anastasia Urban presented following information to the 
Board: 
• District Staff and representatives of Barefoot, LLC (Brookfield Properties) have been working

through revisions to the Second Amended and Restated Agreement for Water Extensions for
most of 2023.
❖ A significant point of discussion for revisions to the Agreement centered around the sizing

of the West lnterstate-25 (1 -25) Transmission Line and the costs associated with oversizing
from an 1 8-inch to 24-inch transmission line, and now from a 24-inch to 30- inch
transmission line.

• An overview of the current project south of Ronald Reagan Boulevard (Blvd.) and planned
future project north of Ronald Reagan Blvd.
❖ North of Ronald Reagan Blvd. could possibly include apartments, Build-to-Rent (BTRs)

units, townhouses, and a school.
• Brookfield and the District have had a great partnership on the following projects:

❖ Windy Gap Lease / Purchase Agreement - 2005.
❖ Partner in Chimney Hollow Reservoir.
❖ Water Rights Exchange I Lake Management Agreement.
❖ Amendment to increase cap on Single Family Equivalent (SFE) taps to 1 ,700 - May 2023.
❖ Tri-Party agreement lease to allow up to 2,041 SFE's - August 2023.

• One of the primary goals of the restated Agreement is to cull all of the previous Agreements
and addendums into one updated document with all of the current terms.
❖ The original size of the transmission line was 1 8-inches.
❖ Some of the property owners that were to provide reimbursement to Brookfield have

changed.
❖ Construction costs have increased greatly.

• As part of continued negotiations to conclude revisions to the Agreement, Barefoot LLC is
seeking a commitment on the business terms for reimbursement of the oversizing.
❖ Major business terms Brookfield is asking for include:

■ Rebate for 24-lnch Line.
◊ $ 1 000 per tap after 1 ,20P1 tap in Barefoot.

■ Reimbursement for Oversizing to a 30-inch Line.
◊ Interest rate of 6 percent.
◊ Reimbursement through District Plant Investment Fees (PIF) from properties

outside of Barefoot Lakes of $2000 in 2024 and $3000 in 2025.
◊ 1 0-year recovery review provision.
◊ Other benefiting properties reimbursement.

■ Windy Gap Water Payments.
◊ On-going commitment and clarification on costs.

■ Timing:
◊ Upon approval and signing of the formal agreement a Construction Manager at Risk

(CMAR) contract will be formulated within 30 days.

The Board posed questions throughout the presentation however the main part of the discussion 
was held during Agenda Item 3. 1 Executive Session CRS §24-6-404(4) subpart (e) to determine 
positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, or to develop strategy for 
negotiations, and instructing negotiators in the matter of the Barefoot Second Amended and 
Restated Agreement for Water Extensions. 

8 



Public Hearing Action Item: Motion to Approve: Resolution 2023-32 Mill Levy Certification: 
Business Manager Angela Diekhoff requested the Board approve Resolution 2023-32 to certify 
the Mill Levies from Larimer, Weld, and Boulder Counties at $0. 

It was moved by Director Brandenburg, seconded by Director Larry Brandt, to adopt 
Resolution 2023-32 Certifying the County Mill Levies at $0. Motion passed unanimously. 

President McMurtrey called for a break at 6:00 p.m. The meeting resumed at 6:09 p.m. 

Handy Ditch Update: 
Water Resources Manager Nancy Koch presented the following information to the Board: 
• The District completed its Engineering Report and Proposed Decree to change the use of 58 

Handy Ditch (Handy) shares owned by the District in October.
❖ As required, the District submitted the information to Handy for review under the Catlin

Provision.
• The District is required to pay for Handy to review these documents to determine if the

District's proposal to change the use of its ditch shares will cause injury to the other
stockholders.

• The District met with the Handy Ditch Board, Engineer, and Counsel to discuss what issues
are to be addressed in the Catlin Review and subsequent water court proceedings.

• Key takeaways from the meeting are:
❖ The Handy has requested the District will provide a deposit of $65,000 to the company to

review the District's engineering and proposed decree and identify if the use of the
changed shares could negatively affect the remaining shareholders. Handy will not spend
the deposit to advance methodologies or conclusions that are counter to the District's
Engineering Report or Proposed Decree regarding the yield of Handy shares changed for
municipal use.

❖ Handy will concentrate its Catlin Review of an Operations Agreement that would allow the
District to take delivery of its changed water at Welch Reservoir.

❖ Handy has filed in water court for a junior water right to supplement the water supplies
available to the existing Welch Reservoir and a planned enlargement of the reservoir.

❖ The District reaffirmed its position that any increase of yield from the junior water right and
the enlarged Welch Reservoir should be distributed to the shareholders in the form of
additional water on a pro-rata basis.

• President McMurtrey questioned what the District's next steps are; Ms. Koch advised the
District will pay the deposit and begin working through the operations agreement and at a
point Handy will be ready for the District to take the case to Water Court.

Discussion followed regarding the effects raising Handy Ditch 's dam will have on the District's 
plans for the new pump station, how Handy Ditch is trying to do their best for all shareholders, 
Water Resources Administrator Hoff attends all of the Handy Ditch meetings at their invitation, 
and there is no change case precedent on Handy Ditch . 

Review of 2023 District Accomplishments: 
District Manager Amber Kauffman presented the following information to the Board: 
• Significant accomplishments are listed below:

❖ Four great new employees.
❖ Successful dam inspection at Dry Creek Reservoir.
❖ Updated Section Three of Rules and Regulations for new taps approved by the board.

9 



❖ Updated rate study with updated capital costs for future / in-progress projects.
❖ Success with WildRock with the new marketing material and higher engagement than

previously seen with newsletters and social media.
❖ Hiring of a new auditor, successful timely filing of audit.
❖ Purchases of water (1 1 shares of Home Supply, one Windy Gap unit).
❖ Three party lease agreement with Barefoot, Central Weld County Water District (CWCWD)

and the District.
❖ Progress with Brookfield on an updated agreement.
❖ Signed Aurora Organic Dairy (AOD) agreements (and signs of progress on their

obligations).
❖ Return flow Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the City of Loveland (Loveland),

and the Towns of Berthoud (Berthoud) and Johnstown (Johnstown), and the District.
• There was significant progress with Loveland in this regard.

❖ A new water right approved by the Board for dedication - Big Thompson Ditch and
Manufacturing Company (BTDMC).

❖ More engagement in the Northern Colorado Water Alliance group.
❖ Updated "all-in" costs for the District's native waters to proceed into a source.
❖ Continued inclusion / exclusions at a level much higher than historically done.
❖ Dealing with our customers' impact with Millikan's boil order.
❖ Regular meetings with Berthoud.
❖ Completed the Twin Mounds Tank project, West First Street project, Larimer County

Roads (LCR) 8 and 21 project, and the Weld County Road (WCR) 54 Bridge Waterline
Relocation Project.

❖ Upgraded the Dry Creek Reservoir water quality monitoring station and completed
increased testing of water quality at Dry Creek.

• The 2023 goals are listed below with updates as to the completion status.
❖ Raw Water Supply Planning:

• Handy Ditch shares into Water Court - Expected early 2024, Catlin submitted
November 2023.

• Easement acquisition for delivery of native water to Dry Creek Reservoir - Notice of
project to property owners delivered, flight of survey area using Light Detection and
Ranging (LiDAR) completed week of December 4, 2023.

■ Dry Creek Reservoir Management Plan and feasibility for floating solar - Initial study
done, floating solar kickoff meeting held in November, site visit scheduled for
December 1 3, 2023.

■ Non-residential tap research for water allotment assignment - Draft of letter for
notification to Tapholders in review by Staff, information summarized in table for
implementation.

❖ Treatment and Transmission:
■ Master Plan progress with accurate cal ibration using updated fire hydrant data - 95

percent of data sent to consulting engineer, meeting with consultant on December 6,
2023, to advance their work.

■ Determination of necessary long term treatment capacity and priority locations - Will
follow Master Plan.

■ Two transmission lines under construction - Easement acquisition taking much longer
than expected for the Northeast Transmission Line, Brookfield Agreement held up Wes
of 1 -25 line.

❖ Relationships with Others:
■ A successful Joint Board meeting with CWCWD - CWCWD to identify available dates

in February 2024.

1 0  



■ Resume and maintain regular Manager Meetings with Carter Lake Filter Plant (CLFP)
Manager Rich Whittet and CWCWD District Manager Stan Linker - Began more
regular meetings.

■ Update the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Johnstown - Waiting on
Johnstown.

■ Update the IGA with Longs Peak Water District (LPWD) and the town of Mead (Mead)
after the transition of ownership in Mead Crossing - Waiting on piping change cost
estimate, construction and resulting IGA likely early 2024.

❖ Business Management:
■ Third Party Human Resources (HR) services - Not recommended by Employers'

Council - completed.
■ Adjust rates after recommendations of rate study are presented - completed.
■ Implement reverse notification system - completed.
■ Update Employee Handbook - Significant progress made, likely to be presented to the

Board in February 2024.
■ Email bills - Staff have not found one clearing house for the service without changing

software.
■ Rewrite Sections 8 (Main Line Extensions) and 9 (Easements) of District Rules and

Regulations - In process, working toward a development agreement (nearly finalized
with counsel review).

■ Research census data to "know our customers" - completed.
■ Develop metrics to improve processes - In process / on-going, significant progress

made in the following: commitment letter, water dedication, and water credit.
■ Complete staffing analysis and plan for the next 1 0  years - completed.

❖ Operations and Technology:
■ Complete Global Positioning System (GPS) of cross-country lines - 80 percent

complete, data from 2021 is missing.
■ Develop telemetry upgrade plan and begin implementation - completed.
■ Create database for Lead Service Line Inventory - Policy published September 1 1 ,

2023, in progress.
■ Update Lead and Copper sample site list - Policy published September 1 1 , 2023, by

the State of Colorado, in progress.
■ All Operations Staff (not currently at Distribution 4) to level up one Distribution level

(Big Goal) - Not likely to happen, still trying.
■ Complete first cycle of valve exercising - District will be close, goal impacted by staffing

change.

District Goals and Objectives for 2024: 
District Manager Kauffman presented the following information to the Board: 
• In early 2022 the Board and Staff reviewed relevant planning documents for amending the

201 8 Strategic Plan priorities and came up with the following goals for the District in the three
to five-year horizon:
❖ In three years have a plan for the growth of staff and the necessary office space for those

staff.
■ Also consider whether the District will have its own water treatment plant at the same

location.
■ Determine what that location will be.

❖ Have native waters used in the system.
■ This includes the easement acquisition, infrastructure construction, and substitute

water supply plan approved for Consolidated Home Supply shares.

1 1



❖ Plan, document, and begin implementation for use of our wholly consumable waters at St.
Vrain Water Authority (SVWA).

❖ Evaluate, discuss, and recommend other waters suitable for dedication or purchase,
treatment, and delivery.
• Other waters do not include ones currently accepted such as Consolidated Home

Supply, Handy, or Colorado-Big Thompson (C-BT).
• The 2022 Strategic Plan update defined a vision to ensure the resiliency of the District by

prioritizing initiatives and therefore allocating resources, both personnel and budget, to
achieve short- and long-term goals that promote these initiatives.

• The Board also identified the following priorities when making decisions, some are reflected in
the goals above:
❖ Raw Water Supply Planning:

• Water loss progress with potential projects, update in policy.
◊ New Water Supplies presentations with potential policy updates.
◊ Raw water master plan.

❖ Treatment and Transmission:
• Master plan completion.
• Project long-term treatment capacity need and priority locations.
• Markham Tank planning.
• Progress for two treated transmission lines and two native water pipeline projects.

❖ Relationships with Others:
■ A successful Joint Board meeting with CWCWD.
• Update the IGA with LPWD and Mead after transition of ownership in Mead Crossing.

❖ Business Management:
• Finalize a Development Agreement for use with Developers.
• Prioritize long-term projects and evaluate funding options.
• Assignment of allotments to all residential taps for implementation of surcharges in

2025.
■ Continue with non-residential allotment assignment.

❖ Operations and Technology:
• Determine size of office and land required for future growth.
• Update Safety Manual.
• Finish database for Lead Service Line Inventory prior to October 1 6, 2024.

CLFP: 
District Manager Kauffman presented the following information to the Board: 
• The performance of the removal of Upflow Clarifiers was not mentioned in the CLFP Board

Packet, however in the meeting it was discussed that it did not go well.
❖ The flock particles were too large and too fragile, the likely problem was determined to be

too much or too little contact time with the coagulant.
❖ The CLFP Board asked what needed to be done to correct the issue and CLFP Plant

Superintendent Darrell Larson stated that higher flows would help.
• Ms. Kauffman noted that the flows are lower in the winter.
• It was suggested that pilot testing with chemicals could resolve the problem.

❖ Good conversation was held about needing to test different options to be prepared to use
water from Dry Creek Reservoir in the spring and summer of 2024.

❖ CLFP Plant Manager Whittet was still being cautious about using Dry Creek Reservoir
water but he cannot start until they have the one Million Gallon per Day (MGD) pump.

1 2



❖ Director Szmyd noted that the District will continue to receive Taste and Odor comments
from customers as the Dry Creek Reservoir water will always be different than the Carter
Lake water.

• Director Brandenburg noted that during the CLFP Board Meeting he brought up if the
conversion of the Old North Plant to increase contact time for water treatment would be of
benefit.
❖ It was decided that the benefit would be short-term and therefore the CLFP Board decided

not to move forward with the conversion at this time.
• Progress on the pretreatment plant was going well.

❖ Piping modifications had started to prepare piping connections for the new filters so the
plant will not need to be shut down during construction.

SVWA: 
District Manager Kauffman presented the following information to the Board: 
• The SVWA Board approved payment of the presented bills.
• The SVWA Board approved the Water Technology Group's Pump Maintenance Services

Agreement and the Automation and Electronics, lnc.'s Brine Disposal Injection Pump Station
Control Services Agreement.

• A step test was performed on the injection well and it passed.
❖ SVWA Staff are waiting for approval from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).
❖ Director Martens suggested SVWA injects chlorine dioxide into the well to keep it clean.

Windy Gap Firming Project Quarterly Update: 
District Manager Kauffman presented the following information to the Board: 
• Colorado River Connectivity Channel (CRCC):

❖ The Windy Gap reservoir will begin filling the week of December 1 1 , 2023, for the State
Engineer to certify that the dam is safe.
• The filling will be accomplished in approximately seven days.
• The water will be held for one month for monitoring and then some water will be

released to accommodate ice impacts for the winter.
❖ Most of the plants in the new channel have been installed and fencing set up to protect the

vegetation susceptible to damage by animals.
• The team at Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District (Northern) and CEI are

preparing for a large runoff next spring / summer based on the El Nino condition and
the full reservoirs.

• Chimney Hollow:
❖ The current dam height is 1 53 feet from the downstream toe.

■ It is expected that the dam will reach the midpoint in height in the upcoming months,
thereby requiring a payment to the Grand Foundation as a part of the settlement.

• There is only 60 feet of plinth remaining to be constructed for the dam foundation near
the left abutment failure.

❖ The pipe for the valve house arrived on site without the appropriate heat treatment for the
welds.
• The heat treatment was conducted onsite.

❖ The inlet / outlet tunnel is making significant progress with the new road-header on site for
the excavation of the upstream portion of the tunnel.

❖ The old road-header was not working well, and the crews had been using drill and blast
methods until November 27, 2023.

1 3



❖ The downstream tunnel has completed approximately 1 00 feet of reinforced concrete liner
and is placing approximately 25 feet every 1 0  days.

Public Hearing: Action Item: Resolution 2023-33 Inclusions and 2023-34 Exclusions 
President McMurtrey opened the Public Hearing. There were no public comments, and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 

It was moved by Director Szmyd, seconded by Director Brandt, to adopt Resolution 2023-
33 Inclusion (Eggebrecht/Abbott) and Resolution 2023-34 Exclusions (HT Land Partners, 
Tri Pointe Homes Holdings). Motion Carried unanimously. 

President McMurtrey called for a second break at 7 : 1 0  p.m. The meeting resumed at 7: 1 8  p.m. 

STAFF REPORTS 

District Manager's Report: District Manager Kauffman reported on the fol lowing: 
• District Activities:

❖ On November 1 7, 2023, the office closed early for the District Holiday Lunch at The Boot
Bar and Grill.
■ The weather was beautiful , and Staff were able to hang out on the balcony for the

afternoon.
❖ Ms. Kauffman attended the NoCo Water Alliance Meeting on November 1 7, 2023.

■ A presentation by Northern staff was given regarding the native waters in the local area
that have been purchased by communities in the Denver metro region and potential
ways to discourage future purchases by those same communities.

■ Also discussed were status updates by all agencies and rate increase announcements.
■ Many communities are considering or implementing large rate increases to

accommodate impacts that growth has had.
❖ Ms. Kauffman met with CWCWD District Manager Linker for lunch on November 28, 2023.

■ I ssues common to the two districts and individual concerns were discussed.
■ Many topics were surrounded by Dry Creek Reservoir issues, including but not limited

to, solar feasibility study by the District , native water deliveries to Dry Creek Reservoir
and associated water quality issues, pumping from Dry Creek reservoir to assist with
water quality issues, pump and pipeline capacity issues during future canal shutdowns.

■ Additional topics included elevated disinfection biproduct test results, an updated
operating agreement for CLFP, and relocation of joint facilities with Colorado
Department of Transportation (COOT) improvements.

❖ Business Manager Angela Diekhoff, Operations Manager Ken Lambrecht, District
Engineer Brad E. Eaton, Business Project Manager Kammy K. Tinney, Water Resources
Administrator Amanda Hoff, and Ms. Kauffman went to an offsite leadership retreat on
Wednesday, November 29, 2023.
■ The retreat was hosted by the current Fire Chief of Elizabeth Fire District and his

division chief.
■ I t  was a half day of hearing how things can go terribly wrong and the ways to help

things go better.
■ It al l comes down to communication and management unity.

• CWCWD Joint Board meeting:
❖ Ms. Kauffman request Mr. Linker to present dates for a joint board meeting to poll both

boards.

1 4  



❖ Mr. Linker suggested dates in February 2024.
• Colorado Water Congress :

❖ The Colorado Water Congress Annual Convention will be held January 31 through
February 2 ,  2024, at the Hyatt Regency Aurora Convention Center.

❖ Ms. Kauffman requested Directors advise her if they wish to attend and Staff will have
them registered .

❖ The 2024 program will focus on risk, resilience, and growth.
• Anticipated January Board Meeting Topics:

❖ Non-Potable Operations Agreement .
❖ Development Agreement Template.

Business Manager's Report: Business Manager Diekhoff reported on the following: 
• Board :

❖ The Board members were given a choice of dates in January 2024 and asked to advise
Administrative Assistant Judy O'Malley their preferences for a Holiday Dinner.

• Eye on Water (EOW):
❖ District customers signing up for new EOW accounts continued to increase slightly.

• Other:
❖ President McMurtrey questioned what information is sent to new customers, including

renters.
• Ms . Diekhoff noted what information is included in a packet of information that is sent

and advised she is working on creating a separate packet for renters.
❖ Ms. Diekhoff advised the payment assistance program that covered Boulder, Larimer, and

Weld Counties has been discontinued .
❖ Ms. Diekhoff advised that emergency notifications for the District is now in place.

District Engineer's Report: District Engineer Eaton reported on the following: 
• There were four Tap Commitment Requests for October. The year-to-date total was 68.
• Capital Projects:

❖ With the Assistance of Business Project Manager Tinney, the land agents have acquired
an additional three easements for the Northeast Transmission Line.

❖ The Loveland / Campion project was progressing well.
• Staff were very pleased with the contractor_

❖ The 54 Bridge Waterline Relocation is going well, and the project is expected to be
completed by the end of 2023 .

❖ The Water System Master Plan is moving along.
• There will be regular meetings for updates and the plan should be completed in early

2024.
• Development Projects:

❖ Existing projects continued to enter different phases of acceptance.
• Other Engineering Department Activities:

❖ Engineering Staff remained busy with referrals ,  development projects, capital improvement
projects and the water court change case.

❖ Design coordination with COOT for their 1-25 Segment 5 Improvement Project (Highway 66
to Highway 56) with Staff supplying COOT with record drawings of existing infrastructure.
• The next coordination meeting was expected later in December and Staff were hoping

for more information regarding impacts and schedule .
❖ Discussion continued with Brookfield for construction of the West 1 -25 Transmission Line,

and funding of the required oversizing.

15 



■ Easement acquisition is complete except for final negotiations with two property
owners.

Water Resources Manager's Report: Water Resources Manager Nancy Koch reported on the 
following: 
• Water use for the month of November was very low.

❖ Water Resources Administrator Hoff was working with the Operations Department to
review the master meter data for accuracy.

• Water Resources Manager Koch will be submitting the bill for carryover water to Business
Manager Diekhoff.

• Ms. Koch noted that the 2023 - 2024 Water Year quota is at 50 percent and Northern will
delare a supplemental quota in April 2024.

• Water Court Change Cases Updates:
❖ Staff met with Home Supply and are moving forward with infrastructure design.
❖ Staff will monitor Johnstown's Home Supply change of use case to determine if a

settlement between Johnstown and the objectors affects its own Home Supply change
case.

❖ Firestone applied to the Water Court to use 6 wells for municipal use- 2 existing and 4
proposed. The judge dismissed the application for the 4 new wel ls.
■ The judge dismissed the case stating the two existing wel ls were enough.
■ Director Szmyd questioned if the wells were to be used to feed the SVWA and Ms.

Koch advised that they were.
• The seasonal outlook report predicted near normal temperatures and slightly above normal

precipitation.

Operations Manager's Report and Water Quality Update: Operations Manager Ken Lambrecht 
reported on the following: 
• Locate requests and leak repairs were both higher than average.
• Monthly Water Quality Report:

❖ Monthly Total Coliform samples were withing acceptable parameters.
❖ Disinfection Byproducts (DBP2) showed an increase in both the Total Trihalomethanes

(TTHMs) and the Haloacetic Acids Fives (HM5s) over the last six months, however, al l
results were below the Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL).
■ Mr. Lambrecht contacted CLFP and was advised they had to add additional chlorine to

the water.
• Project Updates and Notes:

❖ The antenna instal lation for the Telemetry Upgrades had been instal led at two sites.
❖ Staff are currently working to incorporate new radio signals into the existing Supervisory

Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system.
❖ Valve Exerciser Crew Leader Alan Cordova was able to return to the Valve Exercising

project.
• Operations Manager Lambrecht advised the Board that due to the Colorado Department of

Public Health and Environment (CDPHE) audit findings of two significant deficiencies and one
violation a letter had been sent to all District customers advising of the situation.
❖ Both deficiencies have been corrected.
❖ The violation was addressed as the Twin Mounds Five Million Gallon (MG) Tank was put

back into service and the Two MG Tank was drained so a Comprehensive Inspection
could be completed.

1 6



❖ The Comprehensive Inspection Report was submitted to CDPHE on November 28, 2023,
and Mr. Lambrecht was waiting for a response to the updates.

❖ Mr. Lambrecht noted there had been very few calls from customers about the letter.
■ Most of the calls were to thank the District for the information and communicating with

the customers.

Discussion followed regarding what the District can test for when receiving Taste and Odor calls, 
and what information the District provides to customers if they wish to have further testing 
completed themselves. 

DI RECTOR REPORTS 

• Director Brandenburg advised he has fully recovered from his injury.
• Director Walker advised he passed his last physical.
• Director Martens noted that he and Director Szmyd are experiencing some of the same issues

as the District with contractors not being able to complete work on their homes in a timely
manner.

• Director Brandt noted he had hail damage to his property and is still waiting for the repair work
to be completed.
❖ Mr. Brandt noted the people he speaks with on the phone understand what is needed for

the repair, however the people who come out to do the work do not bring the necessary
materials.

• President McMurtrey advised the Cities of Boulder (Boulder) and Lafayette (Lafayette) are
advertising for Ditch Rider and Operator positions.
❖ Ms. McMurtrey noted that Lafayette offers housing with the position.

Staff were excused from the Regular Meeting at 7:40 p.m. 

The Board went into Executive Session at 7:41 p.m. for C.R.S. §24-6-404(4) subpart (e) to 
determine positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiation or to develop strategy 
for negotiations and instructing negotiators to discuss Agenda Item 6.2 Brookfield Term Sheet. 
The Board left the Executive Session for Agenda I tem 6.2 at 8:42 p.m. 

The Board went into a second Executive Session at 8:43 p.m. for C.R.S. §24-6-404(4) subpart (f) 
to discuss personnel matters - District Manager Kauffman's Annual Review. The Board left the 
second Executive Session at 9:23 p.m. 

It was moved by Director Szmyd, seconded by President McMurtrey, to adjourn the 
meeting at 9:24 p.m. Motion carried unanimously. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Amber Kauffman 

1 7



Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 18, 2024 
Item: 5.2 
Staff:   Amber Kauffman, District Manager; Holly Suess, Conservation Specialist; Judy O’Malley, 
Administrative Assistant 

Subject: Tap List 696 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval. 

Discussion: 
TAP LIST 696 ~ NEW AND AMENDED CONTRACTS 

TAP # NAME 5/8-inch 
MINI 

5/8-inch 
URBAN 

5/8-inch 
STANDARD 

OTHER WATER 
RIGHTS 

CIL 

10330 Timothy and Elizabeth Harris X .70 AF 
10331 Landsea Homes X .35 AF 
10332 Landsea Homes X .35 AF 
10333 Barefoot LLC X .35 AF 
10334 Barefoot LLC X .35 AF 
10335 Barefoot LLC X .35 AF 
10336 Barefoot LLC X .35 AF 
10337 Barefoot LLC X .35 AF 
10338 Barefoot LLC X .35 AF 
10339 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10340 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10341 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10342 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10343 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10344 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF  
10345 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10346 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF  
10347 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10348 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10349 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10350 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10351 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10352 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10353 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10354 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10355 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10356 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10357 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10358 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10359 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10360 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10361 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10362 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10363 Richmond American Homes X .35 AF 
10364 Karma and Kumari Bhotia X .70 AF 
10365 Lennar X .35 AF 
10366 Lennar X .35 AF 
10367 Lennar X .35 AF
10368 Lennar X .35 AF
10369 Lennar X .35 AF
10370 Lennar X .35 AF 
10371 Lennar X .35 AF 
10372 Barefoot LLC X .70 AF 
10373 Thomas Reynolds X .70 AF 
1074 Sanchez Porters CO X .70 AF 

10375 Thomas and Rita Sakowica X .70 AF 
10376 Novak Family Revocable Trust X .70 AF 

 
 
 

18



Page 2 of 2 

TAP LIST 696 ~ NEW AND AMENDED CONTRACTS (CONTINUED) 
TAP # NAME 5/8-inch 

MINI 
5/8-inch 
URBAN 

5/8-inch 
STANDARD 

OTHER WATER 
RIGHTS 

CIL 

10377 
RH Amen Farms LLC 

5/8-inch 
Irrigation 

.70 AF 

10378 Lennar X  .35 AF
10379 HCR Investments LLC X .70 AF 
10380 HCR Investments LLC X .70 AF 
10381 Brian and Rebecca Wilcox X .70 AF 
10382 Phillip and Julie Link X .70 AF 
10383 John and Elizabeth Hunter X  .70 AF

10384 
Kenneth Murawski and Katherine 
Caufield 

X  .70 AF

10385 
Kenneth Murawski and Katherine 
Caufield 

X  .70 AF

10386 
Kenneth Murawski and Katherine 
Caufield 

X .60 AF .10 AF 

10387 David and Angela Bromlely X .70 AF 

5/8-inch 
MINI 

5/8-inch 
URBAN 

5/8-inch 
STANDARD 

OTHER WATER 
RIGHTS 

CIL 

DECEMBER 2023 TOTALS 0 41 16 1 19.15 AF 7.1 AF 
YEAR-TO-DATE 2023 TOTALS 0 239 44 7 109.50 AF 11.35 AF 
TAPS BUDGETED 2023 0 220 5 

Tap Commitments Balance 
Taps with Water Rights Satisfied/Water Dedications 52 
Dormant Taps 5 
Total Other Tap Commitments 57 

MISC. RECEIVABLES
TAP # NOTES ACCESSORY 

DWELLINGS 
UPSIZED 

TAPS 
ADDITIONAL 
ALLOCATION 

CIL 

4139  1 .10 AF 
1792  1 .10 AF 
8043 Additional Water  1 .12 AF
5003  1 .35 AF 
9827  1 .10 AF 
3709  1 .10 AF 

621 and 
2083 

Additional Water - Aurora Dairy 1 5 AF 

 

ACCESSORY 
DWELLINGS 

UPSIZED 
TAPS 

ADDITIONAL 
ALLOCATION 

CIL 

DECEMBER 2023 TOTALS 5 0 2 5.87 AF 
YEAR-TO-DATE 2023 TOTALS 7 3 3 9.24 AF 

19



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 18, 2024 

Item: 5.3 Disbursements 

Staff:   Angela Diekhoff, Business Manager 

Subject: December 2023 Disbursements. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval. 

December 2023 Disbursements 
Request approval of the December 2023 Cash Disbursements in the amount 
of $5,980,084.55. 

Operating Account: $5,655,318.60 
ACH Manual Check Numbers 5092 to 5165 – $5,109,643.31. 
Check Numbers 11647 to 11686– $545,675.29. 

Payroll Account: $324,765.95 (Two bi-weekly payroll periods paid in December) 
ACH Transmittal Vouchers 2413 to 2424 – $165,704.92. 
ACH Direct Deposit Numbers 13178 to 13254– $159,061.03. 

Discussion: 
All expenses are for normal operating costs, except for $197,838.61 for Loan 
Payments, $4,969,266.50 for Capital Cost – District, and $67,459.19 for Capital Cost – 
Joint. 

20



Little Thompson Water District
Cash Disbursements Summary

Check Issue Dates: 12/01/2023 to 12/31/2023
Employee Related Expenses 324,765.95$  
Capital Cost-District 4,969,266.50$  
2017 Signature Loan Interest 197,838.61$  
Filter Plant Ops Expense 127,698.48$  
Legal Expenses 75,791.41$  
Capital Cost-Joint 67,459.19$  
Dry Creek Reservoir Expense 58,050.11$  
Tap Relocations 22,597.50$  
Sys Repairs 21,384.90$  
Service Contracts 16,759.98$  
O & M  15,430.89$  
Storage Tank Maintenance 10,550.00$  
Adams Credit Card- Office Sup-$203; Seminars-$(215);Bld/Grnds-$445;Office Exp-$3402;Uniforms-$136;Communications-
$105;Safety-$55;Veh-$1752; Capital-$359;Misc-$2721

8,997.64$  

St. Vrain Authority 7,745.43$  
Vehicle Expenses 6,828.83$  
Office Expenses 5,769.59$  
Water Quality 5,578.00$  
Communication Expenses 4,143.67$  
Operations - Utilities 3,843.84$  
Public Relations 3,800.00$  
Bldg/Grnds 3,501.57$  
Firestone Surcharge Fee 2,936.14$  
Fire Hyd Meter Deposits 2,640.00$  
Insurance-Worker Compensation 2,498.00$  
Uniforms Expenses 2,015.41$  
Landscaping Incentives 1,801.94$  
Travel & Lodging 1,600.70$  
Routine Repairs 1,577.50$  
Locate Expense 1,563.48$  
24 Brookfield WL Passthrough 1,375.28$  
Engr/CAD/Prof Expenses 1,155.00$  
GIS 960.00$  
Safety Expenses 840.62$  
Inventory 680.00$  
PRV Routine Repairs 301.52$  
Insurance-Property & Casualty 224.75$  
Purchased Water Expenses 112.12$  
Total 5,980,084.55$  

21



Little Thompson Water District
 Cash Disbursements Detail 

Check Issue Dates: 12/01/2023 to 12/31/2023
Operations

Check 
Number

Check Issue 
Date Payee Description Amount

5138 12/15/2023 Platte River Power Authority Capital Expenses-District-Water Rights - Other $       4,500,000.00

11666 12/13/2023 Timber Wolf Excavating LLC Capital Cost-District-Loveland/Campion Conversion $           351,133.13

5096 12/1/2023 Signature Public Funding 2017 Signature Loan Interest $           197,838.61

5103 12/14/2023 Carter Lake Filter Plant Filter Plant Ops Expense $           127,698.48

5152 12/29/2023 Handy Ditch Company Legal Expenses $             67,178.25

11679 12/28/2023 Herbert E&I, LLC Telemetry Improvements $             63,253.14

11677 12/28/2023 Gopher Excavation Inc Dry Creek Reservoir Expense $             55,549.11

5149 12/29/2023 Carter Lake Filter Plant Capital Cost-Joint-CLFP Vehicles & Equipment $             40,658.57

5104 12/14/2023 Carter Lake Filter Plant Capital Cost-Joint-Pretreatment Construction $             26,800.62

5125 12/14/2023 Orback Construction Tap Relocations $             22,597.50

11662 12/13/2023 Security and Sound Design Inc. Capital Cost-District-Office Upgrade-Fire Alarm Sys $             16,264.50

5109 12/14/2023 CR LAND SERVICES, LLC Capital Cost-District-Northeast Transmission Line $             15,640.00

5129 12/14/2023 Stratus Information Systems (ITX) O & M  $             13,999.34

11685 12/28/2023 St Vrain Companies Inc. Sys Repairs $             12,000.00

11653 12/13/2023 Gopher Excavation Inc Storage Tank Maintenance $             10,550.00

5117 12/14/2023 INFOSEND INC Service Contracts $               9,440.36

5095 12/4/2023 Adams Bank MasterCard
Adams Credit Card- Office Sup-$203; Seminars-$(215);Bld/Grnds-
$445;Office Exp-$3402;Uniforms-$136;Communications-
$105;Safety-$55;Veh-$1752; Capital-$359; Misc-$2721

$               8,997.64

11663 12/13/2023 St. Vrain Water Authority St. Vrain Authority $               7,745.43

5120 12/14/2023 Landmark EPC LLC Capital Cost-District-Loveland/Campion Conversion $               6,512.75

5128 12/14/2023 Snowmelt Water Engineering, LLC Capital Expenses-District-Water Rights Consulting $               6,075.00

5165 12/29/2023 WEX Bank Vehicle Expenses $               5,966.90

11675 12/28/2023 Ditesco Capital Cost-District-3rd & Welker Waterline Replace $               5,850.00

5163 12/29/2023 Timber Line Electric & Control Service Contracts $               5,650.00

5151 12/29/2023 Dana Kepner Company Inc Water Quality $               5,013.00

5102 12/14/2023 Carlson Hammond & Paddock Legal Expenses $               4,711.46

5133 12/14/2023 WildRock PR & Marketing, LLC Public Relations $               3,800.00

5121 12/14/2023 Loveland Barricade Sys Repairs $               3,595.50

11664 12/13/2023 Starr & Westbrook PC Office Expenses $               3,529.00

22



Check 
Number

Check Issue 
Date Payee Description Amount

11668 12/13/2023 Town of Firestone Firestone Surcharge Fee $               2,936.14

5139 12/19/2023 PINNACOL Insurance-Worker Compensation $               2,498.00

11654 12/13/2023 JERIK MCCUNE & RACQUEL MCCUNE Capital Cost-District-Northeast Transmission Line $               2,358.48

5157 12/22/2023 Landmark EPC LLC Capital Cost-District-54 Bridge-Waterline Relocation $               2,073.50

5124 12/14/2023 On-Demand Concrete Sys Repairs $               2,028.41

11682 12/28/2023 PERFECT PATCH ASPHALT Fire Hyd Meter Deposits $               1,938.00

11667 12/13/2023 TJ STECK Travel & Lodging $               1,600.70

11652 12/13/2023 Custom Coatings Routine Repairs $               1,577.50

5131 12/14/2023 UNCC Locate Expense $               1,563.48

5148 12/29/2023 Carlson Hammond & Paddock Legal Expenses $               1,543.00

5135 12/14/2023 Poudre Valley REA Operations - Utilities $               1,533.84

5142 12/26/2023 XCEL Energy Bldg/Grnds $               1,436.90

5146 12/28/2023 Poudre Valley REA Operations - Utilities $               1,425.06

11673 12/28/2023 Colorado Analytical Dry Creek Reservoir Expense $               1,376.00

5132 12/14/2023 Western States Land Services LLC 24 Brookfield WL Passthrough $               1,375.28

5158 12/29/2023 Loveland Barricade Sys Repairs $               1,346.50

5134 12/14/2023 WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES Engr/CAD/Prof Expenses $               1,155.00

5122 12/14/2023 Loveland Ready Mix Concrete Inc. Sys Repairs $               1,129.50

5105 12/14/2023 Carter Lake Filter Plant Dry Creek Reservoir Expense $               1,125.00

5113 12/14/2023 Frontier Business Products Service Contracts $               1,063.62

5119 12/14/2023 John Deere Financial Uniforms Expenses $               1,063.06

5141 12/22/2023 AT&T Mobility Communication Expenses $               1,047.74

5114 12/14/2023 Handy Ditch Company Legal Expenses $               1,001.50

5116 12/14/2023 IMEG GIS $  960.00

5092 12/4/2023 Verizon Wireless Communication Expenses $  932.99

11659 12/13/2023 Reporter Herald Office Expenses $  914.95

11669 12/13/2023 Waas Campbell Rivera Johnson & Velasquez Legal Expenses $  786.00

5108 12/14/2023 Core & Main LP Sys Repairs $  775.33

5112 12/14/2023 Ferguson Waterworks O & M  $  755.55

11672 12/28/2023 BROTHERS EXCAVATING Fire Hyd Meter Deposits $  702.00

5110 12/14/2023 Dana Kepner Company Inc Inventory $  680.00

5143 12/27/2023 Verizon Wireless Communication Expenses $  673.47

23



Check 
Number

Check Issue 
Date Payee Description Amount

5107 12/14/2023 Cintas Corporation #737 Bldg/Grnds 670.11$  

11684 12/28/2023 Security and Sound Design Inc. Service Contracts 606.00$  

5150 12/29/2023 Cintas Corporation #737 Safety Expenses 603.65$  

11650 12/13/2023 Colorado Rural Water Assoc. Office Expenses 600.00$  

5162 12/29/2023 Rocky Mtn Quick Lube Vehicle Expenses 586.29$  

5159 12/29/2023 Lowe's Business Acct/GECRB Bldg/Grnds 581.56$  

11660 12/13/2023 ROBERT OR DOREENE KEEP Landscaping Incentives 575.00$  

11676 12/28/2023 FABIO LUIZ RODRIGUES DINIZ Landscaping Incentives 575.00$  

11674 12/28/2023 Consolidated Home Supply Ditch Legal Expenses 571.20$  

5111 12/14/2023 Eurofins Eaton Analytical Inc Water Quality 565.00$  

5099 12/7/2023 Poudre Valley REA Operations - Utilities 519.61$  

5098 12/5/2023 Verizon Wireless Communication Expenses 412.24$  

5155 12/29/2023 Jax Outdoor Gear Uniforms Expenses 400.66$  

11657 12/13/2023 MICHAEL OR APRIL GRUBER Landscaping Incentives 400.00$  

11651 12/13/2023 Crystal Landscape Supplies Inc Sys Repairs 398.93$  

5153 12/29/2023 Home Depot Credit Services O & M  389.46$  

5097 12/5/2023 CenturyLink Communication Expenses 379.99$  

5100 12/7/2023 COMCAST Communication Expenses 359.57$  

5093 12/4/2023 Verizon Wireless Communication Expenses 337.67$  

11665 12/13/2023 Stone Heating and Air, LLC Bldg/Grnds 330.00$  

5144 12/27/2023 United Power Inc Operations - Utilities 308.79$  

11649 12/13/2023 Chambers Plumbing & Heating Bldg/Grnds 265.50$  

5115 12/14/2023 Home Depot Credit Services PRV Routine Repairs 259.30$  

11658 12/13/2023 Prairie Mountain Media Office Expenses 258.68$  

5118 12/14/2023 Jax Outdoor Gear Safety Expenses 236.97$  

5147 12/29/2023 Bomgaars Supply Uniforms Expenses 229.63$  

5126 12/14/2023 Sam's Club Office Expenses 229.24$  

5154 12/29/2023 InfoArmor, Inc. Insurance-Property & Casualty 224.75$  

5160 12/29/2023 Napa Auto Parts Vehicle Expenses 203.88$  

11655 12/13/2023 JULIE OR RONALD SCHROEDER Landscaping Incentives 176.94$  

5123 12/14/2023 Lowe's Business Acct/GECRB O & M  176.57$  

5156 12/29/2023 John Deere Financial Uniforms Expenses 139.98$  

24



Check 
Number

Check Issue 
Date Payee Description Amount

11683 12/28/2023 Scheels All Sports Uniforms Expenses $  122.08

11671 12/28/2023 Berthoud Ace Hardware Sys Repairs $  110.73

5130 12/14/2023 Tractor Supply Credit Plan O & M  $  109.97

11686 12/28/2023 Waas Campbell Rivera Johnson & Velasquez Capital Cost-District-Northeast Transmission Line $  106.00

11656 12/13/2023 LTWD Petty Cash Fund Office Expenses $  102.66

11647 12/13/2023 Berthoud Ace Hardware Bldg/Grnds $  95.71

11648 12/13/2023 BOB OR RHONDA WARREN Landscaping Incentives $  75.00

5164 12/29/2023 Tractor Supply Credit Plan Vehicle Expenses $  71.76

11661 12/13/2023 S & S Sanitation Bldg/Grnds $  68.56

5127 12/14/2023 Sam's Club Office Expenses $  64.06

11681 12/28/2023 MI Sports Uniforms Expenses $  60.00

5145 12/28/2023 Town of Berthoud Bldg/Grnds $  53.23

11678 12/28/2023 Grainger PRV Routine Repairs $  42.22

11670 12/13/2023 Weld County Clerk & Recorder Office Expenses $  38.00

5094 12/4/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Purchased Water Expenses $  33.16

11680 12/28/2023 Larimer County Clerk & Recorder Office Expenses $  33.00

5140 12/21/2023 City of Loveland Water & Power Purchased Water Expenses $  32.51

5161 12/29/2023 Northern Co Water Cons Dist Purchased Water Expenses $  28.50

5136 12/15/2023 XCEL Energy Operations - Utilities $  24.54

5106 12/14/2023 Central Weld County Water District Purchased Water Expenses $  17.95

5101 12/13/2023 XCEL Energy Operations - Utilities $  16.35

5137 12/15/2023 XCEL Energy Operations - Utilities $  15.65

Total Operations $       5,655,318.60

25



Payroll
Check 

Number
Check Issue 

Date Payee Description Amount

2413 12/4/2023 EFTPS Federal Withholding Tax  Pay Period: 12/3/2023 28,684.47$             

2414 12/4/2023 CDOR CO State Withholding Tax  Pay Period: 12/3/2023 4,296.00$               

2415 12/4/2023 COLONIAL LIFE INSURANCE COLONIAL LIFE  Pay Period: 12/3/2023 241.58$  

2416 12/4/2023 COLORADO RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 401 Contributions Pay Period: 12/3/2023 13,060.69$             

2417 12/4/2023 COLORADO RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 457 Contributions Pay Period: 12/3/2023 9,362.40$               

2418 12/4/2023 Alerus HEALTH SAVINGS ACCOUNT  Pay Period: 12/3/2023 1,959.24$               

2419 12/18/2023 EFTPS Federal Withholding Tax  Pay Period: 12/17/2023 28,715.64$             

2420 12/18/2023 CDOR CO State Withholding Tax  Pay Period: 12/17/2023 4,335.00$               

2421 12/18/2023 CEBT Insurance CEBT Pay Period: 12/17/2023 50,059.80$             

2422 12/18/2023 COLORADO RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 401 Contributions Pay Period: 12/17/2023 12,733.46$             

2423 12/18/2023 COLORADO RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 457 Contributions Pay Period: 12/17/2023 9,362.40$               

2424 12/18/2023 Alerus HEALTH SAVINGS ACCOUNT  Pay Period: 12/17/2023 2,894.24$               

13178 13212 12/5/2023 Direct Deposit Pay Peroid 11/20/2023 To 12/3/2023 77,871.51$             

13213 12/5/2023 Szmyd, William R November Board Meeting 105.32$  

13214 12/5/2023 Martens, Edward M November Board Meeting 108.33$  

13215 12/5/2023 Brandt, Larry R November Board Meeting 111.35$  

13216 12/5/2023 Brandenburg, Steven T November Board Meeting 104.66$  

13217 12/5/2023 McMurtrey, Emily J November Board Meeting 102.04$  

13218 12/5/2023 Walker, James J November Board Meeting 111.87$  

13219 12/5/2023 Heiland, Ryan M November Board Meeting 99.42$  

13220-13254 12/19/2023 Direct Deposit Pay Period 12/4/2023 to 12/17/2023 80,446.53$             

Total Payroll 324,765.95$           

Total Cash Disbursements 5,980,084.55$       

26



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date:   January18, 2024 
 

Item Number:  5.4 
 

Staff:  Angela Diekhoff, Business Manager 

 

Subject:  
Discussion of the Financial Reports (Unaudited) 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Staff recommend acceptance of the December Financial Reports. 

Discussion: 
OPERATING FUND: 

Operating Revenue – We have collected $11,734,084 which is $541,771 more than Amended Budget. 

Operating Costs – We have spent $13,534,472 which is $20,546 less than Amended Budget. 
Operating Gain (Loss) – We have an operating loss of 1,800,389 which is $562,316 less than Amended 
Budget. 

NON-OPERATING FUND: 

Non-Operating Revenue – We have collected $9,084,318 which is $1,960,49 more than Amended Budget. 

Capital Costs – District – We have spent $13,573,841 which is $2,677,365 less than Amended Budget. 

Detail of the year-to-date District Capital Projects: 
Capital Costs – District  Actual YTD  YTD 

 Budget 
 Annual
 Budget 

County Rd Improvements  $ 32,718  $ 40,000  $ 40,000 
Service Connection Expense $ 167,016  $ 222,490  $ 222,490 
Telemetry Improvements $ 173,431 $ 182,500 $ 182,500 
Water Qulity Equip & Testint $ $ 23,508 $ 23,508 
Small Line Abandonment $ 44,086 $ 76,518 $ 76,518 
West 1st Street $ 49,763 $ 49,763 $ 49,763 
Northeast Transmission Line $ 279,908 $ 960,904 $ 960,904 
5 Mil Gal Twin Mounds Tank Coating $ 485,884 $ 485,884 $ 485,884 
Loveland/Campion Conversion $ 865,094 $ 533,880 $ 533,880 
54 Bridge-Waterline Relocation $ 549 $ 993,000 $ 993,000 
Dry Creek Feasibility $ -   $ 35,000 $ 35,000 
3rd & Welker Waterline Replace $ 34,219 $ 428,369 $ 428,369 
LCR 8 & 21 Waterline Modfication $ 298,783 $ 298,783 $ 298,783 
Botterill-LTWD System Modfication $ -   $ 48,000 $ 48,000 
Twin Mounds Exterior Cathodic $ $ 98,000 $ 98,000 
Foster Ridge Potholing $ 3,188 $ -      -   $
     Total Capital Projects  $              2,434,636  $              4,476,599  $              4,476,599 
Vehicle Replacement Program $ 54,340 $ 106,856 $ 106,856 
Furn & Equip Replacement $ 30,265 $ 33,765 $ 33,765 
Miscellaneous Equipment $ 11,927 $ 14,000 $ 14,000 
Ops Equipment Replacement $ 3,915 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 
Office Upgrade-Fire Alarm System $ 34,607 $ 34,030 $ 34,030 
Office Upgrade-Front Lobby $ 35,423 $ 35,423 $ 35,423 
     Total Vehicles and Equipment  $ 170,477  $ 234,074  $ 234,074 
Water Rights -  CBT $ -      -   $ $ -   
Water Rights - Other $ 10,770,000 $ 10,940,533 $ 10,940,533 
Water Resources Gen Eng $ 135,538 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 
Water Resources Gen Legal $ 62,394 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 
Native Water Conveyance $ -   $ 150,000 $ 150,000 
Raw Water Infastructure $ 795 $ 150,000 $ 150,000 
2nd Use Infrastructure Study $ $ 150,000 $ 150,000 
     Total Water Rights  $            10,968,727  $            11,540,533  $            11,540,533 
     Total Capital Costs – District  $            13,573,841  $            16,251,206  $            16,251,206 27



Agenda Item Summary 5.4 2 

Capital Costs - Joint:  We have spent $562,078, which is $123,438 less than Amended Budget. 

Detail of the year-to-date Joint Capital Projects: 

Capital Costs – Joint  Actual YTD  YTD 
 Budget 

 Annual
 Budget 

Dry Creek-Joint Cost  $ -    $ 150,000  $ 150,000 
Dry Creek-Joint Cost-Monitoring Sys  $ 24,300  $ -    $ -   
Dry Creek-Pump Station  $ 13,415  $ -    $ -   
CLFP Drying Bed Relocation $  $ 5,966  $ 5,966 
CLFP 7 Mil Gal Water Tank  $ 2,801  $ -    $ -   
CLFP Vehicles & Equipment $ 154,059 $ 133,019 $ 133,019 
Pretreatment Design $ 269,868 $ 206,190 $ 206,190 
Pretreatment Construction $ 26,801 $ -      -   $
Road Improvements $ 20,467 $ -     -   $
CLFP North Plant-Filter $ 50,368 $ 133,019 $ 133,019 
5 Mil Gal Steel Tank Painting $ $ 32,322 $ 32,322 
Filter Rehab $ $ 25,000 $ 25,000 
     Total Capital Projects  $ 562,078  $ 685,516  $ 685,516 

Non-Operating Gain (Loss) – We have a net non-operating loss of $5,051,601, which is $4,760,952  less 
than Amended Budget. 

CHANGE IN WORKING CAPITAL: 
Year-To-Date Change in Working Capital

 Actual   Budget  Budget/Actual  
 Comparison 

 Amended 
 Budget 

Operating Gain ( Loss)             $ -1,800,389 $            -2,362,705 $ 562,316             $ -2,362,705
Non-Operating Gain (Loss)             $ -5,051,601 $            -9,812,553 $             4,760,952             $ -9,812,553

$ $ $ $
Total Gain (Loss)  $         -6,851,989  $       -12,175,258  $          5,323,268  $       -12,175,258

28



29



30



LITTLE THOMPSON WATER DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2023

Prior
Month

YTD
2023

Actual
2022

CURRENT ASSETS
Board Designated Reserves $      2 1,616,910 $      2 1,616,910 $      2 2,177,537
Cash on Hand $      1 7,530,472 $      1 4,819,356 $      1 9,973,468
Cash In Lieu $            767,100 $            767,100 $         1,656,260

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents $      39,914,481 $      37,203,366 $      43,807,265

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
A/R - Water Revenue $            866,134 $            746,980 $            692,696
A/R - Misc Revenue $             -81,996 $             -58,192 $            152,156
Accrued Int Receivable $ -57 $                 1,959 $              14,205
Projects Passthrough Projects $             -26,793 $              -26,341 $              68,893

Total Accounts Receivable $            757,287 $            664,405 $            927,949

OTHER ASSETS
Inventory $            437,823 $            436,430 $            469,674
Prepaid Expenses $              25,656 $              25,656 $              25,656

Total Other Assets $            463,479 $            462,086 $            495,330

CAPITAL ASSETS
Filter Plant - Joint Venture $         2,734,755 $         2,734,755 $         2,734,755
Dry Creek Reservoir Dam $         7,442,974 $         7,442,974 $         7,442,974
Land - Dry Creek Reservoir $         6,508,922 $         6,508,922 $         6,508,922
Distribution System $      8 1,958,709 $      8 1,958,709 $      8 1,958,709
Land & Easements $         2,931,355 $         2,931,355 $         2,931,355
CLFP - Depreciable Asset $      1 1,197,297 $      1 1,197,297 $      1 1,197,297
Vehicles, Field & Office Equipment $         3,240,384 $         3,240,384 $         3,240,384
Construction in Progress $      1 2,513,870 $      1 2,513,870 $      1 2,513,870
Accumulated Depreciation
Water Rights

Total Capital Assets

$     -42,450,689
$    108,692,679
$    194,770,255

$ -44,693,299
$  108,692,679
$    192,527,646

$     -42,450,689
$    108,692,679
$    194,770,255

Total Assets $    235,905,503 $    230,857,503 $    240,000,799

CURRENT LIABILITIES
A/P - Supplies $         1,256,656 $         1,158,659 $         1,334,758
Wages Payable $            527,244 $            661,996 $            534,594
Bond/Loan Interest Payable $            166,813 $            166,813 $            166,813
Current Portion Long Term Debt $  0 $  0 $  0

 Current Liabilities $        1 ,950,713 $        1 ,987,468 $         2,036,165

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Bonds & Notes Payable $      2 7,894,778 $      2 7,894,778 $      2 7,894,778
Unamortized Premiums - Disccounts $         4,201,274 $         4,201,274 $         4,201,274

Total Long Term Liabilities $      32,096,051 $      32,096,051 $      32,096,051

Total Liabilities $      34,046,764 $      34,083,519 $      34,132,216

NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS $    205,868,582 $    205,868,582 $    205,116,271
Net Revenue Over Expenses $       -4,009,844 $       -6,851,989 $            752,311

Total Equity $    201,858,738 $    199,016,593 $    205,868,582

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $    235,905,503 $    233,100,113 $    240,000,799

31



LITTLE THOMPSON WATER DISTRICT
INCOME AND EXPENSE SUMMARY

FOR MONTH ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

Current
Month
Actual

Current
Month
Budget

Month
Comp

Bud/Act

2023
YTD

Actual

2023
YTD

Budget

YTD
Comp

Bud/Act

2023
Amended

Budget

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Revenue Base Fee         324,127         343,711  -19,584       3,835,470        3,835,342 128        3,835,342
Water Revenue Tier I         123,324         281,497  -158,173       2,017,602        1,749,724            267, 878        1,749,724
Water Revenue Tier II            39,780  -948,454  988,234       1,779,245        1,490,000            289, 245        1,490,000
Water Revenue Tier III            14,834  -659,533  674,367          827,836           841,232  -13,396            841,232
Water Revenue Tier IV            46,535  -734,849  781,384          985,286        1,015,012  -29,726        1,015,012
Water Revenue Tier V            15,335  -849,522  864,857          355,223           364,104  -8,881            364,104
Water Surcharge            17,561  43,454  -25,893             92,955             83,954  9,001              83,954
Water Revenue Wholesale              8,642  -85,440  94,082          244,742           229,060  15,682            229,060
Water Revenue Rental  -  2,643  -2,643             45,163             42,643  2,520              42,643
Bulk Water Revenue              5,187  20,006  -14,819          228,237           222,006  6,231            222,006
Other Revenue              4,247  4,093  154             65,991             62,903  3,088              62,903
Windy Gap Firming Passthrough  - -  -       1,256,333        1,256,333  0        1,256,333

Total Operating Revenue         599,571  -2,582,394      3,181,965     11,734,084     11,192,313            541, 771      11,192,313

OPERATING EXPENSES
Water Treatment         203,853  -12,215         216,068       1,883,652        1,859,000               24,652        1,859,000
System Maintenance            76,118  242,260  -166,142       1,253,693        1,230,760               22,933        1,230,760
Administration and General            84,268  45,485  38,783       1,014,048        1,021,966  -7,918        1,021,966
Engineering              2,080  -254,684  256,764             90,984           110,216  -19,232            110,216
Assessments                 130  -170,810  170,940       2,292,651        2,290,690  1,961        2,290,690
Joint Operations            30,830  -146,059  176,889             87,404           124,836 --37,432            124,836
St Vrain Authority Operations              7,745  -8,036  15,781             76,963             66,964                 9,999              66,964
Wages & Benefits         456,446  171,345  285,101       4,498,022        4,513,531  -15,509        4,513,531
Bond & Loan Payments  - -1  1       2,337,055        2,337,055  (0)  2,337,055

Total Operating Expenses         861,471  -132,715         994,186     13,534,472     13,555,018  -20,546      13,555,018

Operating Gain(Loss)  -261,901    -2,449,679      2,187,778  -1,800,389  -2,362,705            562,316  -2,362,705

NON OPERATING REVENUE
Plant Investment Fees         667,885         211,758         456,127       3,455,815        2,541,096            914, 719        2,541,096
Cash in Lieu of Water Rights      1,016,600  -900,988      1,917,588       1,666,400           558,800         1,107,600            558,800
NonRes Cash in Lieu of Water         650,000  1,277,900  -627,900       1,927,900        1,277,900            650, 000        1,277,900
Water Resource Fee            63,000            23,250            39,750          318,500           229,500               89,000            229,500
Tap Installation Revenue            90,100  -58,438         148,538          280,700           188,600               92,100            188,600
Interest Income            64,635  792,512  -727,877          971,683           957,512               14,171            957,512
Capital Investment/Impact Fee  - -  - -  - -  -
Native Water Dedication Fee            10,500               4,500                4,500 -  4,500
Gain (Loss) Sale of Asset  - -  - -  -
Grants

 - -10,500 
- -
 - -  - -  - -  -

Passthrough Revenue  -  997,326  -997,326             59,491        1,022,901  -963,410        1,022,901
Contrib Water Court  - -  - -  - -  -
Other Fees              5,135  254,610  -249,475          399,330           343,360  55,970            343,360
Windy Gap Firming Project  - -  - -  - -  -
Windy Gap Firming Assessments  - -  - -  - -  -

Total Non Operating Revenue      2,557,355      2,587,430  -30,075       9,084,318        7,124,169         1,960,149        7,124,169

NON OPERATING EXPENSES
Capital Improvements - District         488,897  -1,507,499      1,996,396       2,434,637        4,476,599  -2,041,962        4,476,599
Vehicles & Equipments Costs            16,265         115,774  -99,510          170,477           234,074  -63,597            234,074
Water Right Purchases      4,500,000   10, 140,533  -5,640,533     10,770,000     10,940,533  -170,533      10,940,533
Water Rights - Windy Gap  - -  - -  - -  -
Water Rights Adjudication            71,406  -1,220,000      1,291,406          198,727           600,000  -401,273            600,000
St Vrain Authority Treatment  - -  - -  - -  -

Total Capital Costs - District      5,076,567      7,528,808  -2,452,241     13,573,841     16,251,206  -2,677,365      16,251,206

Capital Improvements - Joint            61,033  -165,109         226,142          562,078           685,516  -123,438            685,516

Total Non Operating Expenses      5,137,600      7,363,699  -2,226,099    14, 135,919     16,936,722  -2,800,803      16,936,722

Non Operating Gain(Loss)  -2,580,245   -4,776,269      2,196,024  -5,051,601  -9,812,553         4,760,952  -9,812,553

Net Revenue Over Expenses  -2,842,145   -7,225,948      4,383,803  -6,851,989  -12,175,258         5,323,269  -12,175,258

32



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 1 9, 2024 

Item: 6 . 1  

Staff: Amber Kauffman, District Manager 

Subject : Board Officer Elections 

Staff Recommendation: None 

L TWO is required to submit to the State a Transparency Notice and update the officers 
of the board to the State by January 15, and subsequently if the officers change. The 
current officer positions and delegates to other boards include the following: 

President: Emily McMurtrey 
Vice President: Steven Brandenburg 
Treasurer: Larry Brandt 
Secretary: Amber Kauffman 

Carter Lake Filter Plant Delegates: Larry Brandt, Steven Brandenburg, Ryan 
Heiland 
St. Vrain Water Authority Delegate : Jim Walker (3-year commitment expires June 
2025) 

33 



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 1 8, 2024 

Item: 6.2 

Staff: Nancy Koch, Water Resources Advisor 

Subject : Potential Non-Potable Use of Native Water Shares 
Staff Recommendation: For Discussion 

Over the years, the District acquired shares in various ditch companies that may 
not be practical to use in its potable water supply. Currently, the shares are leased 
out for irrigation and the leaseholders reimburse the District for the annual 
assessments. 

The District has given 200 acre-feet of credit for these shares for taps: 

• In 2002 the District took over the water system for the town of Mead and the
Town did not have sufficient C-BT units to meet their existing demand. The
District accepted Supply Ditch and Highland Ditch shares from Mead to meet
the supply shortfall and gave credit for the shares based upon the average
irrigation yield.

• In 2014, the District accepted Boulder Larmer County I rrigation and
Manufacturing (Old lsh) shares for water credit. The water credit was based
upon the dry year yield of changed shares.

The District cannot use the water from these ditch shares for potable use without a 
change of use case and constructing significant infrastructure. 

Although most of the District's new water demand is coming from large 
developments in Mead, there are smaller, larger lot developments proposed on 
land historically irrigated with these shares. The District could sel l a permanent 
lease for these shares for a non-potab le system and offset potable demand for 
outdoor use. 

Pros 
The District could obtain cash for 
these shares to offset the cost of 
water that it can use with its current 
or proposed infrastructure. 
This program would promote non-
potable systems, a Board priority. 

Cons 
The District would forgo 
opportunities to use this water in the 
future. 

The District would not see an 
immediate influx of cash as only 
specific properties cou ld take 
advantage of the permanent lease. 

34 



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 1 8, 2024 

Item: 6.3 

Staff: Amber Kauffman, District Manager 

Subject: Non-Potable Operating Agreement 

Staff Recommendation: Recommend approval 

Discussion: 

L TWO and the developer of Range View Estates has constructed their subdivision and is 
in the process of constructing a non-potable irrigation system to be served by Highland 
Ditch shares. L TWO Rules and Regulations require that developer to have an 
agreement with the District in regard to the operation of the non-potable system in order 
to receive a lower water ded ication for the potable system. The District and the 
developer have generally agreed to the terms of the attached operating agreement. The 
operating agreement requires the developer to: 

• Transfer the native water shares, in this case Highland Ditch, to the District in
exchange for a permanent lease back to the managing entity for use in the non
potable system.

• Provide a managing entity for the non-potable system. The managing entity must
be responsible for operation and maintenance of the system, drought
management, budgeting, insuring the assets, implementation and enforcement of
water demand reduction measures, and annual reporting to L TWO.

• Provide a supplemental water supply with a potable tap in the event the non
potable system does not have available water to operate.

• Ensure adequate fund ing to operate and maintain the non-potable system.

The dedication of 5 of 6 shares of H ighland Ditch to L TWO is complete and review of a 
further revised water needs assessment received on December 22nd is underway with
Water Resources staff. A separate lease agreement leasing back the 5 (or 6)  shares of 
Highland Ditch to the Managing Entity was drafted by water counsel and further revised 
and is attached as part of the operating agreement. 

L TWO staff, general and water counsel, the developer, and developer's legal counsel 
have all worked diligently to draft, revise, review and approve the attached form of 
agreement, and staff recommends approval by the Board. 

35 



NON-POT ABLE SYSTEM OPERATING AGREEMENT 
(Westridge Metropolitan District - Range View Estates Metropolitan District 

Little Thompson Water District Non-Potable Water System) 

THIS OPERATIONS AGREEMENT ( "Operations Agreement") is made effective as of 
____ , 2024, by and among LITTLE THOMPSON WATER DISTRICT, a Colorado special 
district ("LTWD") whose address is 835 E. Highway 56, Berthoud, Colorado 805 1 3 , RANGE VIEW 
ESTATES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of 
the State of Colorado ("RVEMD") whose address is c/o District Resources, LLC, 1 927 Wilmington, 
Suite 1 0 1 ,  Fort Collins, CO 80528 and WESTRIDGE M ETROPOLITAN D ISTRICT, a quasi
municipal corporation and pol itical subdivision of the State of Colorado ("WMD") whose address is 
c/o District Resources, LLC, 1 927 Wilmington, Suite 1 0 1 ,  Fort Collins, CO 80528 .  WMD, LTWD 
and RVEMD are individually referred to as a "Party" or collectively as the "Parties. 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, L TWD is a Colorado special district that provides potable water service
to an area of approximately 260 square miles, including the area in which WMD and RVEMD is 
located; and 

B .  WHEREAS, both WMD and RVEMD were organized to coordinate the financing, 
construction, installation, operations and maintenance, and provision of the capital facil ities, public 
improvements, and services including, but not l imited to addressing current and future long-term non
potable water demands of WMD and RVEMD, its constituents, taxpayers and adjacent properties. 
Both WMD and RVEMD and related developments (the "Development") are located within the 
approved service area within the Town of Mead, County of Weld, State of Colorado as contemplated 
in the applicable District ' s  Service Plan and as permitted by law; and 

C. WHEREAS, Rocky Mountain Assets Investments, LLC (RMAI) owns the Westridge
Development property encumbered by the WMD; and 

D. WHEREAS, Range View Estates, LLC owns the Range View Estates Development
Property encumbered by the RVEMD; and 

E. WHEREAS, LTWD Rules and Regulations require final execution of an operating
agreement between L TWD and a designated Managing Entity, which delineates operation and 
maintenance procedures, terms of service, and other requirements necessary to ensure the adequacy 
of the Non-Potable Water System prior to System Approval ; and 

F. WHEREAS, WMD is or will be the owners and/or operator of elements of a non-
potable water system necessary to provide a system of water conveyance and storage systems, pump 
stations and related equipment and faci l ities and appurtenances which include sufficient water 
resources referred to as the "Base Facilities." The WMD Base Facil ities will provide non-potable 
water to all or a portion of RVEMD's Service Area for the use and benefit of its residents, property 
owners, and constituents (hereinafter the "RVEM D Extension Facil ities") which is extended off the 
WMD Base Facil ities. Base Faci l ities shall also include the Zimbeck Reservoir once the necessary 
requirements and subdivision and platting requirements are met to convey the Reservoir and any 
necessary storage rights to WMD. All Base Facil ities will be dedicated to WMD when complete. All 

36 



Extension Facil ities will be dedicated when complete to the RVEMD for service within Rangeview 
Estates. 

G. WHEREAS, RVEMD is or will be the owner and/or operator of certain facil ities,
equipment and appurtenances for the distribution and delivery of non-potable water which is needed 
by the RVEMD and/or RVE to deliver pressurized water for the use and benefit of property owners 
and users of irrigation water and for the RVEMD/RVE System (hereinafter the "RVEMD Extension 
Facilities"), which system will be dedicated upon completion by the developer for the land to either 
RVEMD or a Water Activity Enterprise, which is a government-owned business within the meaning 
of Article X, Section 20(2)(d) of the Colorado Constitution, organized pursuant to C.R.S .  § 37-45 . 1 -
1 0 1 ,  et seq . ,  which may be formed to help facilitate ownership, operation and maintenance of a non
potable irrigation water system to serve both the RVEMD service area and RVE constituents; and 

H. WHEREAS, WMD will serve as the Managing Entity on behalf of the WMD and
RVEMD properties and will manage the leases, ownership and maintenance and distribution of the 
non-potable water for both WMD and RVEMD; and 

I. WHEREAS, LTWD wishes to encourage the use of non-potable systems, where
appropriate, without negative impact to L TWO and i ts existing customers. To this end, under the 
terms of this Operations Agreement, the Parties acknowledge and agree that LTWD's obligations to 
provide water service are limited to providing potable water for indoor use within the Development 
and any obligation to provide irrigation water for outdoor use associated with the Development shall 
be held solely by WMD, RVEMD, and their successors and assigns. 

J. WHEREAS, for purposes of this Operations Agreement, Managing Entity shall mean
and refer to the legal entity(ies) or individual(s) as approved by LTWD responsible for owning, 
operating, and maintaining a Non-Potable Water System. 

K. WHEREAS, for purposes of this Operations Agreement, Non-Potable Irrigation
System shall mean and refer to the non-potable water system which has been or will be instal led by 
the Developer and operational for irrigation of landscaping within all Lots and Outlots in each of the 
phases of the development within the Rangeview Estates Subdivision and the Westridge Subdivision, 
including the subsequent ownership, management, administration, control, operation, maintenance, 
repair and replacement of the non-potable irrigation system, including pumps, water transmission and 
distribution lines, controller units and other equipment, appurtenances and accessories required to 
del iver non potable irrigation water to Lots and Outlots within Rangeview Estates and Westridge, by 
RVEMD and WMD, together with the non-potable water rights associated therewith. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and stipulations contained 
herein, the Parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1 .  Supply of Non-Potable Water. LTWD requires dedication of water rights to be used in the 
system and will hold ownership of those non-potable rights. The intent is for those rights to 
be held unencumbered by L TWD for the sole purpose of leasing back the rights to R VEMD 
and WMD in perpetuity in an amount equal to those rights dedicated to LTWD. The Parties 

37 



acknowledge and agree that LTWD in no way warrants in any manner the water rights used 
for non-potable uses, including, but not limited to, the volume of water generated by said 
rights, the quality of water provided pursuant to said rights, or the legal use of said rights for 
non-potable irrigation purposes. RVEMD and WMD assume all such risks and hereby waive 
any and all claims against LTWO in any way related to use of said rights for non-potable 
purposes. 

a . Shares of native water as identified in I b below have been acquired and dedicated to
LTWO in order to serve properties within the respective subdivis ions. Subject to the
acknowledgement and waiver provisions set forth in paragraph l ,  above, these
quantities and their assigned locations for use and their leases are provided in Exhibit
A, which shall be amended from time to time, as water is dedicated and assigned for
use.

b. Unless a court of competent j urisdiction bas issued a finding of a breach of this
Operations Agreement by R VEMD or WMD or their successors and assigns, L TWO
will not borrow, sel l ,  encumber, or post as collateral any shares of Highland Ditch or
Zimbeck Reservoir dedicated for non-potable water service to properties in either
RYEMD or WMD service areas. The intent is that these irrigation shares are to
remain dedicated to the non-potable use for the benefit of Range View Estates and
Westtidge subdivisions.

c .  RVEMD and WMD shal l ensure non-potable water is made available to  the properties 
within the respective subdivisions to the greatest extent possible. If additional supplies 
are available in any given year RVEMD or WMD may lease excess water for irrigation 
on other historically irrigated lands in the Highland Ditch system, as said lands are 
identified by mutual agreement of the Parties. Any use shal l be documented to L TWD 
with an affidavit indicating the lands irrigated and crop grown. RVEMD and WMD, 
and not L TWO, shall solely bear the risks of an insufficient volume of water, and/or 
quality of water, being generated by the water rights dedicated or leased by R VEMD 
and WMD for non-potable irrigation uses within the Development. 

d. In the event the Non-Potable Water System does not have any non-potable water
supply to operate, has a reduced non-potable water supply during the season, the
quality of the non-potable water supply is insufficient, or the projected annual use is
exceeded, the Managing Entity shall be required to reduce demand by restricting use
of/shutting down the system and/or supplementing supply with a potable tap that
provides an annual allotment sufficient to meet demand per water dedication
requirements detailed in Section 1 505.5 Schedule D and Section 1 7  of LTWO Rules
and Regulations, and the terms for water use, lease, and dedication outlined in the Non
Residential Domestic Water Agreement. Such potable tap to be used for the sole
purpose of supplementing supply for irrigation during drought conditions. (Section
1 708. 1 .  I L TWO Rules and Regulations)

e. The Managing Entity is required to dedicate additional water as necessary to meet any
landscaping requests or changes outside those submitted and approved with the Non
Potable Supply Analysis as shown in Exhibit B. This includes native water such as
Highland Ditch or potable water for any shoulder season watering such as Colorado

38 



Big Thompson units or other water accepted by LTWD. (Section 1 708. 1 .3 of LTWD 
Rules and Regulations) 

f. The Managing Entity wil l  provide L TWD with an annual report at the start of each
irrigation season that includes the prior year's maintenance and operation activities,
prior year's monthly use, projected water supplies and demands for the upcoming
season, and, if applicable, the water conservation measures required to meet the
irrigation demand for the upcom•ng season. (Section 1 708. 1 . 7 LTWD Rules and
Regulations)

2. Operations and Maintenance Responsibi l ities.
a. The Managing Entity has the authority to review and approve or reject landscape and

irrigation plans, implement and enforce water demand reduction measures, enter into
seasonal water leases, and prevent homeowners from using water from their individual
potable taps for outdoor irrigation, per the Rangeview Estates Metropolitan District
Rules and Regulations and Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions, and
Easements for Range View Estates and Rangeview Estates Metropolitan District.
(Section 1 708. 1 .2 of LTWD Rules and Regulations)

b. The Managing Entity will communicate with its customers regarding non-potable
water use, fees and rates for use, limiting potable water use to inside domestic purposes,
non-potable water fees and rates, and watering restrictions (if necessary) Detailed
procedures outl ining the methods of communication uti l ized by the Managing Entity
are attached as Exhibit D. (Section 1 708. 1 .4 of L TWD Rules and Regulations)

c. The Managing Entity will inspect tlle non-potable system at the start of each irrigation
season to ensure that the system is maintaining agreed-upon system specifications and
standards. Managing Entity will submit to L TWD an annual letter certifying that the
system continues to meet appropriate specifications and standards and identifying any
system modifications or deficiencies. As built drawings of any system modifications
must be provided to L TWD with the annual letter, and any identified deficiencies shal l
include the proposed corrective measures, with a timeline and budget. (Section
1 708. 1 .6 L TWD Rules and Regulations)

d. As a condition to the activation of any potable Taps within the Development, the
Developer agrees to instal l  or cause to be instal l ed, and RVEMD, WMD, and/or the
Water Activity Enterprise agrees to maintain, repair and replace as necessary, signage
at all vehicular entrances to the Development indicating that raw water is being used
for landscape irrigation purposes in the common areas and on individual Lots and is
not suitable for human consumption. ( Section 1 708. 1 .4 LTWD Rules and Regulations)

e. To provide users and customers of the RVEMD System and potable water al located to
each lot within Range View Estates, RVE will attach to each contract for each lot the
LTWD Non-Potable water disclosures which outl ines both potable and non-potable
water supply and availability which is recorded with the Weld County Clerk and
Recorder against each lot in RVE and attached as Exhibit E.

f. To provide users and customers of the WMD System and potable water allocated to
each lot within Westridge, Westridge will attach to each contract for each lot the
LTWD Non-Potable water disclosures which out l ines both potable and non-potable

39 



water supply and availab ility which wil l  be recorded with the Weld County Clerk and 
Recorder against each platted lot in WMD and attached as Exhibit E .  

3 . Operations and Maintenance Funding.
a . The parties agree that RVEMD, and subsequently WMD, wi l l  charge fees to  each

user in an amount sufficient to ensure the proper operation, locating, maintenance and
repair of the Non-Potable Water System, including the requirement to register as a
Tier l uti l i ty with the Util ity Notification Center of Colorado. (Section 1 708 . 1 .5 of
L TWD Rules and Regulations)

b. RVEMD and/or the Water Activity Enterprise shal l enter into a contract with a
qualified firm (with notice to LTWD) to annual ly review the funds col lected by
RVEMD and/or the Water Activity Enterprise in order to assure that adequate funds
are in place on an annual basis to maintain the RVEMD Extension Faci lities in a
condition that meets or exceeds minimum standards according to manufacturer's
recommendations. (Section 1 706.2 LTWD Rules and Regulations)

c . WMD and/or the Water Activity Enterprise shall enter into a contract with a qual ified
finn (with notice to LTWD) to annual ly review the funds col1ected by WMD and/or
the Water Activity Enterprise in order to assure that adequate funds are in place on an
annual basis to maintain the WMD Base Faci l i ties and WMD Extension Faci l ities in
a first-class condition.

4. Additional Conditions. RVEMD, WMD and Managing Entity shall maintain insurance
coverage as required herein and by law. Al l  insurers shall have at least an A- (Excellent)
rating by A.M.  Best and be lawfully authorized to do business in the State of Colorado.
RVEMD, WMD and Managing Entity shall maintain insurance in amounts greater than or
equal to the amounts indicated, or as amended from time to time to comply with new
insurance requirements, through notice and signature of the Parties, and shall maintain said
insurance in full force and effect during the full term of this Operating Agreement:

1 .  General Liability Insurance· 
General Aggregate $ 2,000,000 
Products and Completed Operations $ 1 ,000,000 
Personal and Advertising Injury $ 1 ,000,000 
Each Occurrence $ 1 ,000,000 
Medical Expenses (Any one person) $ 5 ,000 

1 1 .  Comprehensive Automobile Liabi l ity Insurance shall include all motor 
vehicles owned, hired, leased, or borrowed, with a combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damage of not less than $ 1 ,000,000 each 
occurrence. 

u1. Workmen's Compensation and Employer Liability Insurance 

Worker's Compensation Per Colorado Statutes 
Employers' Liabil ity $ 1 ,000,000 each accident 

40 



RVEMD, WMD and Managing Entity shal l provide LTWD with certificates of insurance 
showing that the required coverage is in effect no later than March 1 of every year and 
from time to time as necessary during the term of this Operating Agreement. 

5 . Term of Operations Agreement. The initial term of the Operations Agreement shall begin
on the date referenced above and shal l  terminate at the end of LTWD' s then-current fiscal
year ("Original Term"). This Operatiions Agreement shall automatically renew for
consecutive one-year terms coinciding with the fiscal year of LTWD ("Renewal Term") at
the end of the Original Term and each Renewal Term unless terminated as provided herein.
RVEMD and WMD shall approve the necessary budget and appropriation of funds at the
time of budget approval each year.

This Operations Agreement will terminate in whole or in part upon the earliest of any of
the fol lowing events : 

a. The expiration of the Original Term or any Renewal Term and the failure of the
RVEMD and WMD to appropriate funds needed to continue supplying the non
potable water for the ensuing Renewal Term; or

b. Default by any party and ( i)  failure to cure any such default within thirty (30) days
of written notice of such default, or ( i i )  failure to commence within thirty (30) days
of written notice of default a cure that requires more than thirty (30) days to effect
and a failure thereafter to effect the cure within a reasonable time, and election to
terminate this Operations Agreement as provided herein; or

c . Mutual agreement of the Parties.

6 . Failure to Appropriate Funds. The fai lure of either R VEMD and/or WMD to appropriate
funds necessary to own, operate, or maintain their respective water systems shal l  not
obl igate LTWD to provide non-potable irrigation water for outdoor use associated with
the Development or otherwise transfer any responsibil ity to LTWD to own, operate, or
maintain the respective non-potable irrigation systems and associated facilities.

7 . Representations and Warranties. In addition to the other representations, warranties and
covenants made by the Parties herein, each Party represents and warrants to the other Party
that:

a. it has the full right, power and authority to enter into, execute, deliver, perform
and observe this Operations Agreement; and

b. it has taken all requisite action to approve the execution, delivery, and
perfonnance of this Operations Agreement, including its obligations hereunder;
and

c. this Operations Agreement consti tutes a legal, valid, and binding obligation
enforceable against such Party in accordance with i ts terms, subject to bankruptcy,
insolvency, creditor's rights and general equitable principles; and

d. its execution of and performance under this Operations Agreement shall not
violate any applicable existing regulations, rules, statutes or court orders of any

6 

41 



local, state or federal government agency, court or body, and shall not conflict 
with or result in a breach of any terms, conditions, or provisions of, or constitute a 
default under, or result in the imposition of any prohibited l ien, charge, or 
encumbrance of any nature under any agreement, instrument, indenture, or any 
judgment, order, or decree to which i t  is a party or by which it is bound; and 

e . The Parties shall keep and perform all of the covenants and agreements contained
herein and shall take no action which could have the effect of rendering this
Operations Agreement unenforceable in any manner.

f RVEMD and WMD expressly acknowledge and agree that LTWD bas made no 
representations, warranties, or covenants as to the suitabi l i ty of water rights used 
in the non-potable system, the volume of water derived therefrom, the qual ity of 
water derived therefrom or the operation and maintenance of the same. RVEMD 
and WMD assume any and all risks associated with the suitabil ity and/or 
operation of the non-potable system associated with the Development and waive 
any and all c laims against LTWD related to the same. To the extent al lowed by 
law, RVEMD and WMD shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold hannless LTWD 
from any and all third-party claims made against LTWD that are, in any way, 
related to the non-potable system, including, but not l imited to, any such claims 
made by RMAI, Range View Estates, LLC, and/or their successors and assigns. 

8 . Default. Each and every term and condition hereof shall be deemed to be a material
element of this Operations Agreement. In the event either Party should fail or refuse to
perform according to the material terms of this Operations Agreement, the other Party may
declare such Party in default thereof by a written notice.

9. Remedies. In the event a Party has been declared in default hereof, such defaulting Party
shall be allowed a period of thirty (30) days within which to correct, or commence
correcting, said default .  In the event that the default has not been corrected or begun to
be corrected, or the defaulting Party has ceased to pursue the correction with due
diligence, the Party declaring default may elect to (a) terminate the agreement and seek
damages; (b) treat the agreement as continuing and require specific performance; or (c)
avail itself of any other remedy at law or equity. In the event of default hereunder by
either Party, which shall result in l itigation, the prevail ing Party shall be entitled to
recover reasonable attorneys' fees and costs.

1 0. Independent Contractor; Relationship Between Parties. Nothing herein shall be construed 
to make either Party an agent or employee of the other Party. Neither Party shall represent 
itself to third parties as an agent or employee of the other Party. othing in this Operating 
Agreement shall be construed to create an association, a legal partnership, joint venture, or 
trust, or impose a trust or any of the duties, obl igations, or l iabi lities associated with an 
association, partnership, joint venture, or trust on or with regard to any of the Parties, or to 
create a relationship of principal and agent between the Parties. o Party shall be under 
the control of or shall be deemed to control the other Party. 

1 1 . Laws, Regulations and Permits. RVEMD and/or WMD shall comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local codes, statutes, rules, regulations, ordinances, permits and orders in 

7 

42 



its operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the non-potable water system under 
this Operations Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that RVEM D  and/or 
WMD, but not LTWD, shall be responsible for obtaining, holding and complying with any 
and all permits, (whether currently required or required in the future), in any way related 
to the operation of the non-potable system under this Operations Agreement. LTWD shall 
have no obl igation to obtain, hold, or operate pursuant to any permit related to the non
potable system under this Operations Agreement. 

1 2 . Assignment. Each Party hereto shal l  not assign any of its rights or obl igations under this 
Operations Agreement to any other person or firm without the prior written approval of 
the other Party. This Operations Agreement shal l  bind and inure to the benefit of the 
Parties hereto and their respective succes�ors and assigns. With the exception of 
Westridge Metropol itan District, this Operations Agreement is intended to benefit only 
the Parties hereto and no other person or entity is intended by the Parties hereto to be a 
third-party beneficiary of this Operations Agreement. 

1 3 .  otice. Al l  notices required to be given under this Operations Agreement shall be in 
writing, and shall be deemed to have been duly given (a) when delivered personally to the 
other party to whom addressed or (b) upon receipt when sent by United States mai l ,  postage 
prepaid, as certified or registered mail, properly addressed as follows or (c) upon 
confirmation when sent by facsimile transmission and receipt is confirmed by return 
facsimile transmission: 

Notices to LTWD: L ittle Thompson Water D istrict 
Attention: District Manager 
835 East Highway 56 
Berthoud, Colorado 805 1 3  

With a copy to: Starr & Westbrook 
c/o M ichael A.  Westbrook, Esq. 
2 1 0  E. 29th Street 
Loveland, CO 805 38 

Carlson, Hammond & Paddock, L.L.C . 
c/o Lee H .  Johnson, Esq. 
1 900 Grant Street, Suite 1 200 
Denver, CO 80203 

To RVEMD :  Range View Estates Metropol itan District 
c/o District Resources, L LC 
1 927  Wilmington Suite 1 0 1  
Fort Coll ins, CO 80528 

With a copy to: Spencer Fane LLP 
c/o David S.  O'Leary, Esq. 
1 700 Lincoln Street, Suite 2000 
Denver, Colorado 80203 

8 

43 



To RVEMD: Westridge Metropol itan District 
c/o District Resources, L LC 
1 927 Wilmington Suite 1 0 1  
Fort Coll ins, CO 80528 

With a copy to : Spencer Fane LLP 
c/o David S.  O'Leary, Esq. 
1 700 Lincoln Street, Suite 2000 
Denver, Colorado 80203 

or to such other persons or addresses as the foregoing addressees may have designated by 
written notice. 

1 4 . No Debt or Financial Obligation. Nothing in this Operations Agreement shall be deemed 
or construed to create a "debt" or "multiple fiscal year financial obl igation" as such terms 
are used in the Colorado Constitution. In the event a court of competent jurisdiction makes 
a final non-appealable determination that a debt or mul tiple fiscal year financial obligation 
bas been inadvertently created hereby, the Parties agree to sever or revise the offending 
terms of this Operations Agreement to avoid the creation of the same. 

1 5 . No Governmental Immunity Act Waiver. Nothing in this Water Operations Agreement is 
intended to constitute a waiver, express or implied, of any of the immunities, rights, 
benefits, protections or other provisions, of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, 
CRS Sections 24- 1 0- 1 0 1  et seq . ,  as applicable now or hereafter amended. 

1 6. Entire Agreement. This Operations Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 
the Parties regarding the subject matter hereof and replaces al l prior written or oral 
agreements and understandings. It may be altered, amended, or repealed only by a duly 
executed written instrument. 

1 7 . Governing Law. The terms, conditions, and provisions of this Operations Agreement 
shall be interpreted in accordance with, and be governed by, the laws of the State of 
Colorado. This Operations Agreement shall not be construed against the party 
responsible for its drafting. 

I 8. Severabil i ty. If any provision of this Operations Agreement shal l be held inval id or 
unenforceable, the remainder of this Operations Agreement shall not be affected thereby, 
and there shall be deemed substituted for the affected provision, a valid and enforceabl.e 
provision as similar as possible to the affected provision. 

1 9 . Headings for Convenience. The headings and captions in this Operations Agreement are 
for convenience only and shall not be considered in interpreting the provisions hereof. 

20. Successors and Assigns. The terms, condit ions, and provision of this Operations
Agreement shal l be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank. Signature Page to Follow.]

9 

44 



IN WlTNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Operations Agreement as of the 
day and year first above written. 

LITTLE THOMPSO WATER DISTRICT 

) 
) SS. 

) 

President 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

STATE OF COLORADO 

COUNTY OF 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ __ day of 
_______ _, 2023 by _________________ as President 
and _____________ as Secretary of L ITTLE THOMPSON WATER 
DISTRICT. 

Witness my band and official seal. 

My commission expires: _______ _ 

Notary Public 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

45 



RANGEVIEW EST ATES 
METRO POLIT AN DISTRICT 

President 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

ST A TE OF COLORADO ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF ____ ) 

The foregoing instrumenl was acknowledged before me this day of 
_ __ _ _ __,  2023 by _ _ __ __ ___________ as President and 

as Secretary of RANGEVIEW 
ESTATES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT. 

Witness my hand and official seal . 

My commission expires: _______ _ 

Notary Public 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

1 1

46 



WESTRIDGE METRO POLIT AN 
DISTRICT 

President 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

ST A TE OF COLORADO ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF ____ ) 

The foregoing inst:rumenl was acknowledged before me this day of 
_ __ _ _ __  2023 by , _ _ __ __ _______ ___ _ as President and 

as Secretary of WESTRIDGE 
M ETRO POLIT AN D ISTRICT. 

Witness my hand and official seal . 

My commission expires: _______ _ 

Notary Public 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

12  

47 



EXHTB IT LIST 

1 .  Exhibit A - Water Dedication Summary Table 

2 .  Exhibit B - Non-Potable/Native Water Analysis 

3 . Exhibit C - Design Drawings

4. Exhibit D - Drought Management Plan

5 .  Exhibit E - LTWD Notice of  Non-Potable System 

1 3  

48 



EXHIBIT A 

49 



EXHI BIT A 

N U M BER OF 
SHARES 

6 (5 
RECEIVED) 

WATER RIGHT 

H igh land Ditch 

ASSIGNED PROPERTY 

Phase 1 Range View Estates 
(Lots 1 -50, Tracts A ,  B, K, 0, Q, R, 

S, T, and U) 

LEASEE 

Range View Estates 
Metropolitan District 

NON-POTABLE SYSTEM OPERATI NG AGREEM ENT (WESTRIDGE M ETROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
RANGEVI EW ESATES M ETROPOLITAN DISTRICT - LITTLE THOM PSON WATER D ISTRICT NON

POTABLE WATER SYSTEM) 

50 



RAW WATER LEASE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered into this _ day of ______ , 2024, between 
--------� (" " or "Lessee"), and Little Thompson Water District ("Little 
Thompson" or "District"). __ and Little Thompson are collectively referred to herein as the 
"Parties." 

RECITALS 

A. Little Thompson owns and operates a municipal water supply system and owns
various water and water rights that are, will be or will not be diverted and stored in conjunction 
with that municipal system for potable uses. Little Thompson intends to fully util ize all its water 
rights through either its potable system or leased for non-potable irrigation purposes on the terms 
and conditions expressed herein. 

B .  Lessee desires to lease from L ittle Thompson certain water and water rights for 
non-potable irrigation uses on Lessee's lands as described herein (the "Property") .  Lessee's lands 
are located within the Highland Ditch service area and have been historically used in the past to 
irrigate the Property as shown in Exhibit 1 .  

C . The Parties have entered into a Non-Potable System Operating Agreement
("Operating Agreement) dated __ . This Lease Agreement is entered in furtherance of the 
Parties ' intentions, representations and obligations contained in said Operating Agreement. As a 
part of said Operating Agreement, Lessee has assigned water rights to Little Thompson in 
consideration of an acceptable non-potable system in the D istrict boundaries per District Rules and 
Regulations. 

AGREEMENT 

1 .  Water Lease. Little Thompson hereby leases to Lessee certain of Little Thompson's 
H ighland D itch shares subject to the following terms and conditions set forth herein. 

1 . 1 Term of Lease. The term of this \Vater Lease Agreement shall be perpetual ,  absent 
a breach by either Party or mutually agreeable written termination. 

1 .2 Amount of Water Leased. Little Thompson agrees to make avai lable 6 shares in 
the Highland Ditch Company for Lessee irriga6on uses on the Property during the term of this 
Water Lease Agreement (the "Leased Water"). 

1 .3 Delivery. The Leased Water shall be made available at the Highland Ditch 
Headgate (the "Point of Delivery"). Lessee shall take possession of the Leased Water at tbe Point 
of Delivery. Lessee shall be responsible for, and shall bear, any carriage loss or charge, transit 
loss, ditch loss ( whether by seep, evaporation, or otherwise) or similar loss of the amount of Leased 
Water from the Point of Delivery to the place of irrigation on the Property. 

51 



Lessee shall be responsible for coordinating with Highland Ditch Company on the 
diversion of the Leased Water at the headgate of the Highland Ditch and running the Leased Water 
through the Highland Ditch, and any other ditches to Lessee's lands, and in obtaining the Highland 
D itch's consent as to the rate of flow and timing of releases of the Leased Water. Furthermore, 
Lessee shall abide by all pol icies, rules and regulations of Highland Ditch and the District 
regarding the transport of the Leased Water through the ditches and the del ivery of the Leased 
Water, and use of the Leased Water on the Property. 

1 .4 Source, Quantity and Quality of Water. The Parties acknowledge that the Leased 
Water del ivered pursuant to this Water Lease Agreement will be raw water del ivered at the 
Highland Ditch Company Headgate. The Parties acknowledge and agree that Little Thompson 
makes no representation or warranty as to the quantity, quality, or the fitness for a particular use, 
of the Leased Water del ivered hereunder. The parties further acknowledge that the Leased Water 
provided hereunder is del ivered on an as-is basis. Lessee waives any actual or potential rights they 
might have concerning any warranties or representations by Little Thompson as to the quantity, 
flow rate or timing of deliveries, the qual ity of the Leased Water or its fitness for a particular use, 
any product l iabi l ity claim and all other existing or later-created or conceived-of strict l iabi l i ty or 
strict l iability claims and rights concerning the quality, or fitness for use, of the water leased and 
delivered pursuant to thi s  Agreement. Little Thompson expressly disclaims any and all 
representation or warranties in any way related to the Leased Water and Lessee, on its own behalf 
and on behalf of any of its customers or any related third parties, waives any and all claims against 
Little Thompson in any way related to the Leased Water. 

1 .5 Use of Leased Water. To the maximum extent practicable and consistent with good 
i rrigation practices, Lessee agrees to apply all the Leased Water to beneficial use on said Property 
during the term of this Water Lease Agreement. Per Section 1 .  c. of the Operating Agreement, if in 
any given year excess water is available, Lessee may lease excess water for use on other 
historically irrigated lands in the Highland Ditch system as said lands are identified by mutual 
agreement of the Parties. Lessee shall also provide a historic use affidavit completed by the historic 
irrigator the first year, Exhibit 2, and then annually complete a native water rental use form, Exhibit 
3. In consideration for the water del ivered hereunder, Lessee agrees to provide Exhibit 2 the first
year and Exhibit 3 on an annual basis.

1 .6 Lease Payment. Lessee is responsible for any and all costs, fees and charges from 
the Highland Ditch Company associated with the Leased Water. L i ttle Thompson shall invoice 
Lessee the sum of the costs, fees and charges assigned by the Highland Ditch Company for the 
Leased Water, which are subject to change over time, plus a 1 0% administrative fee pursuant to 
this Water Lease Agreement. Lessee shall make payment to Little Thompson Water District by 
credit card, check, or wire transfer within 30 days. Any late payment shall accrue interest at the 
rate of ten percent ( 1 0%) per annum, simple interest. 

In the event the Water Lease Agreement payments are not received within 90 days, Li ttle 
Thompson shall be entitled to recover its costs, including attorneys ' fees, if necessary to recover 
said Water Lease Agreement payments due and/or deem Lessee as being in breach of this Lease 
Agreement. The Parties expressly acknowledge that failure to timely pay the fees contemplated 

52 



in this Agreement may, m Little Thompson's sole discretion, be deemed a breach of this 
Agreement. 

2 . Miscel laneous Provisions.

2 . 1  No party to this Water Lease Agreement shall be liable or responsible for any delay 
or failure to perform under this Water Lease Agreement due to conditions or events of irresistible 
force. Irresistible force shall mean any delay or failure of a party to perform its obligations under 
this Water Lease Agreement caused by events beyond that party's reasonable control, including, 
without l imitation, acts of God, terrorism, explosion, floods, vandalism, earthquakes and 
tornadoes. 

2.2 Lessee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Little Thompson for all claims, 
causes of action and damages which arise or result from: ( 1 )  the conveyance, transport or running 
of the Leased Water through any ditch, pipeline, or similar conveyance structure and their 
appurtenances from and including the point of delivery to the place or irrigation on Lessee's lands, 
(2) Lessee's application of the Leased Water on and to the Property, and (3) the operations and
maintenance of a non-potable irrigation system for the Property.

2 .3  This Water Lease Agreement and the rights and obligations recited in it shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Lessee and the District and their heirs, successors and 
assigns . Lessee may not assign, (or sublease), its rights or duties recited in this Water Lease 
Agreement without the prior written consent of Little Thompson. 

2 .4 The water del ivered pursuant to this Water Lease Agreement is provided strictly on 
a lease basis. Lessee shall not have any right of ownership of the water delivered hereunder. 

2 .5 The Parties acknowledge and agree that Little Thompson's obligations to provide 
water service to the Property are solely limited to providing potable water for indoor use with 
l imited outdoor watering within the boundaries of the Property and any obl igation to provide non
potable irrigation water for outdoor use associated with the Property shall be held solely by Lessee 
and its successors and assigns. Any supplemental irrigation water to be provided by a controlled 
connection from Little Thompson to the non-potable system shall strictly adhere to the annual 
allotment identified in the Domestic Water Agreement for that tap per District Rules and 
Regulations. To this end, the Parties acknowledge and agree that Lessee, and not the District, shall 
be responsible for obtaining, holding and complying with any and all permits, (whether currently 
required or required in the future), in any way related to the operation of the non-potable system 
serving the Property. Little Thompson shal l have no obligation to obtain, hold, or operate pursuant 
to any permit related to the non-potable system for the Property, nor shall Little Thompson have 
any obligation to operate or maintain a non-potable system for the Property. 

2 .6 The terms of the Operating Agreement are incorporated herein by reference. This 
Water Lease Agreement and the Operating Agreement and its exhibits represent the entire 
agreement of the Parties related to the non-potable irrigation of the Property. These two 

53 



Agreements between the Parties supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, 
ei ther written or oral with respect to the non-potable i rrigation of the Property. 

2 .7  Failure of Little Thompson to insist in any one instance, or more, on the 
performance of any of the terms, conditions or covenants of this Lease Agreement, or  on the 
exercise of any privileges herein contained, shall not be construed as thereafter waiving any 
such or any other covenants, conditions, rights or privileges, but the same shall continue and 
remain in full force and effect. 

2 .8  Nothing herein shal l  be construed to make either Party an agent or employee of the 
other Party. Neither Party shall represent itself to third parties as an agent or employee of the other 
Party. othing in this Operating Agreement shal l be construed to create an association, a legal 
partnership, joint venture or trust, or impose a trust or any of the duties, obl igations, or l iabi l ities 
associated with an association, partnership, joint venture, or trust on or with regard to any of the 
Parties, or to create a relationship of principal and agent between the Parties. No Party shall be 
under the control of or shal l be deemed to control the other Party. 

2 .9 This Water Lease Agreement may only be amended in writing by the mutual 
agreement of the undersigned parties, or their successors and assigns. 

2 . 1 0  The laws of the State of Colorado shall apply to this Water Lease Agreement and
any action to enforce or otherwise interpret the terms of this document shall be venued in Weld 
County District Court. 

2 . 1 1  Nothing in this Water Operations Agreement is intended to constitute a waiver, 
express or implied, of any of the immunities, rights, benefits, protections or other provisions, of 
the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, CRS Sections 24- 1 0- 1 0  I et seq. ,  as applicable now or 
hereafter amended. 

2 . 1 2  All notices required to be given or made under this Water Lease Agreement shall
be in writing and sent by United States mail or hand delivery to the following addresses: 

To Little Thompson: Little Thompson Water District 
835 E. State H ighway 56 
Berthoud, Colorado 805 1 3  

To Lessee: 

All notices will be deemed effective one ( 1 ) day after hand delivery, or if mailed, upon 
receipt. Either party, by written notice, may change the address to which future notices, billings, 
or payments shall be sent. 

54 



2 . 1 3  Each of the persons executing this Water Lease Agreement on behalf of the parties 
hereto, covenants and warrants that he or she is ful ly authorized to execute thi s  Water Lease 
Agreement on behalf of the party he or she represents. 

2 . 1 4  This Water Lease Agreement may be executed i n  duplicate original counterparts.

[Re,mlimler of Pllge Intentionlllly Left Blank. Signature Page to Follow.]

55 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year first above written. 

LITTLE THOMPSON WATER DISTRICT 

President 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

STA TE OF COLORADO 

COUNTY OF 

) 
) ss. 

) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
_ __ _ _ _ __ , 202_ by __ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ as President 
and as Secretary of L ITTLE THOMPSON WATER ---- - - - - - - - - --
DJS T RJ CT. 

Witness my hand and official seal . 

My commission expires: _______ __ 

Notary Publ ic 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

56 



LESSEE 

President 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

ST A TE OF COLORADO

COUNTY OF 

 ) 
) SS. 

) 

The foregoing instrumenl was acknowledged before me this day of 
_ __ _ _ __ _ , 202_ by ___ ___________ _ _ __ as President 
and _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ as Secretary of LESSEE. 

Witness my hand and official seal . 

My commission expires: _ _ _ _ ___ __ 

Notary Public 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

57 



EXHIBIT B 

58 



WATE R EXH I B IT B 

CON N ECTI NG WATER TO L IFE 

Memorandum 

To: Jon Turner, Range View Estates 
Jim Birdsall, Range View Estates 

From: Janet Williams, P .E . ,  LRE Water 
Juliana Anderson, E . I . ,  LRE Water 

Copy To: Tim Grote, P .E . , The Irrigation Engineers, LLC 

Date: June 6, 2023; Rev July 19,  2023, August 24, 2023, December 20, 2023 

Project: 1629WMO01 

Subject : Range View Non-Potable Demands and Supplemental Supply, Revised 
December 19, 2023 to consider 5 Highland Ditch Shares 

Executive Summary 

This memorandum provides an update to the LRE Water (LRE) report of May 2021 (LRE 

2021 Report), with a revised supply and demand model and revised conclusions. The 

revisions consist of new demand projections and the elimination of any consideration of 

storage in Zimbeck Reservoir. Due to the difference in timing between the ditch supply 

and the irrigation demands, the total irrigation demands cannot be met in most years 

without a storage water right or the ability to carry over the ditch supply; therefore, this 

memorandum also includes an estimate of the supplemental water required to be 

delivered from a potable tap to meet the critical common area needs not met by the d itch 

supply. The analysis was further updated on July 19, 2023 , based on minor revisions to 

the demand estimates received on July 10 , 2023. Additional adjustments were made on 

August 24, 2023, based on further revisions to the demand estimates and anticipated 

irrigation practices. An update was made on December 19,  2023, based on a reduction 

in the total Highland Ditch Shares dedicated to the development. 

Assuming a 95 percent exceedance year as previously defined in the LRE 2021 Report 

as the critical d ry year for planning purposes ,  the expected annual supply associated with 

the five shares in the Highland Ditch Company owned by Westridge Metropolitan District 

(Westridge) is approximately 56.90 AF (2012 is similar to a 95 percent exceedance year 

with a supply of 55.61 AF). Updated data provided by Tim Grote, PE, of The I rrigation 

Engineers presents an irrigation demand projection of 34 .89 AF/YR. While there is a 

sufficient annual volume of supply to meet th is demand in most years, monthly timing 

varies such that deficits are most likely to occur in April, May, and October, and may 

occasionally occur in August and September. 

1 2 2 1  Aura r ia Parkway Denver ,  CO 80204 I Offi ce :  303-455-9589 I L REWAT E R . C O M  

R O C K Y M O U N T A I N M I D W E S T  S O U T H W E S T  T E X A S  
59 



Phase 1 Range View Estates 
June 6, 2023; Rev July 1 9, 2023; Rev August 24, 2023 ; Rev December 20, 2023 
Page 2 of 4 

The analysis ind icates that the maximum annual volume of irrigation water required from 

the potable tap for common area trees and planting beds, during times in which there is 

not sufficient d itch supply, is estimated at 0.40 AF (excluding 2002). During such times of 

shortage, turf will not be irrigated. 

According to The Irrigation Engineers, the potable tap for the common area trees and 

planting bed irrigation should be sized at 2 inches, to supply 80 gpm, to meet the grow-in 

demands. 

Analys is Performed 

The operations study was performed using a 20-year period (2000 - 201 9) on a monthly 

basis, as requested by the Little Thompson Water District (L TWO). L TWO is most 

concerned with the adequacy of the Highland Ditch shares to supply the Phase 1 Range 

View Estates non-potable system in critical dry years (excluding the worst-case year of 

2002), without reliance on storage. The time period from 2000 through 201 9  contains 

years with low, 95 percent exceedance, average, and high share deliveries. 

Water Supply 

The Highland Ditch supply attributable to Westridge's five shares was used as presented 

in the LRE 2021  Report with a minor revision decreasing the number of shares from six 

to five. Assuming an allocation consistent with a 95 percent exceedance year, the total 

supply associated with Westridge's Highland Ditch shares is generally at least 56.90 

AF/YR. 

Water Demands 

The water demands for Phase 1 Range View have been revised to reflect the adoption of 

comparable water conservation efforts to those used in the City of Fort Collins. The 

revised demands have been estimated by Tim Grote, PE, of The Irrigation Engineers , 

and have been updated since the December 2022 proposal sent to L TWO. LRE updated 

the Range View demands in the supply and demand model per the data provided to LRE 

by The Irrigation Engineers in an email received on July 1 0, 2023. LRE d id not 

independently verify the demand data provided . These data are shown below in Table 1. 

Ifill WATER

60 



Phase 1 Range View Estates 
June 6, 2023; Rev July 1 9, 2023; Rev August 24, 2023 ; Rev December 20, 2023 
Page 3 of 4 

Table 1 - Range View, Phase 1 ,  Irrigation Water Demands 

Common - Turf 0.31 0.90 1 .14 1.23 1.08 0.78 0.31 5.75 
Common - 0.01  0.03 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.03 0.0 1 
Plantin Beds 
Common - Trees 0.03 0.09 0.11 0.1 2 0.1 1 0.08 0.03 
Residential - Turf - 4 .76 6 .04 6.50 5.67
Residential - 0.29 0.85 1 .07 1.16 1 .01 0.73 0.29 
Plantin Beds 
Total 0.64 6 .63 8.40 9.05 7.91 1.62 0.64 
a Estimated water use in Jan, Feb, Mar, Nov, and Dec is O AF .  

0.20 

0.57 
22 .97 
5.40 

34.89 

On an annual basis, the total irrigation demand for Range View, Phase 1 ,  is estimated to 

be 34.89 AF. Of that, 3 1 .99 AF occurs during the primary irrigation season of May through 

August. The remaining 2 .90 AF of the demand is needed during the shoulder seasons of 

April and September through October . 

It is our understanding that deficits during times of shortages will be addressed by 1)  not 

irrigating residential turf and allowing it to go dormant; 2)  an additional allocation of 

potable water per tap for the residential lots, to allow homeowners to hand-irrigate 

planting beds with tap water during shortages; and 3) a potable tap provided to serve 

trees, planting beds, and turf in the common areas. Common area turf will only be irrigated 

with a volume representative of 10% of its demand in order to maintain viability in dry 

years. 

Operations Model 

The analysis was performed on a monthly basis; as such, the monthly demand data 

presented by The Irrigation Engineers was used to identify timing mismatches between 

Westridge's available Highland Ditch supply and the irrigation demand. See Appendix A, 

attached. Using the revised demand projections, the monthly historical Highland Ditch 

deliveries attributable to the five shares for the 20-year period, shown in Appendix A, 

Table A-1 , was compared with the monthly total irrigation demands, summarized from 

Table 1 above and shown in the first row of Table A-2 . The monthly differences between 

supply and demand are shown as green/positive for surpluses and red/negative for 

deficits. For months showing a deficit, the deficit value shown in Table A-2 was limited to 

the lesser of the total deficit or the demand for irrigation of trees, planting beds, and 10% 

turf demand in the common area , to reflect the plan to irrigate only these areas with the 

potable tap when the ditch water is not sufficient. The annual deficit amount shown, 

therefore, represents the total annual demand for water from the potable tap. 

Ifill WATER

61  



Phase 1 Range View Estates 
June 6, 2023; Rev July 1 9, 2023; Rev August 24, 2023 ; Rev December 20, 2023 
Page 4 of 4 

Storage Considerations 

At L TWD's direction, storage in Zimbeck Reservoir (Zimbeck) was not considered , neither 

under the storage decree for Zimbeck nor as carryover of the Highland Ditch supply. It 

was assumed that the water supply available associated with Westridge's Highland Ditch 

shares during a particular month would only be available to meet the demands within that 

particular month, with no carryover storage allowed in the analysis. 

Conclusions 

j
When the total demand cannot be met by Westridge s shares in the Highland Ditch, some

irrigation water will be provided by a potable tap from L TWO for i rrigation of critical 

common areas only. 

Using the monthly demand distribution discussed above, deficits in supply were limited to 

the volume associated exclusively with critical common areas only, i .e . ,  drip irrigation for 

common area planting beds and trees, and minimal irrigation ( 1 0% of demand) of 

common area turf. As expected , the greatest deficit occurred in 2002; however, as 

previously d iscussed with L TWO, 2002 represents an extreme year in which irrigation 

would likely be curtailed , and therefore Westridge does not need to demonstrate an 

adequate supply in  such a year. Excluding 2002 , the second greatest demand for water 

from the potable tap is ind icated in 2000. Although 2012 was the next driest year in the 

study period and has been identified as similar to the 95% exceedance year, and the 

2000 supply was significantly greater than that of 2012, the timing of water availability 

between the supply and demand in 2000 resulted in a greater tap demand than in 201 2. 

Based on the modeled year 2000, the maximum demand for irrigation water from the 

potable tap for the critical common areas is estimated to be 0.40 AF. 

According to The Irrigation Engineers, a 2-inch tap will be needed to provide 80 gallons 

per minute (gpm) to the common area planting beds and trees during the grow-in period . 

LRE did not calculate an associated flow rate for the longer term use, since a larger 

capacity tap will already be in place for the in itial grow-in period. 

A 2-inch tap provides approximately 5.6 AF of water. It is our understanding that water 

volumes in excess of the estimated maximum of 0.4 AF needed for the common areas 

identified above will be made available for use by the residential areas. As such, at least 

5.2 AF of the tap supply is estimated to be available for those uses annually when ditch 

water is unavailable to meet demands.  

Ifill WATER

62 



' 
alf volues 

m a/ 
JAN FEB MAR APR MAY 

2000 54.80 

2001 2. 16 

2002 3.37 

2003 22.23 

2004 52.66 

2005 34.50 

2006 44.06 

2007 32.59 

2008 25.79 

2009 21.64 

2010 0.68 

2011 5.60 21.40 

2012 1.48 7.82 

2013 13.05 

2014 31.72 

2015 2.52 

2016 0.98 

2017 

2018 1.99 

2019 11.61 

Averaee 0.35 19.28 

LRE Water 

Appendix A 

Table A-1 Revised 

Phase 1 Rang• Viaw 

Highland Ditch Reported Historical Allocations per 5 Shares 

JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV 

76,14 30.03 4.10 1,69 

66.85 38.68 8.57 2,01 3,73 

6.30 Jl.10 2.63 1.44 0,16 

87.29 59.67 6.70 8.39 1.98 

43.43 60.97 34.52 5.44 0.22 

44.63 68,69 16,63 3.46 

60.63 20.86 8.91 3.56 0,79 

86,58 21.27 17.14 4.05 0,25 

72.77 47.57 20.96 4.98 0.98 

33.32 50.91 36.81 2.20 

62.28 51.73 19.41 12.87 0.57 

97.64 108.05 57.30 14,79 3.74 

23.67 9.88 12.32 0.44 

58.40 30.35 10.80 0.44 0.34 

60.18 66.08 39.14 10.27 11.30 

13.00 62.57 23.72 7.37 1.07 

60.08 35.65 20.25 8.52 0.21 

68.08 76.12 24.84 11.15 34.74 

58.44 37.29 18,11 3.41 0.14 

53..13 87.48 36.13 9.07 0.52 

56,64 48,60 20,95 5,76 3,06 

- ANNUAL. 

DEC 
Allocit,on Demand Defrc,t Surplus Net 

166.75 

122.00 

22.00 

186.2.5 

197.2.5 

167.91 

138.82 

161.87 

173.05 

144.89 

147.54 

308.52 

55.61 

113.39 

218.69 

110.25 

125.69 

214.92 

119.37 

197.95 

154.64 

Revised December 2023 

63 



all valu•s In nf 

DEMAND 
Total 

DEMAND 
Common Areas 

(•Trees, Planting 

Beds, 10% Turf 
Onl 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

Average 
Max Deficit 
Max Deficit 

(remove 2002) 
Notes: 

LRE Water 

JAN MAR 

Appendix A 

Table A-2: Revised 
Phase 1 Range View 

Irrigation Deficits and Surpluses 
LIMIT DEFICITS TO BE SUPPLIED BY POTABLE TAP TO SPECIFIC COMMON AREAS• 

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 

-0.64 -6.63 -8.40 -9.05 -7.91 -1.62 -0.64 

-0.07 -0.21 -0.26 -0.28 -0,2E -0.19 -0,07 

-0.o7 48.17 67.74 20.98 -0.26 O.o7 -0.07 
-0.07 -0.21 58.45 29.63 0.6& 0.39 3.09 
-0,07 -0.21 -0.26 ·0.28 -0.26 ·0.18 -0.07 
-0.07 15.60 78.89 S0.62 -0.26 6.77 1.34 
-0.07 46.03 35.03 51.92 26.61 3 .82 -0.07 
-0.07 27.87 36.23 59.64 8.72 1.84 -0.07 
-0.07 37.43 52.23 11.81 1.00 1.94 0.15 
-0.07 25.96 78.18 12.22 9.23 2.43 -0.07 
-0.07 19.16 64.37 38.52 13.05 3.36 0.34 
-0.07 15.01 24.92 41.86 28.90 0.58 -0.07 
-0.07 -0.21 53.88 42.68 11.50 11.25 -0.07 
4.96 14.77 89.24 99.00 49,39 13.17 3.10 
0.84 1.19 15.27 0.83 4.41 -0.19 -0.07 
-0.07 6.42 50.00 21.30 2.89 -0.19 -0.07 
-0.07 25.09 51.78 57.03 31.23 8.65 10.66 
-0.07 -0.21 4.60 S3.S2 15.81 5.75 0.43 
-0.07 -0.21 51.68 26.60 12.34 6.90 -0.07 
-0.07 -0.21 59.68 67.07 16.93 9.53 34.10
·0.07 -0.21 50.04 28.24 10.20 1.79 -0.07 
-0.07 4.98 44.73 78,43 28.22 7.45 -0.07 
0.23 14.31 48.33 39.58 13.52 4.26 2.62 
-0.07 -0,21 -0.26 -0.26 -0. 19 -0.07 

-0.07 -0,21 -0.2E -0,19 -0.07 

Allocation 

166.75 
122.00 
22.00 
186.25 
197.25 
167.91 
138.82 
161.87 
173.05 
144.89 
147.54 
308.52 
5S.61 
113.39 
218.69 
110.25 
125.69 
214.92 
119.37 
197,95 
154.64 

ANNUAL 

Demand 

-34.89 

- 34.89
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34.89 
-34,89
-34.89
-34,89 
-34.89 
-34.89 

-34,89 

Deficit to 
be supplled 
by potable 

tap 

-1,35

-0.40 
-0.28 
-1.33
-0.33
-0.14 
-0.14 
-0.07 
-0.14 
-0.07 
-0.14 
-0.35 

-0.26 
-0.33 
-0.07 
-0.28 
-0.35
-0.28 
-0.35
-0.14 
-0.27
-1.33

-0.40 

Surplus 

136.95 
92.22 

153.21 
163.42 
134.30 
104.57 
128.01 
138.80 
111.28 
119.32 
273.63 
22.54 
80.61 
184.44 
80.11 
97.53 
187.30 
90.27 
163,82 
123.12 

1. In the monthly columns, the green (positive) values indicate the surp us remaining after ditch supply has met the total irrigation demand.
2. In the monthly columns, for any month in which the total irrigation demand cannot be met, the red (negative) values show the estimated amount needed to
meet the tree and planting bed demands for the common areas, to be met via potable tap. 

Revised December 2023 

64 



EXHIBIT C 

65 



__ ,, __ 
- -- - -
_,._,, _ flOl..:;S,,.ttAA•-...,,.. 

N 

Q 

[] 

1,.,:,, ·,·:J 

◊ 
J, 

MC AGGRE0,,.1fl1'SECOUl!SE 
Al.�0:::0fff"8-JQ 

.-RO! AACIIIECT 
,',$PH -U �, 

�c 

&JMlRANGf 
IUl1fl'RYVAlV!a 
&0TIOM0FS1fP 
eono .. orw,u 

C,.IV CAW:TEU:''1$00N 
CO.QRAOOOWAl1TMINIOF 
ll!A�AIOON 
C!tHERllt..la 
cu;movr 

c=• 

COOl!Ol"AlOON 
OE ORIJ""'Gl'EASEMINI 
OEMO Oe.o:xr!OON 
Of' OOCIU'll!Ot<Pf'E 
0.ll&AI ORIJ""'G!.UIU!J .,AC=!ASU,'IEM Mlf 

fASl[l"GJ 
EM!RGftCYACCf!Sl"51MEM 
ERCtiOONCONTROl8V,.N<EI 
o:enNGGK>Ut<l 
B.l�C 
IDGl'Of-'SPIW..I 
€0GIOFCONCRETe 
o;enNG 
fA$EMIN1 
:���ANl':UNCffVOl.llME --� 
fftOEPAAIMEMC�fCTION 
A.AAEO!t<l$ECl10N 
ffill>'IEOfl�El!VA1':>N 
ffil!>'IEOGRACE ffttlYORmT 
Fl!l;RO'IIC "" 

EXHIBIT C 

NON-POTABLE IRRIGATION CONSTRUCTION PLANS FOR 

RANGE VIEW ESTATES 

LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1 /4 AND SOUTHWEST 1 /4 OF SECTION 1 6, TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE 68 WEST OF THE 6TH P.M. 
TOWN OF MEAD, WELD COUNTY, COLORADO 

MARCH 2023 LEGEND 

-----
-----

■ 

1, . •. i,J 

__,,.-

* 

-
� ------

ABBREVIATION usr 
Gl!ACEIR&.� 
GAAAGfflOO.. 
GATEVAlVE 
l!OlemJMtOJSPAVEMENI -~� 
HGHCU-lllT'l'POli'mffiEHE --
IVIOWAll 

MEO,,,.NOJ...8..Kll!OCAl.PWM!ING �--
MN"'°M 
MEO,,,.t,ICl,i. ;Qf.T 

tO!TNjNGJ 
NOIAPl't.lOIW: 
N0110SCAll 
ONCINTER 
0\IERIVIO!lfCTl!IC 
0\IERIEA.OTelEl'HONE 
OV5'tv..0UllJIY 
P!RfOl!ATeO 
l'Ol-<lcr-CI.JNAH.ft 
�OCEMINICOtCl!tTE 
l'Ol-<IIYCURl!Rl'IURN �
POl"IOINTI:R51CTION 
l'l'O!'ERIYUt..la Pl.eOC$EIMCEl"51MEM 
POKOTmGENCY 

REMOVAl �Rl:Pl.ACEl,<ENI 
Rll>#OKEOCONCRfll'f'ft 

.. Ol'(XH)>/(><4'010,.,..,.:'.)r< 
,UVOC[W/CUOl'1<'.>'A!,l)MIJ9"' 

ROOl'OIMIN 
Rll'ERINCE 
R"3NT-Of-WAY 
RN<Gl'VF.Wl$1ATeS 

' =• 
10 $10,MCO,AtH'ft 
S°""' SICl!MC:0,At<W..!+tOl.f 
SIM: $Ef!\IIC! 
SSCO SANIAA15EWB!Clf...-...OOT 
SSMi SANIAAYS!WERMNlltOl.l 
SS'M! SA,.IAAYSEWER 
SIA SIAffON 

SI01MWATIRMANAGEMINT� 
mEl'HON1 
IOPMO:.OFCI.I!!! 
TOe!VAC,.TEO 
10811!!:MOVIO 
mEl'HON1 
IOPOFl'Oll'<O,.TION 
IOPOFWAlJ. 
ITT�< 

UHCE!!Cf!At< 
UTIUT'rfASEMINI 
UNCE�O!l!CTll:IC 
UTIUT'r 
Vllffll'OCV..Yf'ft 
VIW'rl"ftiO 
VIRIICAll'Ol"TOFCUl!VAIUl!E 
'il'RIICAll'Ol"TOFINlll':sl'CTOON 
Vl:RIICAll'Ol"TOflN<GINCY 

WATE!ru"Efll1"G 
WATERQUAllT'rCAf'TIREVOl.!».I! 
WATE«SUllfAC!!lfVATOON 

Vicinity Map 
Scale: 1 ": 20JO' 

PROJECT DATUM: NAVD 88 

NGS BENCHMARK L329 
NAVD88HfV■ ,982.l6 

NGS BENCHMARK P 329: 
NAV088 acV■49S3,S7 

UTILilY CONTACfS: 

UGHT &: POWER 
United Power 
500 Cooperative Way 
Brighlon, CO 00603 
Ph. )JJ.659.0551 

WASTEWATER 
Town of Mead Sanitation 
441 Third Street 
Meod, CO 00542 
Ph. 970.535.4477 

DITGI COMPANY 
Highland Ditch Company 
4311 Hwy66 
Mead, CO00.504 
Ph. 970.535.4531 

OWNER 
Range View Estates. LLC 
6355 FOlrgrounds Ave, Sui"te l'.)(l 
Windsor, CO80550 
Ph. 970.204.9393 

ENGINEFR 
Highland Development Services 
6355 Falrgrounds Ave, Sui"le 100 
Windsor, CO 80550 
Ph. 970.674.7550 

WATER 
Littie Thompson Water DisMcl 
835 E Slate Hwy56 
Bt:rlhovd. CO 00513 
Ph. 970.532.2096 

NATURAL GAS 
Xcel Energy 
1 1  Z3 West 3rd Avenue 
Denver, CO 80223 
Ph. 3J3.571.33:l6 
Builder's Coll Line 877.354.6395 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT 
The B irdsoll Qoup 
444 Mountai"n Ave 
Berthoud CO, 80513 
Ph. 970.532.5891 

SURVEYOR 
Magestk: Surveying, LLC 
4627 W. 20th Street Rood 
Gre8ey. CO 80634 
Ph. 970.443.0882 

INDEX OF SHEETS 
Description of Sheets 

GENERAL NOTES &DETAILS 
OVERAll. NON.POT,.,8LE IRRK.ATON Pl>.N 
NO�OTAi!LE IRRK:;AHON f'tAN 

PUMP SYSTEM RECAP 
ill �%���1=�=lf'fMflOW)PACXAG!DVARIMtf 
11) 35:IGf'M-!Df'Sl.�f'Ot((l'IJWllOWflOWUSf) 
N01f: l'\IM�CUGN0ATAPIIO\llCEOnOJW!aRS 

O en�ace tfatives�ed 
O en Soace Plantin Sed 

Range View Estates Pumo Flow Calculations 
Daily Concurrent Lots 

Dail OpenSpace lffi at;on GPM) 
Re ulred Pum flow GPM 
Re ulred Pressure P51 

Pu,n.-.Efficien~ 
Est lmated Pum Power 
Note: Resldenti .-ltotsWlll lrrigate on alternatlngdays;a 
mail mum of 41 lmig;,tlrig s!multaneovsley. Drip lnig�tlon 10 
lot1hrubbedsand gardenswlllbeallowedoutsidi!oftht8 
hou,waterlng window and wlll not t,ffect m3in pump flow 
r.,te,. A jockey pump will proeide for sm�lludtip flow• 
throu houtthed;w. 

Estimated Annual Water Use 

Gal/SF) 
144,918 

'"'' 
2,31.9.648 
26.2,358 
11.8,449 

Estimated lolPlanlin�Bed 
7,392,000 

110,0'.Xl 

CONIACT xca ENERGY BULDER'S CALl LINE TO SCHEDULE 
"W-'TCli &- PROTEC< FOR -'NY CONSTRUCTION OCCURRING 

NEA.R-'N E.XFOSED l-tGHPl!ESSURE(l-f'IG-'S PIPEUNE 
877.354.6395 

A<:re-Ft) 

KflOWWlllrtbelow. 
Callbeforevou dig. 

c .... �,._-.,._,.., • ........,._,OJ ..._.,._.,..,.,..,,.,...,. ___ ,,. "..,....,.,K> ... _....,,,.. 

ti, 
LJ.J 

� "' 
LJ.J 
> 
0 
u 

f'ffi''""'0IYOIU>£8!j,f 
o ... ::,su""""""'""' 

DAT!: 3/1/23 
SCALE(H) N/-' I 
::��: :: ! 
CH€0::EOBY JTC i 

HD5PRO.ECT,� I 

CVR i 
SHEET 1 OF i .._ ___________________________________________________________________________________________ .._ ____ __,, 

66 



� 
� 

�;
 :

�:
 �

i .. 
!� 

1m
!1

1,
! 

i!
l 

11
, 

, , 
!

,,
,,

'! 
! 

1·
 

il
l 
'I 

, ,
1,

; ,
1 ,

! 
ii

 •
• 

; 

il
!•

"
'

f
'i

l
' 

1,
,1

! !
i!

 ,
:1 

!j
! 

:, 
I"

!'
 •

 
Ii 

1 1' 
'·

 

i 
••

:i 
!• 

!:!
 1 i 

!1
 i

!s
i 

• 
·1

 l 
'l

'n
 

,! 
,,

,/
 

: , 
11 

i 
'! 

e�
 l

'

1,
 

1
1

 
I • 

!i 
i 

11
1:

 i
 

,,
 

,,
 
I 

ii
 

! 
I 

ii
 

!I 

m
---r�

 
1

1'
i

•1
''

l 
! 

/
/

/
- �--

lt

1� �
- --

1 ::
 I, 

/ 
·!

 
\ 

- -
-

I 

I 
1 1

1 
I 

,'
 

' 

\ 
'i 

: 
/ 

'0-

\ 

I 
I 

11
 

',
 

/
 

'-
:_ 

,/
' 

' ' I
 

i,
 

• !
 
' !

��
 

� 
,·

 
-

I 
: 

I �·
',

 _ _
__

_ ,.......,
,,;�

,,__
______

____
_ 

i ' 
'

'
 

I'
 

I ::
Iiii

:1l1
1;i1·

i1' 
� 1

= :
�l

i �
i/

\
 ,

!;
 � 

J
-:

 

,1
11

1 1
• 1

1 1
,L

11
I �

�
 

,, 1
1

11•
'!!

1•l
'

-
!P1

:i i
i 1

i a
q

 

�,, 
·11

11
1
1·•

1" 
=

-

is�
:i! 

I 
I 

11
1 

•(
 

! 
-�

 

.,�
... 

I 
I 

I 
Ii

 I 
l 

�5
� 

I 
! 

., 

�
r-

�
 

� 

f! i � I 
ii 

8 ��
 

;;
 '

il l
'l .

i l
l 

., �
 I

i
•' 

1 
! 

� 
i;1

ii i
1· 

'I
l l! 

ii
� '1

 ·'
:1

1 1 
!i

 
!�!

,� 
� ,

 

!� ' 
-

r 1,1 
�1

.!
 

'!
' 

�11
i!i 

i;;
 

�
�

 .. 
�

 

r 
"'

 
!l

ii
 ,, 

l!ll
 • �

II ,· .
.

 
,;

"
, 

"I
 

! I 
� :

 1
'

'
'

 �
 

I 
i 
,

. 
n
 

'1
-. 

)
 

L
t 

J
I  

�,q
 \

 
•!I

 
�

1-

n 
r 

11
01

@
•' 

i 1
 GI

-I 
•

•
 

I�
 

! I
f !

 
; i 

!i
- i

 
!! 

t!
l 

1 
j!

i 
,1 

�· �2 i� �"'
 

��
 .. ""
 

�o
 !� ��
 

�i
 

•i it Q
•

 
8�

 
5

z
 .. 85
 �I i i ��
 

i �
 

§; �z o
>

 

§§
 

i�
 

S i
 

!�

§R
� !i� . �
2 ��

 
o

n ��
 

i�
 

§� -� ��
 n n "' O

Q
 

��
 

��
 

�i
 

g2
 

�5
 -� �!
 

I•
 

��
 

gffi . . Q
5

 

�� o.

ii5
��

§
0

�
�

0 

ii�!
!

Q�
�

i
�

 
� !l

� §
� l l !il !i

l�
�

<;:
9

""
0

f'l 

�;
��

@ 
��

��
� 

§ s
�i

� 

m
u 

��
i; �

 
�j

:{
g 

��
j

�
�

 
�§

ii
�  

! R
�e

;
��

��
�

u m -��-
�

Q �
d

, �
 

� 
q

n
n

� 
�

�
;

3
;

 
u

�,
RA

N
G

E 
V

IE
W

 E
ST

A
T

ES
 

N
I 

Gl
 

z
 

g 

Ii I" 1 ,
 1� 

1� l2 
u 

�
 

()
 

"'
 

►
 
► 

L:l 
i 

I! � i
 

G
EN

ER
A

L N
O

TE
S 

& 
DE

TA
ILS

 
!?l 

--
,-�

_
., _

_
 ,, _

_
 ,_

 ... 
__

_
_

_
 ,. .

.. ,,,
.,,,..

,___
, .

. .....,
,. ...

. _
,,,.,

�,-
.-

� ...
 .,., _

_
 ,.,,,

 __
__

__
_

 ,._
,, ..

,_
, .. ,

_
 

��
 

�§
 

O
Q 

Q
' ii !� 5� ·�
 

�§
 

z
,

 

��
 

! i i\>
 

§i !� �� �� 0� @� �o oQ :::z :;
 

§• �; � fi
 

��
 � @9
 

,9
 

la�
 

�R
 "' �5
 

E�
 �. 8§ . . � 6  ��
 

;�
 ;� ii
 

0
0

 

i;
 

§I
 

��
 

:j§
 

��
 �; ��
 :� �§ •"
 

6 0
 

�8
 ;� 1; 

��
 

5!
 ;* z o .. o• ,. fi�
 

�!
 

�
Q g�
 

'
r

 

o• �§ ;g
 

��
 

'!'
 

Ri
 

,,
 

�;
 .� RO
 

,!
 �i •

o
 ii 5�
 

5�
 

2=
 

� �
 a� .z � 

Ii ;g
 

0
� �i
 

8Q
 

,,
 

9�
 

i�
 

�! 2 c
 

�
iii

 

��
 

�6
 

i@
 

��
 

�2
 

� i
 

�� z 5 
•

o
 

��
 

��
 

o c
 

!� Ii
 

o
§ '•
 ;�
 

•i>i
 

jl
 

2:
 

�i
 

:e
 

�i
 

� �
 

;j
 

�
';;

 

ii �5
 

�(;
 

��
 �s �o
 ii oc i5
 §§ ��
 

p
 

0
�

 

g�
 

.2
 :i 

�(
2i

l�
 �

� 2
�2

;j
 

��
2;

�8
 (;}

� �
�l

&:i
 

53.
��

��
 

i�
 ;;

::�
� 

�! �!;
� ��

 mi
i 

m��!
a� 

;� ��
�;; 

mm
!rn
m 

"'�
►0

:{: �
 

m8
 --

S:�
"' 3::

 
��

�;
:;

 
�i

 �
"'�

�2
:;:c:::

;:i:l:
5?:-

Q)l!
 :5

�1n
02

; �
g�

i�
 

��
 5:

�i
E 

mm
 m
m: 

�,
�5

j:
 

i�
 p

��
;,2

 
g�:

�;!
 ��

 �
��2

 
o

g
m

--<
f'l

�
 

�
9

 
i.;0

-..
� 

mm
 �! 

� 1; 1 
;�
�!
�!
 1:

 ;!�
� 

z- <
:.:c:

>  
:z 

c,""
50

��
;i

;�
 

!�
 �

��
� 

�8�
�1�

 !� 
i�i�

�,
�6

��
 

;:;l
 

�o
��

 

i�
��

g �
 
li 

��
Ii

Q�
�i

l�
 

��
 �

��
� 

Ii 

l� Q�i

! 
l�

� 
� �

I! 
� 

j i§
 

-
-=

2 
��

�
�§

o
� 

l 
I� 

�g
; 

n
 

-◄
f £

 
�j

 t 

�� �; � a
 

il; S o O
s

 

��
 

�g
 

��
 

��
 

�� s, oz
 

,,
 

�i
 

�i
 �. � £�
 

91!
 .. 6

0
 

�� ,. ��
 

..:5
 

��
 

� �
 

"' R !
 

8�
 

gµ
 

,
c

 

3� O o
 ij ��
 

i 2 � �
 

50
 

��
 

I i
 

��
 H �§
 

C
r

 ;; m � g. i�

0� �5 �! �g
 

2;
 

!§ � !�
 

��
 

� �
 -� §� i! �o
 

� !
 

� g
 

��
 

;Q oo o i
 I i ,,
 �· :�
 

,;:
 

� �
 �i j;
 

�� 0 � �: �� '• �i . . Oz �� o e
 

f a O o
 

?H!
 

��
 

��
 

i�
 

B i
 

!t
 

a9
 

�!
 

i�
 

��
 :; ��
 

�j
 

.. 6;
 

�z
 

5§
 

�
Q

 
�

j
 

��
 

0
�

 

"" � �
 �! ., 6 �
 

! i oc
 

i;
 

�;
 

� �
 

��
 

i� 8•
 

Z
i u � l
 ·� �; ..
 

"j
 

!§

!§ 2�
 �s �!
 

'<,
 

O
<

 
o;

 
�� gm ��

 
i�

 "' ��
 

��
 

H
: 

if
 

!� ��
 

��
 1)8 i, 0g
 

Ba
 

ffi�
 

""
 

i�
 

�
ta

 

��
 

��
 

�i
 

i g < � � � z Q rn 

A
'J�
Jl, 

�
�!

!?�
10�

�
 ��

�
�

 

Ii 0
 



WELD COUNTY DEVEL OPMENT COMPANY 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 

EXHIBIT C 

CONTACT XCEL ENERGY WILDER'S CALL LINE TO SCHEDULE 'WATCH & PROTECT FOR ANY CONSTRIJCHON OCCURRING NEARAN EXPOSEO HGH PRESSURE(HPlG"SPIPELNE 877.354.6395 

J ,  
s 

= I AU. EXSTING Ull.ITT' LOC/lnONS SHOWN IV,\IE SffN l'ROVI DED SY OTHERS ,',ND OOERMNEO FROM ,- COMBir!>,TIONOf RECOIID OR,',W,riGS. SURVfl'ID flEW /MRl;.QUTS >-NO P!1YSC>,L Of!SERVAT'ONS. lHEREMAY BE Ulllll ES NOT S�WNON THE DRAWI NGS WHIO, PR€SENILY EX5T IN rnEARl;A Of �lR\JCTON TH�EfORE THECONTRAClORSHAU. ¥WY LOCATIONAl-0 OE!'� Of AU. EXIS!I NG \Jfl UTIES INT1"E PROJ£CI VIOl'lfY n� 1o ero�NG �X. THE CONTRACTOR SHAU. BE fl.UY ANO SO\.Et.Y l<ESPONll!!ll' � ANY AN0All QA/MG€$ AN0COST5 WHIO, M�T OCC� 8Y THECON1RAC1Qlr$ fAI.URE10 0>.0\Y LOCATt'ANO fl<ESl'RVE ANY ANOAU. \JII U!ES 1HECONTRAC10R SHAU. NOTIFY AU PIJ8UCAI-O l'Rf,fATE UTIUTY COMPAl'IES Al-0 OETERMINETHE LOO.TON Of AU. EXIS'l'li'IG UTILITIES PR� 10 F'ROCffONG WITH �A[)NGANOCONSTRIJCTON Ai1 WOUl'E�ID IN lff: AREIIOfUTIUTU SHALL BfPEltFORMEO AI-ONSIKTEOACC�NG lOlHE R!'aURE.YENTS Of 11£ UII UTY OWl'fi, i.UWISf, THECONTRAC10!1 Sf'AU El!: RBl'OOSlBlE 
illtI�J�i����]ij1EEl�5�� Sl'ltVICE COt+IECTIONS, AND RaOCI\TINGAND RfCOt+IECTING I\FffCTID UTl.mES AS CQOIIDtlATID WIT11 UTILITY OWNE!t Al-0/0R ENGf,lffi<, INUU[)NG �-M�ICf'Al UllITIES 
�����A�1���-i��:t�=t�

ro
o::�::Rti:��

1
• HE l)Satff'ANCYO!t CO!-f'UCT. ATLEASl �8HOORS � TOCOOSlRUCl'ION. Ht' COOTRACTOR SHAL1 NOTH rnE UTI U� NOllRCAl'ON CENTEltOf COi.ORA DO (l-a:l0-922-1987, WWW.lNCC.ORGI 2 N A00�10NlOME€TINGAf'POCAl!LE lCIJASS. SlAlEOR FEDERAi.. STA�A.OS. AL1MA1UIALS l'\IOl!KMA�HIP ANDCONSTIWC�OO SHAL1 ME€! 01 EXCEro lHESTANDAROS SET FORTH N lHE llWO ANDlOWNOfMEAD OEV'W)f'MENTSlMOAROS 3 N CASel OfCO!-f'UCT ftE!WEEN Ht'SE�G,',EOF'tA�MOAFf't.CA6LESTANDAROS, 1HEMOS1 Rl;STRICTIVESlANOAROSHAU.APf\Y, All lsRK>Al10NMAINSSHAl15E AWWA SOR 21 OR C900 PI.ASTC PR6WRH1 1'1: (OIH 8. P-RES5URE 

��l�5J;AA���E!t�r�::�������CD WR!' Pl:R SlA�AROS. AU l�GATION 
5. AU �GAllONMAINSSHAU HAVE A Mli'IM� COVER Of36"ANDSSNICB SHALL HAVE A MNMLM COVER Of l ff" lNlf.SS OTH-E NOTI'O 6 AU. NQN.;>OTABU; RRIGA110N MAN5 AN0SE!tVICE5 SHALlMAINTANA Mli'IMUM 18"\'WICAl Sl;l'ARA110N. A� IOIJ HOOZ0N1Al$E!'ARA110N fl!OM P01A!!l.EMAI� ANO SERVC£S. AO.lJSl NON-POIA!!U lsRIGATION I.NEAS �ESSARY TOMANlAIN R!OOREO SEPARATION RUU 10 RANGl:'VIEWESlATB - PHASE I Rf\'1SEOSHEElS37 ... 5 fO!tatOSSNGS ANDSEf'ARATIONS 7 AU NON-#'OlABi..E RRIGAl!ON METER ms SHAU BE Pl:RMA�TLY MA RHO '1'10N-P01A6lE." 8 lsRK>AT!ON METElt P1TS SHAU. TO BE lOCATEOWlTHN L,OOSCAPI: AR&.S. �VEWAY5 SHA!.l BE AUGNro ACCORONGlYTOMAINTAN P!K>TKTIONOf WATE!t METER PITS WllHIN lHE REO\.I RW v.NOSCAPfAR!;AS 9 All i,RK>ATION P1l'ESHAl1BE COlOREOPURPI.E. 10. fOOGAl

l
ON METERSSHALlBE�"OR¾". lNlf.SSOTHERW�ENOTID I I. P1PELENGlHS ARE l'ltOVIOEOFROM CENTI'!tOfS1Rt.lCT\.RE lOCENTI'!tOf S1R\JCTURE 

z 
.5 
0.. 
z 
0 

l.'.) 
52 
,>,: 
�"'
g
0.. 

:z: 
0 
z _, 
< "' 
w 
> 
0 

68 



EXHIBIT C 

= 

Kl,."Y MAP 
-�-

J s 

I AU €XISTNG UTlffY l0CAT10tlS S�WN H>,VE BEEN PROVI DED BYOfrlmAND OETERMNEO 
FROM >, COMBN,.,TION Of RfCO!ID DAAWlr!GS. 9.IRVEYEO Acl.O MAA�-OVTS >,� f'HYSIO.l 
OSS�V>,TOl'IS. THcRl:M,',Y BE UTILITES NOT SHOWN ON THl: OAAWINGS WHIO, P1sESENTI.Y 
EX5T IN11"E"RE/I Of CONSTRUCTION. THEillOR!:. J1,£C001AACTO!t SHMl VERFY lOCATON 
Aro DEl'rH Of "Ll EXlSTNG UTILITU IN Tli: NOJECTVCNrrY l'R1� 10 BEGt-lNING W0!1f.. 
THECONTR>,CT� S�Ll BE R.IUY >,fl) SOUlY lil:SPOOSBlE f� .>.NY >-ND All D>,MAGcS 
Aro COSTS WHCH MIGH! occo� BY frlE CONTRACTO!rS fAILU�ETO EXACTI..Y lOCATE AND 
MES� ANY ANOALl ununes 1'1"ECONTRACT� SHAU NO!l f\' AU F\l!lC ANO f'R1VA11' 
UlllfY COM"ANES ANO DET�MNE THE lOCATION Of All 0:ISlNG U�U!ES PR,� 10 
PROCEWNG WITH �Al)NG ANDCONSHhJC�ON All W011K PW�MEO IN THE AREA Of 
UllfflES SHAU BE FO�MEO ANO l�POClOO A�NG 101HE RfOl.ll;fMENIS OffrlE 
Ull!fY OWN� ll(EW1S£, 1HEC001RACT� SHAU SE RESPONSIBI..E f� lOC>,lNG Aro 

����1�,��t�:' 
NON-Mt.NCf'Al.Ull.llES (laEf'HOt-E,GAS. CA.BlE. EiC. WHCHSHALl6ECOOfll)NAT£0 

�i�ItEPJ��=r�1Tiri1��TI��1:r:� 
COl.0!1ADO ll-«>0-922-1987, WWW.\.NCC.ORGI 

2 NADDITIOI TOMEfl7NG>,PF\.CA81.flCU"55. ST>,TI:Olt fEOER>,LSf>,�>,ROS.>,LL 
W.T8'1"L5. �M>,NSHIP >,ND C0NST!KICT'()N SH>.UMEETO!t E)(CffOTHESl>,�>,ROSSET 
fO!tlH N lHE LTWO >,� TOWNOf ME/10 DFIIROl'MENfSl"l'OAROS. 

J N O.Sl:SOf CONfl..CT BE1WffN THESf 9GNfO P\JINS>,� APPIJC>,iUSlAND./IROS.1HE 
M05TR€STOCTI\IE $TA�AROSH>,Ll,.>,P!'1.V 

4 Al11RR 1GA1100MAINS SHAllBEAw-NA SDlt210!tC1001'lAST'C PRBSURf'Pf>E(Dlt-18 :����s:Ji�\�.\':O�=�rt!7i :��E
H
;;6fr:�;

Rf: ffit SlANDAROS 

�. AU IRR1GATI0N MAINS SHAll HAVl;A Ml�MUM COVER Of 36"A� SEIMC8 SHAU. HAVE A 

Ml�MUMCO� Of 18'!.l'ILE5SOTHERW5EN01EO 

6. ALl NON-l'OJ>,Bll: RRIGATl0NMANS AN05.ER\f1C!:S SHALlMAINTA N A Ml�"'IJM 18' 
vamo.LSE!'ARAT'()N, A� 10 ll HO!tlZON'IALSE!'AAATON Fl10M P01A0U'MAN$ AND 
SE!MCE5.AOJU:S1 N0N-l'O!A81J' l�IGATION ll'IEAS NECESSARY 10MA t-llAIN RfQUIROO 
SE!'AAA10N. RffER10 RANGE VFW ES1A1£S - PHASE I R�5EOSHEEfS3745FO!tCl10SSNGS 
A�SEl'ARA�ONS 

7. ALl NON-l'OlABll: RRIGAllONMETER PH$ SHALi.. Bl: P'ERMANENTLY MAR!l:O"N()N.f'Of>,ll.E." 

8 R!ttGATI0NMETl:Rf'1TSSH>,LlJO BElOC>,TEO WllHNl./l�SC>,PEAR€.AS. DR,VEWAYS SHML 
BEAUGttil >,CCORONGlYTOM>-INTAN PlKllECTIONOf WATER MElH !'ll"S W11HIN THE 
RE00REO I./IND50.P'EARW 

10, RR1GATIOOM=SH>.U BE�"Olt¾", Ui't.ESS OTHERW1SENOTEO 

I I .  1'1PE LENG1HS ARE PlK>VIDEO fROMCENiU OfSTIWCTIRE 10 CENlER Of Sf!WCT\JR'E 

® 
Know'Mur1below. 

Callbefolllyoudig. 
e,,.,�..,-· .... ,.. .. ,,,,...,._vo,J �•-::::..'!.�t�=��-"' 

z 
:'.5 
(L 
z 
0 
� 

(.9 °' 
� 

':J 
a:, 

g 
(L 
z 
0 z 

DAT!: 3/1/23 

SCAU' (H) l" .. 50' I
::��: :: ! 
CHl:OED BY JTC I 

HDSPRO..ECT,� 1 

01 NP ! 

SHEET 4 OF 

"' 



EXHIBIT C 

V ,.,,c=-- ,� 
-�-.... � 

POTM:U _ _

'�::..--... ::=-:. 

---

, • . 

', -,·�:: i�::· -
' --=" NTIKU 

'-..._ i ,.. __ ,.a I �:;u,.;:,_,_,� 

' 
; 

I 

�Sf£� -++-� 

��iL
" --l<---+---::;:- � ,==---, 

z 
(/l :'.5 � (L 

<: z 
tr;� <{ 

� 
� 

� 
':J 

� a:, 

CJ g z 
z 



Kl,."Y MAP 

-�-

EXHIBIT C 

= 

J s 

I AU €�1STNGUTlffYl0CAT10tlS S�WN H ... VE E!EEN/>ROVI DEDBYOfrlmAND OETERMNEO 
fROM >, COMBN,.,TION Of RfCO!ID DAAWlr!GS. SURVEYED Acl.O MAA�-OVTS >,� f'HYSIO.l 
OSS�V>,TOl'IS. THcRl:M,',Y BE UTILITES NOT SHOWN ON THl: OAAWINGS WHIO, P1sESENTI.Y 
EX5T IN11"E"RE/I Of CONSTRUCTION. THEREfOE. J1,£COOTAACTO!t 51,"'-ll VERFY lOCATON 
Aro DEl'rH Of "Ll EXlSTNG UTILITU IN Tli: N0£CTVCNrrY />R1� 10 BEGt-lNING W0!1f.. 
THECONTR>,CT� SHALL BE R.IUY >,fl) SOUlY lil:SPOOSB!.E f� .>.NY >-ND All D>,MAGcS 
Aro COSTS WHCH MIGH! occo� BY ™E CONTRACTO!rS FAllU�ETO EXACTI..Y lOCATE AND 
MES� ANY ANOALl ununes 1'1"ECONTRACT� SHAU NOllf\' AU F\l!lC ANO f'R1VA11' 
UlllfY COM"ANES ANO DET�MNE THE lOCATION Of All 0:ISlNG U�U!ES PR,� 10 
P!KlCEroNG WITH �Al)NG ANDCONSHhJC�ON All W011K mf�MEO IN THE AREA Of 
VllfflES SHAU BE FO�MEO ANO l�POClOO A�NG 101HE RfOl.ll;fMENIS OffrlE 
Ull!fY OWN� ll(EW1S£, 1HEC001RACT� �AIJ. SE RESf'ONSIBI..E fO. lOC>,lNG Aro 

����1�,��t�:' 
NON-Mt.NCf'Al.Ull.llES (laEf'HOt-E,GAS. CA.BlE. EiC. WHCH�ALl6ECOOfll)NAT£0 

�i�ItEPJ��=r�1Tiri1��TI��1:r:� 
COl.0!1ADO ll-«>0-922-1987, WWW.\.NCC.ORGI 

2 NADDITIOI TOMEfl7NG>,PF\.CA81.flCU"55.ST>,TI:� fEOER>,LSf>,�>,ROS.>,LL 
W.T8'1"L5. �M>,NSHIP >,ND C0NST!KICT'()N SH>.UMEfT� E)(CffOTHESl>,�>,ROSSET 
f�lH l'I lHE LTWO >,� TOWNOf ME/10 DFIIROl'MENfSl"l'OAROS. 

J 1'10.Sl:SOf CONfl..CT BE1WffN THESf9GNfOP\JINS >, � APPIJC>,iUSlAND./IROS.1HE 
M05TR€STOCTI\IE $1A�AROSH>,Ll,.>,P!'1.V 

4 Al11RR 1GA1100MAINS SHAllBEAw-NA SDlt21 � C1001'lAST'C PRBSURf'Pf>E(Dlt-18 :����s:Ji�\�.\':O�=�rt!7i :��E
H
;;6fr:�;

Rf: ffit SlANDAROS 

5, AU IRR1GATI0N MAINS SHAll HAVl;A Ml�MUM COVER Of 36"A� SEIMC8 SHAU. HAVE A 

Ml�MUMCO� Of 18'!.l'ILE5SOTHERW5EN01EO 

6. AL1NON-l'Ol>,Bll: RRIGATl0NMANS AN05.ER\f1C!:S SHALlMAINTA N A Ml�"'IJM 18' 
vamo.LSE!'ARAT'()N, A� 10 ll H�IZON'IALSE!'AAATON Fl10M P01A0U'MAN$ AND 
SE!MCE5.AOJU:S1 N0N-l'O!A81J' l�IGATION ll'IEAS NECESSARY 10MA t-llAIN RfQUIROO 
SE!'AAA10N. RffER10 RANGE VFW ES1A1£S - PHASE I R�5EOSHEETS3745F�Cl10SSNGS 
A�SEl'ARA�ONS 

7. AL1 NON-l'OlABll: RRIGAllONMETER PH$ SHAL1 Bl: P'ERMANENTLY MAR!l:O"N()N.POf>,ll.E." 

8 R!ttGATIONMET1:Rf'1TSSH>,L1JO BElOC>,TEO WllHNl./l�SC>,PEAR€.AS. OOVEWAYS SHML 
BEAUGttil >,.CCORONGlYTOM>-INT>,.N PlKllECTIONOf WATER MElH !'ll"S W11HIN THE 
REOOREO I./IND50.P'EARW 

10. RR1GATIOOM=SH>.U BE�"�'Y,•, Ur,t_ESS OTHERW1SENOTEO 

I I . 1'1PE LENG1HS ARE PlK>VIDEO fROMCENiU OfSTIWCTIRE 10 CENlER Of Sf!WCT\JR'E 

® 
Know'Mur1below. 

Callbefolllyoudig. 
e,,.,�..,-· .... ,.. .. ,,,,...,._vo,J 
�•-::::..'!.�t�=��-"' 

z 
:'.5 
(L 
z 
0 
� 

(.9 
°' 

� 

':J 
a:, 

g 
(L 
z 
0 z 

DAT!: 3/1/23 

SCAIJ'(H) l" .. Sfl I
::��: :: ! 
CHl:O(EOBY JTC i 

HD5 Pro£Cr,� I 

03 NP ! 

SHEET 6 OF 



EXHIBIT C 

• I I • 11 ' I 

I 1�r--
---

· i I 
I • I I 

I I I 
I I 
I I ' I I • I I 

I 

CROSSWAlK /NOICAroR 

I MOUNTAIN VIEW DR 

IPR�OSED COONECllOff 
TO EX 8" 'M_  

I i i 
1

1 I f'. ,..- 1 I 
I I 

I I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

: " 
i. I � 

I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I I I I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 

£)(LAN0SC¥'£ = 

J,- t_ JX ;::::,;::°' 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I 

L ___ _______ _ 

EX IS'CAIP fl.- 5001.SI 

J s 

J::!Qill.; I AU €XISTNG UTlffY l0CAT10tlS S�WN H>,VE BEEN PROVI DED BYOfrlmAND OETERMNEO FROM >, COMBN,.,TION Of RfCO!ID DAAWlr!GS. 9.IRVEYEO Acl.O MAA�-OVTS >,� f'HYSIO.l OSS�V>,TOl'IS. THcRl:M,',Y BE UTILITES NOT SHOWN ON THl: OAAWINGS WHIO, P1sESENTI.Y EX5T IN11"E"RE/I Of CONSTRUCTION. THEillOR!:. J1,£C001AACTO!t SHMl VERFY lOCATON Aro DEl'rH Of "Ll EXlSTNG UTILITU IN Tli: NOJECTVCNrrY l'R1� 10 BEGt-lNING W0!1f.. THECONTR>,CT� S�Ll BE R.IUY >,fl) SOUlY lil:SPOOSBlE f� .>.NY >-ND All D>,MAGcS 
Aro COSTS WHCH MIGH! occo� BY THE CONTRACTO!rS fAILU�ETO EXACTI..Y lOCATE AND MES� ANY ANOALl ununes 1'1"ECONTRACT� SHAU NO!l f\' AU F\l!lC ANO f'R1VA11' UlllfY COM"ANES ANO DET�MNE THE lOCATION Of All 0:ISlNG U�U!ES PR,� 10 P!KlCEroNG WITH �Al)NG ANDCONSHhJC�ON All W011K PW�MEO IN THE AREA Of UllfflES SHAU BE FO�MEO ANO l�POClOO A�NG 101HE RfOl.ll;fMENIS OfTHE Ull!fY OWN� ll(EW1S£, 1HEC001RACT� SHAU SE RESPONSIBI..E f� lOC>,lNG Aro 

����1�,��t�:' NON-Mt.NCf'Al. Ull.111:S (laEf'HOt-E,GAS. CAB!£ EiC. WHCHSHAL.L.6ECOOflDINA1£0 
�i�ItEPJ��=r�1Tiri1��TI��1:r:� COl.0!1ADO ll-«>0-922-I987, WWW.t.NCC.ORGI 2 NADDITIOl10MEfl7NGAPF\CA81.f lCUAS5.STATl:� fEOERAl.SlA/,oAROS.ALL W.T8'1AL5. �MANSHIP AND CONST!KICTON SHAUMEEf� E)(CffOTHESlA�AROSSET 
f�TH N THE LTWO A/,o TOWNOf ME/10 DFIIROl'MENfSTA/,oAROS. J N CASl:SOf CONfl..CT el:1WffN 1HESf 9GNEOPU,NSA/,o APPIJC/IIUS1ANO/IROS.1HE M05T R€ST!OCTI\IE$1A/,oAROSHAL.1.AP!'1.Y 4 AL.I.IRR1Glll100MAINS SHAllBEAw-NA SD lt 2 I � C1001'lAST'C PRBSURtPf"E(Dlt-I8 
:����s:Ji�\�.\��=�rt!7i:��EH;;6fr:�;Rf:ffit SlANO/IROS 

� AU IRR1GATI0N MAINS $HAll HAVl;A Ml�MUM COVER Of 36"A� SEIMC8 $HAU HAVE A Ml�MUMCO� Of I8't.NLE5SOTHERW5EN01EO 6. ALlNON-l'OlABIJ' RRIGATl0NMANS ANDS-ER\f1Cl:S SHAll.MAINTAN A Ml�"'IJM 18' \iWICALSE!'ARAT'ON, A� 10 l! H�IZON'IALSE!'AAATON Fl1QM P01A0U'MAN$ AND SE!MCE5.AOJU:S1 NQN-l'O!ASIJ' l�IGATION lNEAS NECESSARY 10MA t-llAIN RfQUIROO SE!'AAA10N. RffER10 RANGE VFW ES1A1£S - PHASE I R�5EOSHEET53745F�Cl10SSNGS 
A�SEl'ARA�ONS 7. AL.L. NON-l'OIABIJ' RRIGAllONMETER PHS SHALl Bl: l'ERMANENTLY MAR!l:O"NON•f'OfAll.E." 8 R!ttGATIONMETl:R f'ffS SHALllO BELOCATEO WlTHNI.A�SCAl'EARfAS. OOVEWAYSSHAL< BEAUGttil ACCORONGlYTOMAINTAN PKllECnONOf WATER MElHl'll"S W11Hlrl THE REOORl:O I.AND5CAl'EARW 

10. RR1GATIOOM= SHAU ee�•�'Y,",Ui't.ESS01HERW1SENOTEO 1 1 .  1'1PE LENG1HS ARE PltOVIDEO fROMCENiU OfSTIWCTIRE 10 CENTER Of Sl!WCT\JR'E 

® 
Know'Mur1below. 

Callbefolllyoudig. e,,.,�..,-· .... ,.. .. ,,,,...,._""" �•-::::..'!.�t�=��-"' 

z 
:'.5 
C. 
z 
0 
� 
(.9 °' � 
':J 
a:, 

g
C. 
z 
0 z 

DAT!: 3/1/23 SCAIJ' (H) 1""50' I
::��: :: ! CHl:OEDBY JTC I HD5 Pro£CT, � I 

04 NP ! 
SHEET 7 OF 



Kl,."Y MAP 

-�-

E"XHlBIT C 

.!:!fil1. 

J s 

I All €XISTNGUTlffYl0CAT10tlS S�WN HAVEBEENPROVI DEDBYOtrlWAND DET1RMNED 
FROM A COMB NATION Of RfCO!ID DRAWlNGS. 9.IRVEYEO AclD MAA�-OVTS A� f'HYSIO.l 
OSS�VATONS. THcRi:MAY BE UTILITES NOT SHOWN ON THl: ORAWlNGS W,,10, P1sESENTI.Y 
EX5T INtrlEARE./1 Of CONSTRUCTION. TI,EREfOR!:. TI,ECONTRACTOR SHAll VERFY lOCATON 
A� DEf'rH Of ALl EXlSTNG UTILITES IN Tit: PR0£CTVCNITY l'R10R 10 6EGt.iNING W0!1f.. 
THECONTRACTOR S�Ll6E RJllYA� SOlaY RE9'0NSBlE f0RANYANDAllDAMAGcS 
A� COSTS WlsCH MIGH! OCCOlt BY TI,jE CONTRACTO!rS fAILUltETO EXACTI..Y lOCATE �D 
MES� �y ANOALl ununes TI,ECONIRAClOR SHAU NO!l fY AU F\l!lC ANO f'R1VA11' 
Ulll!"Y COM"ANl:S ANODET�MNE1HE lOCA110NOf AU. EXISlNG UTIU!ES l'R10R10 
MOC Ero NG WITH �Al)NG ANOCONS1R1JCTION All W011K PWORMEO INTI,EAREA Of 
UllfflES SHAU BE FO�MEO ANO INSPEClfO ACCO!IDNG 101HE RKlUIREMEN!S OfTI,E 
Ull!l"Y OWN� U(EW1SE, 1HECON1RACTOR SHAU BE RESPONSIBI.E fOR lOCAlNG A� 

����lr¾l��t�:, 
NON-Mt.NCf'Al Ull.111:S (laEf'HOt-E,GAS. CAB!.E. f!C. W1'CHSHALl6ECOOfll)NA1£0 

�i�ItEPJ��=r�1Tiri1��TI��1:r:� 
COi.ORA DO ll-«>0-922-1987, WWW.t.NOC.ORGI 

2 NA!Jl)TJ0,1 10MEfl7NGAPF\CA81.f lCUAS5. STATl:0R fEOERAlSlA�AROS.ALl 
W.T8'1AL5. w<lR1:MANSHIP AND CONSTRIJCT'ON SHAUMEEfOR EXC!:EOTI,ESlA�ARDSSET 
FORTI, N THE LTWD A� TOWNOf MEAD DfVROl'MENTSlAi'OAROS. 

J N O.SESOf CONfl..CT eEJWffN TI,jESE SGNED PU,NSA� APPIJC/IIUSlANDAROS.lHE 
M05T R€ST!OCTIVES!A�AROSHALlAP!'1.V 

4 ALllRR1GA110NMAINS SHAllBEAw-,./A SDlt210RC1001'lAST'C PRBSURf'Pf"E(Dlt-18 

:����s:Ji�\�A��=�rt!7i:��E
H
;;6fr:�;

Rf:ffit S1ANDAROS 

5. AU IRR1GATI0N MAINS SHAll HAVl;A MINIMUM cov� Of 36"A� SEIMC8 SHAU HAVE A 
MINIMUM CO� Of 18" t.NLE5S01HERW5EN01EO 

6. ALl NON-l'OlABll: RR1GATl0NMANS AN0S-ERV1Cl:S SHAllMAINTA N A MINl"'IJM 18" 
vamo.LSE!'ARAT'ON, A� 10 ll HORIZONIALSE!'AAAlON Fl10M P01A0ll:MANS AN0 
SE!MCE5.AOJU:Sl N0N-l'O!A81J' l�IGAfl()N ll'IEAS NECESSARY 10MA N1AIN RfQUIROO 
SE!'AAA10N. Rff�10 RANGE VFW ES1A1£S - PHASE I R�5EOSHEEfS37-45FORCltOSSNGS 
A�SEl'ARATIONS 

7. ALl NON-l'OlABll: RRIGAllONMErER PH$ SHALl Bl: l"ERMANENTLY MAR!l:O"NON•f'OfAll.E." 

e R!ttGATIONMETI:R f'nSSHALlTO BELOCATED WlTHNI.A�SC>,.PEARfAS. OOVEWAYS SHALl 
BEAUGttil >,.CCORONGlYTOMAINTAN PKllECTIONOf WATER MElH l'll"S W11HIN THE 
ltEOOREDI.AND50.PEARW 

10. RR1GATIONM= SHAU 0E�"OR¾", UNI.ESS omERWlSE NOTEO 

1 1 .  1'1PE LENG1HS ARE PltOVIDEO fROMCENiU OfSTIWCTIRE 10 CENlER Of STIWCT\JR'E 

® 
Know'Mur1below. 

Callbefolllyoudig. 
e,,.,�._,-..... ,.. .. ,,,,...,._vo,J �•-::::..'!.�t�=��-"' 

z 
:'.5 
(L 
z 
0 
� 

(.9 °' 
� 

':J 
a:, 

g 
(L 
z 
0 z 

DAT!: 3/1/23 

SCAIJ'(H) l" .. 50' I
::��: :: ! 
CHl:OEOBY JTC I 

HD5PR0£CT,� I 

05 NP ! 

SHEET 8 OF 

73 



Kl,."Y MAP -�-

EXHIBIT C 

!1� : ·-- --- --
, ,,1 

' UTII.ITYESJIT 

Nntll>'UNK FO 

I.JO,,,,.!jQ(H,,1$ · ,  NIJT-XX/2,5.J ', 
I.Jf).5005,JJ NUr-.,oOl.67 
--------

J s 

I AU €XISTNG UTlffYl0CAT10tlS S�WNH,.VE E!EEN/>ROVI DEDBYOfrlmANDOETERMNEO FROM >, COMBN,.,TION Of RfCO!ID DAAWlr!GS. SURVEYED Acl.O MAA�-OVTS >,� f'HYSIO.l OSS�V>,TONS. THcRl:M,',Y BE UTILITES NOT SHOWN ON THl: OAAWINGS WHIO, P1sESENTI.Y EX5T IN\1"E>,RE/I Of CONSTRUCTION. THEREfOE. J1,£COOTAACTO!t 51,"'-ll VERFY lOCATON >,ro DEl'rH Of "Ll EXlSTNG UTILITU IN Tli: N0£CTVCNrrY />R1� 10 BEGt-lNING W0!1f.. THECONTR>,CT� SHALL BE R.IUY >,fl) SOUlY lil:SPOOSB!.E f� .>.NY >-ND All D>,MAGcS Aro COSTS WHCH MIGH! occo� BY ™E CONTRACTO!rS FAllU�ETO EXACTI..Y lOCATE AND P?ES� ANY ANOALl ununes 1'1"ECONTRACT� SHAU NOllf\' AU F\l!lC ANO f'R1VA11' UlllfY COM"ANES ANO DET�MNE THE lOCATION Of All 0:ISlNG U�U!ES PR,� 10 P!KlCEroNG WITH �ADNG ANDCONSHhJC�ON All W011K mf�MEO IN THE AREA Of UllfflES SHAU BE FO�MEO ANO l�POClOO A�NG 101HE RfOl.ll;fMENIS OffrlE Vll!fY OWN� ll(EW1S£, 1HEC001RACT� �AIJ. SE RESf'ONSIBI..E fO. lOC>,lNG Aro MAl'ANGANY EXIS1I NG U1l.lfY IINClUOING OEl'frll WHI� M"Y CON A.Cl WITH THE f'ROf'OSEO COl'll!IWCTON, Al-0 r0< RaOCATNG ENCOONTERW UIIU!'ES AS DIRK1€0 BY THE fN�t-Etli C0NlRACIO!t S!sAl.lC0N1AC1 ANO R'ECilYEAF'PRQVAl fltOM OWl'elNll!fY OWNEJ/ Bl;fORI; RaOCAlNGANY tNCOONTERro UTIUTES. CONTRAClO!t RlcSPONSl!lEfO!t SERVCECON�lONS. ANO 11ROCA1NGAt<l R€CON�1NG AffECIEOUTI.JTES ASCOOIIDNATEO W1TH UIIUfY OWNEf/At<l/Olt ENGNffR, INClUONG NON-Mt.NCf'Al.Ull.llES (laEf'HOt-E,GAS. CAB!£ ETC. WHCHSHAU.BECOOf/0.NATEO WflH lHE U!llTY OWNEJ/I. THE co-mAClO!t SHAll. lMMEOAfHY CONTACT E�l•EU UPON 0ISC0VEl!Y OfAU11.1TY05CIW'ANCY O!t COt-f'LJC1.Al l.EAST48 HOJ� Pi10< 10 CONSTRIJCTION. THECONlRACTO!t SHAll. NOTIFY THE UlllTY NOlfCATIONCENTE!l Of COI.OltAOO ll-«>0-922-I987, WWW.t.NCC.ORGI 2 ��0-���::�iPPA�����S��:iffER�:���:s:;�AROSf>ET fO!tTH N THE ll'WO At<l TOWNOf MEAD OFIIROl'MENfSlAt<lAROS. J NCASl:SOf CONfl..CT BE1WffN THESf9GNfO P\JINSAt<lAPPIJCAilES1ANDAROS.1HE "'°51 R€ST!OCTI\IESIAI-OAROSHAU.AP!'1.V 4. AU.IRR1Glll100MAINSSHAllBEAw-NAS01t 2 I 0!t C1001'lAST'C PRBSURtPf"E(Dlt-I8 P=�Q>,SS J05I, AU.ftAST'CP!tESSIJREPff 9"AU.HAVfTltAC8W1REl'atSlANDAROS AU. IRR IGA1I0NS€RVICES 2" At<l SMALI..ER SHAU. BE TYPE K SOflCO!'P� 5 AU. IRRIGATION MAINS $HAl.l HAVl;A Ml�MUM COVEil Of 36"At<l SEIMC8 $HAU. HAVE A Ml�MUMCO� Of I8't.NLE5SOTHERW5EN01EO 6. AU. NON-l'OlABIJ' RRIGATl0NMANS AN0$.ERV1CES SHAl.l.MAINTANA Ml�"'IJM 18' \iWICAlSE!'ARATON, At<l 10 ll HO!tlZONlAlSE!'AAAOC)N Fl1QM P01A01J'MAN$AN0 SE!MCES.AOJU:Sl N0N-l'OTA81J' IRRIGATION lNEAS NECESSARY 10MA t-llAIN RfQUIROO SE!'AAAlON. RffE!llO RANGE VFW ESTATES · PHASE I R815EOSHEEl'53745FO!tCl10SSNGS At<lSEl'ARATIONS 7. AU. NON-l'OlABIJ' RRIGAllONMErE!l PHS SHAU. Bl: l"ERMANENTlY MAR!l:O"NON•f'OfAll.E." e R!ttGATIONMETl:R f'nSSHAU.TO BElOCATEO W1THN l./lt<lSCAPEAR€AS. DR,VEWAYS SHAC< BEAUGttil ACCORONGlYTOMAINTAN PKllECTIONOf WATER MElH l'IT"S W11HIN THE REOORl:O I./IND5CAPEARW 
10. RRIGATIOOM=SHA!J. BE�"Olt¾", Ui't.ESSOTHERW1SENOTEO I I . 1'1PE LENG1HS ARE PltOVIDEO fROMCENTUOfSTIWCTIRE 10CEN1EROf STIWCT� 

® 
Know'Mur1below. 

Callbefolllyoudig. e,,.,�..,-· .... ,.. .. ,,,,...,._""" 
�•-::::..'!.�t�=��-"'

z 
:'.5 "
z 
0 
� 
(.9 °' � 
':J 
a:, 

g "-
z 
0 z 

DAT!: 3/1/23 SCAlE (H) l" .. 50' I
::��: :: ! 
CHl:OED BY JTC I 
HDS PRO.ECT,� 1 

06 NP ! 

SHEET 9 OF 



EXHIBIT D 

75 



EXHIBIT E 

76 



Property Owner: Range View Estates LLC 

January 25, 2023 

Notice 
of 

Non-Potable System 

RANGE VIEW ESTATES 

Al l  lots in this development are served by a non-potable water (not safe for human consumption) 
i rrigation system and potable system water (safe for human consumption). The Range View 
Metropolitan District wil l  supply non-potable water for outdoor i rrigation. The Little Thompson 
Water District (L TWO) wil l provide potable water for indoor use. The indoor and outdoor water will 
be delivered through separate del ivery systems. 

Each lot is al lowed 82,000 gal lons of potable water per year, generally sufficient for bathing, 
cooking , and cleaning in  the home and winter watering of trees and shrubs. If the lot owner uses 
more than 82,000 gal lons of potable water before the end of the year, a sign ificant Overage Water 
Al lotment Charge wi l l  be appl ied to your bi l l  for al l  potable water use for the remainder of the year. 

The non-potable water wi l l  be del ivered directly to each lot owner's irrigation system and the 
Range View Metropolitan District wil l manage and bi l l  lot owner for the non-potable water and 
may also enforce water restrictions separate from L TWO if necessary. Lot owners may not use 
potable water through their sprinkler system. If this occurs, L TWO will impose additional charges 
and/or fines and may require additional water to be dedicated. The current Overage Water 
Allotment Charge, fines, and M iscel laneous Fees can be found on the Little Thompson Water 
District website https://littlethompsonwd.colorado.gov. 

Please feel free to contact Little Thompson Water D istrict at (970) 532-2096 or the Range View 
Metropolitan District at (970) 669�361 1  if you have questions or concerns . 

Page 1 of 3 Range View Non�Potab/e Letter 

� 835 E Highway 56 I Berthoud, CO 80513 I P: 970-532-2096
Ullo �W.altrOulfkl 

77 



4884586 Pages : 2 of 3 
03/02/2023 03 : 44 PM R Fee : $23 , 00 

EXH I B IT E 
Car ly  Koppes ,  C lerk and Recorder , We ld  Coun ty  , CO

1111 W)�.1,�.r1-1�1�r,:r,.1l·�I' M��� rlfl ��►,r:.la'JI\JJ�i11�, 11 11 1

i Paree-I - - -, Subdivision -Name TLegal 
1 2071 6301 059 Range View Estates L59 Range View Estates 
12071 6301 060 1 Range View Estates ; L60 Range View Estates 
12071 6401 056 Range View Estates L56 Range View Estates 
1 2071 6401 057 , Range View Estates L57 Range View Estates 
12071 6401 058 Range View Estates L58 Range View Estates 

: 12071 6401 061 i Range View Estates ! L61 Range View Estates
1 �071 6401 0�2 _Range View Estates L6Z Rarige Vi�w Estates 

: 1 2071 6401 063 I Range View Estates I L63 Range View Estates 
1 2071 6401 064 Range View -Estates L64 Range View Estates 
1 2071 6401 065 

I 

Range View Estates L65 Range View Estates 
12071 6401 066 Range View Estates L66 �ange Vi�w Estates 
12071 6401 067 1 Range View Estates L67 Range View Estates 
1 2071 6401 068 Range View Estates L68 Range View Estates 
1 2071 6401 069 . Range View Estates I L6� �ange View Estc!tes 
1 2071 6401 070 Range View Estates L70 Range View Estates 
1 2071 6401 071 Range View Estates L71 Range View Estates 
1 2071 6401 072 Range View Estates L 72 Range View Estates 
1 207 1 6401 073 Range View Estates L 73 Range View Estates 
12071 6402001 Range View Estates Lot 1 Range View Estates Amd 1 
1 2071 6402_00] • R9nge View Estates , Lot 2 Fange View Estates _f\md 1 
1 2071 6402003 Range View Estates Lot 3 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402004 • Rang� Vie� Estates Lot 4 Range View Estc!tes Amd1 
1 2071 6402005 Range View Estates Lot 5 Range View Estates Amd 1 
1 2971 6402006 1 Range View Estates Lot 6 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402007 Range View Estates Lot 7 Range View Estates Amd 1 
1 2071 6402008 Range View Estates I Lot 8 Range View Estates Amd 1 
1 2071 6402009 Range View Estates Lot 9 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 640_201 0  1 R�nge \f_iew �states I Lot 1 Q  Rang� Vi�w Estates Amd1 
1 2071 640201 1  Range View Estates Lot 1 1  Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2971 64Q291 2  , Range View Estates I Lo( 1 2  Range View E�tates Amd1 

1 

1 2071 640201 3 Range View Estates Lot 1 3  Range View Estates Amd1 
I ·1 2071 640201 4  Range View Estates Lot 1 4  Range View Estates Amd1

1 2071 640201 5  Range View Estates Lot 1 5  Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 64020 1 6  1 Range View Estates Lot 1 6  Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 640201 7  Range View Estates Lot 1 7  Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 640201 8  I Range View Estates ' Lot 1 8  Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 640201 9  Range View Estates Lot 1 9  Range View Estates Amd 1 
1 2071 6402020 Range View Estates ' Lot 20 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402021 Range View Estates Lqt 2 1  Range View Estates_ Amd1 

Page 2 of 3 Range View Non-Potable Letter 

� 835 E Highway 56 I Berthoud, CO 80513 I P: 970•532-2096
1.111.lo Thc.,ipson W.tlcir OisllX"t 

78 



Parcel Subd ivision Name Legal 
1 2071 6402022 , Range View Estates Lot 22 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402023 Range View Estates Lot 23 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402024 I Range View Estates , Lot 24 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402025 Range View Estates Lot 25 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402026 I Range View Estates Lot 26 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402027 Range View Estates Lot 27 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402028 I Range View Estates I Lot 28 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402029 Range View Estates Lot 29 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402030 I Range View Estates I 'Lot 30 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402031 Range View Estates Lot 3 1  Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402032 Range View Estates Lot 32 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402033 Range View Estates Lot 33 Range View Estates Amd 1 
1 20716402034 Range View Estates Lot 34 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402035 Range View Estates Lot 35 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402036 ! Range View Estates I Lot 36 Range View Estates Amd1
1 2071 6402037 Range View Estates Lot 37 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402038 1 Range View Estates : Lot 38 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402039 Range View Estates Lot 39 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402040 Range View Estates Lot 40 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402041 Range View Estates Lot 4 1  Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402042 Range View Estates Lot 42 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402043 Range View Estates Lot 43 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402044 Range View Estates I I Lot 44 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402045 Range View Estates Lot 45 Range View Estates Amd1 

1 1 20716402046 Range View Estates Lot 46 Range View' Estates Amd1 
1 20716402047 Range View Estates Lot 47 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402048 Range View Estates Lot 48 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402049 Range View Estates Lot 49 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402050 Range View Estates Lot 50 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 20716402051 Range View Estates Lot 51 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402052 Range View Estates Lot 52 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402053 Range View Estates Lot 53 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 2071 6402054 I Range View Estates Lot 54 Range View Estates Amd1 
1 207 1 6402055 Range View Estates Lot 55 Range View Estates Amd1 

Page 3 of 3 Range View Non-Potable Letter 

� 835 E Highway 56 I Berthoud, co 80513 I P; 970-532-2096
UIIJe � Wol•f Oi'slrlc:r 

79 



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 17, 2024 

Item: 6.4 

Staff: Amber Kauffman, District Manager 

Subject: District Goals and Objectives for 2024 
Staff Recommendation: Information Only 

Discussion: In early 2022 the Board and staff reviewed relevant planning documents 
for amending the 2018 Strategic Plan priorities and came up with the following goals for 
the District in the 3- to 5-year horizon: 

1 .  In three years have a plan for growth of staff and the necessary office space for 
those staff. Also consider whether the District will have its own water treatment 
plant at the same location and determine what that location will be. 

2. Have native waters used in the system. This includes the easement acquisition,
infrastructure construction, and substitute water supply plan approved for
Consolidated Home Supply shares.

3. Plan, document, and begin implementation for use of our wholly consumable
waters at St. Vrain Water Authority .

4 .  Evaluate, discuss, and recommend other waters suitable for dedication or 
purchase, treatment, and delivery. (Other waters do not include ones currently 
accepted such as Consolidated Home Supply, Handy, or Colorado-Big 
Thompson.)  

The 2022 Strategic Plan update defined a vision to ensure the resil iency of the District 
by prioritizing initiatives and therefore allocating resources, both personnel and budget, 
to achieve short- and long-term goals that promote these initiatives. The Board also 
identified the following priorities when making decisions, some are reflected in the goals 
above. 

Native Water 
Available for 

Use 

Overuse and 
Loss 

Supply 
Diversification 

Treatment 
Planning/ 
Strategy 

Consider 
Treatment w/o 

CWCWD 

Transmission/ 
Distribution 
Master Plan 

Staffing, 
Succession, and 

Turnover 

Water Rate 
Study 

Financial 
Stability 

Repair and 
Maintain 

relationship 
with CWCWD 

Building Space 

80 



Managers were asked to rank the following priorities for completion this year. The 
resulting priorities are shown in parenthesis before the item. The rating may reflect 
the importance or the urgency or both. Ranking from Directors will be included as 
received . 

Raw Water Supply Plann ing 

• (8) Water loss progress with potent ia l  projects, update in  pol icy

• (11) New Water Su ppl ies p resentations with potentia l  po l icy updates

• (2 )  Raw water maste r p lan

Treatment and Transmission 

• (1 )  Master P lan comp letion

• (6) Project long term treatment capacity need and p riority locations

• (13) Markam Tank  P la nni ng inc lud ing Engi neer ing a nd Access

• (S) Easement acqu is iton fo r Nort heast Transmission Line and two native
water pipel ine projects

Relationsh ips with Others 

• (12)  A successfu l Joint Boa rd meeti ng with CWCWD to i nc l ude issue
discussion a nd resol ution of i ssues

• (14) Update the IGA with Longs Peak  and Mead after transition of
ownersh ip in Mead Crossi ng

Business Management 

• (8-tie) F ina l ize a Development Agreement for use with Deve lopers

• (4) Prioritize long te rm projects and eva l uate fund ing options

• (7) Assignment of a l lotments to a l l  residentia l  ta ps fo r imp lementation
of surcharges in 2025

• (8-tie) Conti nue with non- residentia l  a l lotment assignment

• (15) Determine size of office and land requ i red for future growth.

• (3 )  F in ish database fo r Lead Se rvice Li ne I nventory pr ior to October 16

81 



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 1 8, 2024 

Item: 6.5 

Staff: Amber Kauffman, District Manager 

Subject: Carter Lake Filter Plant (CLFP) 

Staff Recommendation: I nformational Only 

Discussion: 

The January CLFP board was forwarded to the L TWO board on January 5, 2024, for the 
meeting on January 10. Items of note are summarized below. 

• CLFP and NoCo Engineering met with Connel and Tanco and their painting
subcontractor to review the warranty issues with the 7 MG tank. The warranty
period ended on 12/3 1/2023 ; however, the group couldn't meet until the week of
January 1 .  The group agreed to conduct repairs to the 7 MG tank in October. The
painting company was concerned that they would be responsible for additional
issues beyond their warranty period , so the group agreed to locate and survey the
areas requiring repair with the CLFP NACE inspector (Mark Shmidt) and the
contractor's NACE inspector.

• The 5 MG tank recoating will be bid in the next month and work will be conducted
in October 2024.

• The auditors have started work for CLFP and are expected on site at the end of
the month. They are currently planning on presenting the audit to the board at the
March meeting.

• NoCo Engineering was asked by Director Brandenburg to provide a schedule for
the project. John Moore of NoCo Engineering stated that he had a Gantt chart,
and he could provide the summary for the board to review at the next board
meeting.

82 



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 18 ,  2024 

Item: 6.6 

Staff: Amber Kauffman, District Manager 

Subject: St. Vrain Water Authority (SVWA) 

Staff Recommendation:  Informational only 

Discussion : 
The January SVWA board packet was forwarded on Friday January 5,  2024. The SVWA 
board meeting was held Monday, January 8. Information of note is summarized below. 

• There were no changes to the officers at the January meeting.
• CDPHE conducted a sanitary survey of the SVWA on December 1 4. No issues

were determined to be unresolvable and therefore no violations were issued_
• Firestone settled with the contractor which increases the cost of the contract;

however, with the settlement Firestone has agreed to directly pay the
subcontractors to get them back to the site for the final punch list items. This
increase will increase L TWD's cost to connect to the authority plant.

• The revised EPA permit was issued for the increased pressures on the injection
well. The plant will start producing water the week of January 8 and delivering
water to the Town of Firestone the week of January 1 5.

83 



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 18, 2024 

Item: 6.7 

Staff: Amber Kauffman, District Manager 

Subject: Designation of District Public Posting Places - Resolution 2024-01 : 
(1 ) Designation of the District's Public Posting Places. 
(2) Designation of "official" Posting Place for 24-hour (agenda) Notice of District1 

Meetings.

Staff Recommendation :  Staff recommends approval authorizing the Board President 
and Secretary to complete the documents required to designate Public Posting Places as 
listed on Resolution 2024-01. 

Discussion: The Colorado Revised Statutes require the Public Place or Places for 
posting our meeting notices and the "official Posting Place for 24-hour (agenda) Notice 
of District Meetings be designated annually at the first regular meeting of each calendar 
year through the adoption of a Resolution. 

(1) There are no recommended changes to our posting places, which are as follows:
• County Court Houses of Larimer, Weld, and Boulder Counties.
• District Office at 835 East Highway 56, Berthoud , Colorado.
• Town Halls in Berthoud , Firestone, Johnstown, Mead , and Milliken, and the

City of Loveland , Colorado .
• Masonville Post Office.

(2) The District website, ltwd .org, be designated the Posting Place for the 24-hour
(agenda) Notice of District Meetings per Colorado House Bill 19-1087.

84 



LITTLE THOMPSON WATER DISTRICT 
835 E. H IGHWAY 56 

Berthoud , Colorado 80513 
970-532-2096

RESOLUTION 2024-01 

A RESOLUTION TO DESIGNATING PUBLIC POSTING PLACES 

WHEREAS Section 24-6-402(2)(c) of the Colorado Revised Statues requires any 
meetings at which the adoption of any proposed policy, position, resolution, rule, 
regulation, or formal action occurs or at which a majority or quorum of the body is in 
attendance, or is expected be in attendance, shall be held only after full and timely 
notice to the public; and 

WHEREAS a local public body shall be deemed to have given full and timely 
notice if the notice of the meeting is posted in a designated public place within the 
boundaries of the local public body no less than seventy-two hours prior to the holding 
of the meeting; and 

WHEREAS the public places for posting such notice shall be designated 
annually at the local public body's first regular meeting of each calendar year. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
LITTLE THOMPSON WATER DISTRICT, COLORADO: 

1)  That the Posting Places for Meeting Notices shall be as fol lows 
a. County Court Houses of Larimer, Weld , and Boulder Counties.
b. District Office at 835 East Highway 56 Berthoud , Colorado.
c. Town Halls of Berthoud, Firestone, Johnstown, Mead, and Milliken, and

the City of Loveland , Colorado.
d. Masonville Post Office.

2) The District website, ltwd .org, shall be designated the Posting Place for the 24-
hour (agenda) Notice of District Meetings, per Colorado House Bill 1 9- 1087.

ADOPTED THIS 18TH DAY OF JANUARY 2024.

President 

Attest: --------------
Secretary 

85 



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 18, 2024 
Item: 6.8 Public Hearing Action Item 
Staff:  Judy O’Malley, Administrative Assistant  

Subject: LTWD Larimer County Inclusions – Resolution 2024-02  
LTWD Weld County Inclusions – Resolution 2024-03 

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval authorizing the Board President 
and Secretary to complete the documents required to include or exclude the 
properties, as listed below, to or from the Little Thompson Water District. 

Discussion:  The inclusions and exclusions for the properties listed below are being 
done to comply with District Rules and Regulations. See the attached location maps. 

86



Page 1 of 1 

LITTLE THOMPSON WATER DISTRICT 
835 E. HIGHWAY 56 

Berthoud, Colorado 80513 
970-532-2096

RESOLUTION 2024-02 

A RESOLUTION TO GRANT PETITIONS 
FOR PROPERTY INCLUSION INTO THE 
LITTLE THOMPSON WATER DISTRICT 

"RESOLVED that LITTLE THOMPSON WATER DISTRICT grant the Petitions for Inclusion of Land into the 
District by the following property owners of the properties described as follows: 
Property Owner:  Karma Y. Bhotia & Kumari J. Bhotia 
Parcel Number:  0502000051 
Property Address:  3507 N. County Rd. 27, Loveland, CO 80538 
Legal Description: TR IN E1/2 2-5-70 DESC AS BEG AT E 1/4 COR SD SEC 2, TH S 89 01' 47" W 

560.09 FT, TH S 05 54' 35" E 197.69 FT; TH N 88 24' 17" E 274.75 FT; TH N 
88 32' 57 E 226.33 FT TO PT ON NON-TANG CUR CONC W, C/A 05 18' 52", 
RD 1402, COUNTY OF LARIMER, STATE OF COLORADO 

for the inclusion of their properties in said District. It is resolved that the President and Secretary of the District 
do any and all things necessary to include such properties into the District." 

"I hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the Little Thompson Water 
District at a meeting of the Board of Directors held on January 18, 2024." 

President 

Secretary 

_______________________________ 

Attest:_______________________________ 

[SEAL] 

87



LTWD INCLUSION: 

KARMA & KU MARI 

BHOTIA 

N 

A 
0 87 .5 175 350 US Feet 

I I I I I I I I I 
1:8,400 

u,,,.7()0ft 

"'.,.,,..,.1.,,o""i.,,.-�,..,,� .. no1.-r-� 
DdftrL�WfWl�lullO•� 

M,,pp,n:�Ql/111} ... 

88



Page 1 of 1 

LITTLE THOMPSON WATER DISTRICT 
835 E. HIGHWAY 56 

Berthoud, Colorado 80513 
970-532-2096

RESOLUTION 2024-03 

A RESOLUTION TO GRANT PETITIONS 
FOR PROPERTY INCLUSION INTO THE 
LITTLE THOMPSON WATER DISTRICT 

"RESOLVED that LITTLE THOMPSON WATER DISTRICT grant the Petitions for Inclusion of Land into the 
District by the following property owners of the properties described as follows: 
Property Owner:  Sherry Bolton & David W. Bolton 
Parcel Number:  120707400038 
Property Address:  16245 County Rd. 3, Berthoud, CO 80513 
Legal Description: PT S2SE4 7-3-68 LOT A REC EXEMPT RE-2104 EXC UPRR RES (2.25R), 

COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO 

_______________________________ 

for the inclusion of their properties in said District. It is resolved that the President and Secretary of the District 
do any and all things necessary to include such properties into the District." 

"I hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the Little Thompson Water 
District at a meeting of the Board of Directors held on January 18, 2024." 

President 

Secretary 
Attest:_______________________________ 

[SEAL] 

89



LTWD INCLUSION: 

SHERRY & DAVID 

BOLTON 

N 

A 
0 155 310 620 US Feel 

I I I I I I I I I 
1:8,400 

u,,,.7()0ft 

"'.,.,,..,.1.,,o""i.,,.-�,..,,� .. no1.-r-� 
DdftrL�WfWl�lullO•� 

M,,pp,n:�Ql/111} ... 

90



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 1 9, 2024 

Item: 6.9 

Staff: Amber Kauffman, District Manager 

Subject : Johnstown and L TWO Amendment to Settlement 

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommend approval. 

We completed the Intergovernmental Agreement with Johnstown in December and now 
need to address the court order that was issued by Larimer County District Court in 
2007. The court order was a result of a settlement that L TWO and the Town of 
Johnstown agreed to regarding a lawsuit filed by Johnstown in 2005. The settlement and 
court order included the following items designated as either completed or not 
completed: 

• Not Completed
❖ Court Order items 1 ,  2 , 3 , and 4:  Johnstown was to pay the District 10

times the annual water revenue received by the District from taps 3708 and
4420 within 30 days after the date that the tap had been disconnected from
L TWD's system. These taps were to be d isconnected from L TWO service
by Johnstown by April 28, 2009, and if it wasn't completed by then L TWO
was to disconnect it the following day. No water rights were to be
transferred to Johnstown, but the customers were to be al lowed to relocate
the tap to anywhere else in the District at the customer's expense as long
as it was not into the urban growth area of the Town as of 2007. The
parcels were to be excluded from the District.

• Completed
❖ Court Order items 5 and 6:  Exclusion of specific properties from L TWO for

future service by Johnstown
❖ Court Order item 7: The Town and District negotiate an agreement for

payment of taps taken over by the Town. (IGA from 2009)

The attached Amendment to Settlement addresses the items that were not completed in 
the court order. The document has been reviewed by L TWO legal counsel and 
Johnstown legal counsel. 

9 1  



Larimer County, Colorado, District Court 
20 1 LaPorte Avenue, Suite 1 00 
Fort Collins, CO 8052 1 -276 1 
Phone No. (970) 494-3500 

The Town of Johnstown, a Municipal 
Corporation, and the Town Counci l of 
Johnstown, the governing body, 
Plaintiffs, 

V. 

Little Thompson Water District, a special 
district, and its Board of Directors, the 
Taxpaying Electors of said District as a Class, 
Defendants. b. COURT USE ONLY t1

Case No. 2005CV 1 1 83

Courtroom: 4C 

AMENDMENT TO SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Amendment to Settlement Agreement is made and entered into this _ _ day of 
January 2024 ("Effective Date"), by and between Plaintiffs, the Town of Johnstown and the 
Town Counci l  of the Town of Johnstown (collectively, the "Town"), and Defendants, the Little 
Thompson Water D istrict and its Board of Directors (collectively, the "District"). 

1 . On April 1 6, 2007, the Town and the District entered into a Settlement Agreement 
to resolve the above-captioned matter. 

2 . On Apri l  27, 2007, the Court entered an Order Approving Settlement Agreement
and Joint Plan of Parties and Order of Exclusion of Territory from Little Thompson Water 
District ("Order"). 

3. Section 8(b) of the Settlement Agreement provides that the Settlement Agreement
may not be modified except by a further agreement in writing duly executed by the Town and the 
D istrict. 

4. Based upon the execution of multiple intergovernmental agreements and the good
faith cooperation between the Town and the District subsequent to the date of the Settlement 

92 



Agreement, the Town and the District hereby amend the Settlement Agreement to vacate all the 
provisions contained therein, except for Paragraphs 5, 6 and 8 .  

5 .  Based upon the amendment to the Settlement Agreement set forth above, the 
Town and the District shall request that the Court amend the Order to vacate all the provisions 
contained therein except for Paragraphs 5, 6 and 8 .  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and the District have executed this Amendment to 
Settlement Agreement on the day and year first above written. 

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

By: - -- - - - - - - - - --
Hann ah Hil l ,  Town Clerk Troy D.  Mellon, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

By: __________ _ 
Amber Kauffman, Secretary Emily McMurtrey, President 

By: - - - - - - - - - - - - - - --

LITTLE THOMPSON WATER 
DISTRICT 

By: ___________ _ 

2 

93 



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 18, 2024 

Item: 7.1 

Staff: Amber Kauffman, District Manager 

Subject: Manager's Report 

Staff Recommendation: Informational Only 

Discussion : 

District Activities : 

I will be attending the NoCo Water Alliance Meeting on January 18 right ahead of the board 
meeting. I can provide an update at the LTWD board meeting. 

Brad Wind of Northern Water invited me to attend a tour of the Colorado River basin with the 
Northern Water Board and select staff and invitees from February 6 to February 9. I am honored to 
be considered and am planning on attending. 

Colorado Water Congress has their Annual Convention January 31 through February 2 at the 
Hyatt Regency Aurora Convention. Amanda and one other person from L TWD will be attending. I 
originally intended to go; however, with the trip planned with Northern Water to Arizona I am going 
to forego the conference. The conference is full and has a wait list, as such we are evaluating 
other employees to attend. 

The CWCWD / L TWD Joint Board Meeting is scheduled for February 28 at the Double Tree by 
Hilton in downtown Greeley. Stan and I will work on the agenda. 

Anticipated February Board Meeting Topics: 
Development Agreement Template 
Brookfield Agreement (pending consensus) 

94 



Eye on Water: 

Accounts with EyeOnWater 

Out of 1 0,060 Accounts 

7,791 77% 
Witho EyeO Wa ef 

New Sign-ups 

226
S ign-ups i n  Last 6 Months 

User Sign-ups Per Month 

2 269 23%

Wi h EyeOnW;rer 

4 

Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 1 8, 2024 

Item: 7 .2 Business Manager's Report 

Staff: Angela Diekhoff-Business Manager 

Subject: January Board Meeting, Business Manager Report. 

Staff Recommendation: For I nformation. 

Discussion : 

Board: 
• Holiday Dinner

❖ Event Name: Little Thompson Water District Board Dinner
❖ Event Date: Friday, Jan. 26, 2024
❖ Time: 6:00-9:00pm
❖ Event Space: Welch Room

95 



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 18, 2024 

Item: 7.3 District Engineer Report  

Staff: Brad Eaton, P.E. - District Engineer 

Subject: January Board Meeting, Engineering Report. 

Staff Recommendation: For Information. 

Discussion: 

COMMITMENT TO SERVE REQUESTS: 8 new tap requests for December bringing the 2023 total to 76. 
(2022 TOTAL: 5011). 

2023 CAPITAL PROJECTS 
*FUNDED BY BOND PROCEEDS

PROJECT STATUS BUDGETS 
TOTAL / 2023 / SPENT TO DATE 

*NORTHEAST TRANSMISSION
LINE (#70-137-00000)

LTWD staff continues to assist CRLS with 
easement acquisition and several new easements 
have been acquired. 

$5,400,000 / $1,300,000 / 
$535,579 

*TWIN MOUNDS 5 MILLION
GALLON (MG) TANK REHAB
(#70-138-00000)

Project is complete. Total project costs are final 
and as shown.  

$1,650,000 / $825,000 / 
$2,523,909 

*LOVELAND / CAMPION
CONVERSION PROJECT #1
(#70-139-00000)

Construction has moved to the neighborhood 
south of 42nd St. SE and continues to progress 
well.  

$1,520,000 / $1,520,000 / 
$885,616 

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 
(#70-100-00000) 

Ongoing budget item driven by County Road 
improvement projects.  

$200,000 / $200,000 / $66,971 

SCADA IMROVEMENTS 
(#70-103-00000) 

Needs assessment is complete and equipment 
replacement is in progress. 

$200,000 / $200,000 / $173,431 

SMALL LINE IMPROVEMENTS 
(#70-121-00000) 

Ongoing budget item to replace various small 
waterlines. 

$75,000 / $75,000 / $54,010 

54 BRIDGE WATERLINE 
RELOCATION (#70-142-
00000,1128) 

Construction is complete. Final billing in progress. $732,000 / $732,000 / $59,180 

DRY CREEK FLOATING 
PHOTOVOLTAIC FEASIBILITY 
STUDY (#70-143-00000) 

Consultant has made a site visit and the study is 
underway. 

$35,000 / $35,000 / $0 

WATER SYSTEM MASTER PLAN 
UPDATE (#53-400-00000) 

Progress meeting was held in early December to 
review LTWD data and questions from the 
consultant. 

$150,000 / $75,000 / $6,225 

RAW WATER INFRASTRUCTURE 
(#73-105-00000) 

Aerial survey of the pipeline routes is complete 
and data is being processed. Environmental study 
of sensitive areas continues. 

TBD / $400,000 / $46,444 

3RD AND WELKER – MEAD 
(#70-147-00000)  

Vault relocation design is complete. Bid 
documents are under review for project bidding 
early February 2024. 

$1,320,000 / $1,320,000 / 
$122,794  

LARIMER COUNTY ROAD (LCR) 
8 AND 21 WATERLINE  
(#70-148-00000)  

Construction is complete. Final payment has been 
issued and total project costs are as shown.  

$300,000 / $300,000 / $298,783 

BUCKHORN TANK MIXING 
SYSTEM STUDY  
(#70-146-00000)  

Project deferred to 2024 due to staff workload. $40,000 / $40,000 / $0 

TWIN MOUNDS PASSIVE 
MIXING SYSTEM  
(#70-145-00000)  

Project deferred to 2024 due to staff workload. $227,000 / $227,000 / $0 

BOTTERILL / LTWD SYSTEM 
MODS.  
(#70-149-00000)  

Coordination attempts with the railroad have been 
successful with a recent response from railroad 
staff. Minor design adjustments required. 

$100,000 / $100,000 / $5,000 

96



New Development Projects: No new development projects for November. 

Active Development Name Lots / type of development Status 
Barefoot Lakes Filing 6 193 Residential Phase 1B final acceptance issued. 
Range View Estates 75 Residential Final acceptance is pending. 
Home Depot Distribution Center Industrial / Commercial Final acceptance pending. 
Horizon Hills Offsite Offsite 16-inch waterline Final acceptance pending. 
Red Barn 457 Residential Initial acceptance issued, final 

acceptance issued for select portions. 
Elevation 25 (Formerly Mann Farms) 7 Commercial Initial acceptance issued. 
Horizon Hills 269 Residential (modular) Under construction. 
Gopher Gulch RV Park 145 RV spaces Under construction. 
QuikTrip 1 Commercial l Final acceptance issued. 
Barefoot Offsite Ronald Reagan Phase 3 Offsite for Residential Under construction. 
Mountain View Estates 3 Lot Residential Design approved 
Hawks Ridge Subdivision 120 Residential plus commercial Design approved. No recent activity. 
Mead Place 313 Residential, Multifamily and Design approved. No recent activity. 

Commercial 
Waterfront 1,800 Residential plus Commercial In final design. No recent activity. 
Meadow Ridge 958 Single Family Equivalent (SFE) - In final design. 

Residential and Commercial 
Club Carwash 1 Commercial In construction. 
RV Retreat Residential (Expansion) In design 
Buffalo Highlands 1,269 Lot Residential Plus In design 

Commercial 
Root Shoot Malting – Facility Expansion Commercial Phase 2 in design. 
Mead Village 96 Residential No current activity 
Raterink Lot 2 1 Commercial Becoming active 
Grand Meadow (aka Douthit) 400 Residential No current activity. 

Turion - Revised 3,660 Residential plus commercial - No current activity. 
total buildout.  

Schulz Property Single Industrial Lot Beginning entitlement process with 
Mead. Commitment letter issued. No 
recent activity 

Lemmon Family Trust Conservation 45 Residential Lots Commitment letter issued. Beginning 
entitlement process with Larimer County. 

Flying J Truckstop 1 Commercial Beginning entitlement process with 
Mead 

OTHER ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 

1. Engineering staff remains busy with referrals, development projects, 2023 and 2024 capital
improvement projects along with the water court change cases.

2. Amanda Hoff has accepted the position of Water Resources Manager, taking the place of Nancy
Koch who is transitioning into retirement. Nancy will act as our Water Resources Advisor working
approximately 20 hours per week over the next year to assist Amanda with the transition.
Additionally, the Water Resources department will be under the direction of the District Manager
moving forward.

3. Design coordination with CDOT for I-25 Segment 5 Improvement Project (Hwy. 66 to Hwy. 56)
continues. A coordination meeting held on December 18, revealed CDOT’s schedule, which is
aggressive, however, CDOT recognizes the significance of relocating LTWD and CWCWD
infrastructure and is prioritizing their work accordingly.

4. Final easement acquisition, along with other pre-construction activities continue for the West I-25
Transmission line.

97



2023 LTWD Capital Improvement Project (CIP) Locations 

Additional District Wide CIPs: 
1. Water System Master Plan Update
2. Small Line Improvements
3. County Road Improvements
4. Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition

(SCADA) / Telemetry Improvements

98



NOV DEC JAN F'EB 

Little Thompson Water District 
Monthly Water Use 

2024 WaterYear 

,_,AA JUN .A.IL AUG SEP OCT 

Agenda Item 
Summary 

Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 1 8, 2024 

Item: 7.4 Water Resources Managers Report 

Staff: Amanda Hoff, Water Resources Manager and Nancy Koch, Water 
Resources Advisor 

Subject: December Water Use 
Staff Recommendation: Information Only 

99 



12,000 ------< 

10,000 

aooo 

6,000 

�� 4,000 

2;000 

NOV DEC JAN FEB 

Little Thompson Water District 
Cumulative Water Use 

2024 Water Year 

MAR APR MAY JUN 

Mooth 

JUL AUG SEP 

.!:t'..t...-:t- COand Ory Ct'E!ekStorage fot 2024ac.�ft -a-2020 -e-2021 .......,2022 �2023 -.2024 ♦ Projection -Ory CrHk Total 

OCT 

2024 C-BT 

5,000 

4,500 

4,000 

3,500 

] 3.000 
� 
! 2,500

� 2,000 > 

1 ,500 

1 ,000 

500 

NOV 

Dry Creek Reservoir Monthly Volume 

Montt, 

C-BT Wfndy Gap 

DEC 

1 00 



Weather  Report 
Seasonal Temperature Outlook 

Equal 
Chances 

Seasonal  Precipitation Outlook 

1 0 1  



Agenda Item Summary 
Little Thompson Water District 

Date: January 3, 2024 

Item: 7.4 

Staff: Ken Lambrecht, Operations Manager 

Subject: Operations and Water Quality Report 
Staff Recommendation: For Informational Purposes 

Discussion: Information for the Board of D irectors 

Locate Requests : 

1600 

1400 

1200 

1000 

800 

600 

400 

200 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Ju l  Aug Sep Oct 

-2023

- S Yr Ave

Nov Dec 

Leak Repairs :  

25 

20 

15 

10 

5 

0 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Ju l  Aug Sep Oct 

-2023

- S Yr Ave

Nov Dec 

102 



Month ly Water Quality Report:  

Month ly Water Quality Samples: 
Monthly Total Coliform samples were within  acceptable parameters. 

Customer Taste & Odor Work Orders: 

Created 
Dale 

Service Order 
Number Service Address City Description 

1 03 

1 2/05/2023 22638 WC 1 5.5 JOHNSTOWN Cloudy Dirty 

cloudy dirt: Customer has been getting air in the line and a shimmering film with both cold and hot water from faucets. 

L TWD: chlorine 0.9 / pH 7.9 air in main. flushed the main. flushed service- took head off meter so homeowner could flush house 

1 2/07/2023 22655 YAUPON PL LOVELAND Taste & Odor 

TASTE/ODOR - Customer called and said that since around 1 1  pm on 12/06/2023 he has noticed a sulfur/sewage smell when using water, especially cold 
water , throughout hurne. Recent , ep;,rir <lone 011 main anu oornpleteu tot!ay 1 2/07/2023 

L TWD Todd M: chlorine 0.4 / pH 7.3 flushed main, took meter head of so homeowner could flush house over weekend. 

1 2/08/2023 22674 HIGHLAND DR MEAD Cloudy Dirty 

Yellow water. 

L TWD. The water in toilets was yellow, but the water in the wash basins was clear. It appears that the fixtures that have been used have flushed out stale 
water. Chlorine 0.3 pH was in normal range. Customer should flush their internal plumbing. 

1 2/18/2023 22735 LAKE TERRACE LN FIRESTONE Taste & Odor 

Odor: Customer says water smells like "tracking" in late evening hours. Cust has spoken to neighbor that also has noticed smell. Please contact customer 
with findings. please flush the area. 

L TWD flushed the main line for 30 min. pH 7 .9 Chlorine 0.9. left message for homeowner 

1 2/20/2023 22745 MALLARD CREEK DR BERTHOUD Taste & Odor 

TASTE & ODOR: Customer called & asked if we can flush the line because he is at the end & the chlorine is building up. 

L TWD, talked to homeowner, flushed main chlorine 0.8, pH 7.7 

1 2/20/2023 22746 COVE ST FIRESTONE Taste & Odor 

TASTE AND ODOR - Customer called today and said they have noticed a bad smell when using water, throughout property. most noticeable with hot 
water, no discoloration to water 

1 2/21/2023 22753 HAASE CT BERTHOUD Taste & Odor 

TASTE/ODOR - Chris called and said they have noticed a petroleum smell for the last few days, throughout home, hot and cold water, no discoloration or 
change in taste 

L TWD: flushed main 1 .5 hours. look meter head off so customer could flush house. 

1 2/24/2023 22785 1 0TH ST MEAD Taste & Odor 

Customer has noticed an odor in the water for several years now. Recently noticed that the water in the tub has a blue tint or hue. Not other fixtures. 
Please contact on Wednesday 1 2/27 

L TWD, tested chlorine 1 . 1 ,  pH 7.5, flushed and removed meter head for the v1eekend to allow for further flushing. 

1 2/28/2023 22794 HOPI TRL LOVELAND Taste & Odor 

TASTE & ODOR: Customer called & said they have had cloudy waler since around Thanksgiving. They understood it could be air in the lines from work, 
but it isn't clearing up. Doug's wife also thinks there is sediment in the water. 



7000 

6000 

5000 

4000 

3000 

2000 

1000 

Jan Feb 

Va lve Exerc is ing 

Mar Apr May Jun Ju l  Aug Sep 

-Total Exercised to Date -Total Valves in System

Oct Nov Dec 

Project Updates and Notes : 

Telemetry Upgrades: 
Two new radios and antennas have been installed and the new network appears to be communicating with the 
existing SCADA software. Project is basically complete. Some minor programming and cleanup remain to be 
completed and then we will begin to assess how wel l  the new system works before proceeding with any more 
installations. 

Valve Exercising: 
6,238 valves have been exercised out of a total of 6,541. 

1 04 


	AGENDA
	DASHBOARD
	5.1 MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 14 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING
	5.2 TAP LIST 696
	5.3 DECEMBER 2023 DISBURSEMENTS REPORT
	5.4 DECEMBER 2023 FINANCIAL REPORT
	6.1 BOARD OFFICER ELECTIONS
	6.2 POTENTIAL NON-POTABLE USE OF NATIVE DITCH SHARES
	6.3 NON-POTABLE OPERATING AGREEMENT
	6.4 DISTRICT GOALS AND OBJECTIES FOR 2024
	6.5 CARTER LAKE FILTER PLANT
	6.6 ST VRAIN WATER AUTHORITY
	6.7 ACTION ITEM MOTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2024-01 PUBLIC POSTING PLACES
	6.8 PUBLIC HEARING ACTION ITEM MOTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTIONS 2024-02_03 INCLUSIONS
	6.9 JOHNSTOWN AMENDMENT TO SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
	7.1 DISTRICT  MANAGER'S REPORT
	7.2 BUSINESS MANAGER'S REPORT
	7.3 DISTRICT ENGINEER'S REPORT
	7.4 WATER RESOURCES MANAGER'S REPORT
	7.5 OPERATIONS MANAGER'S REPORT AND WATER QUALITY UPDATE

	undefined: 


